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(On Feb rua ry 7 , 2023 , a11 pa r t i es p resen t , t he f o l l ow ing

t r a n s p i r e d I n o p e n c o u r t w i t h i n t h e p r e s e n c e o f t h e j u r y.

T h i s t r a n s c r i p t c o n t a i n s o n l y t e s t i m o n y a n d o p e n i n g

Bench conferences and any other par t o f the

reco rd was no t reques ted and I s no t t r ansc r i bed he re in . )

w e a r e n o w b a c k o n t h e r e c o r d o n —

1

2

3

4 s t a t e m e n t s .

5

6 T H E C O U R T :

In State of Oklahoma versus Michael Er ic Nelson,

Washington County Distr ic t Court , Case Number CF-2021-304.

Both at torneys have announced that they are ready

M r. A d a m s i s p r e s e n t w i t h h i s c l i e n t ,

Mr. Ne l son , and t he s ta te i s p resen t t h rough Zoe Gu l l e t t .

M a d a m B a i l i f f , w o u l d y o u p l e a s e d i r e c t t h e j u r o r s

t o t h e i r p l a c e i n t h e j u r y b o x .

(whereupon , the ju ry en te red the cour t room,

i n s t r u c t i o n s o f t h e c o u r t w e r e r e a d a n d a r e n o t

7

8

9

to p roceed .1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

a p a r t o f t h i s t r a n s c r i p t i o n . T h e r e a f t e r ,

p roceed ings resumed as fo l lows : )

THE COURT: A t t h i s t i m e , M s . G u l l e t t , y o u m a y

read the In fo rmat ion and the p lea o f the de fendan t ,

fo l l owed by your open ing s ta tement .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , J u d g e ,

i n t h e D i s t r i c t c o u r t o f t h e E l e v e n t h J u d i c i a l

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

D i s t r i c t o f t h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a , s i t t i n g i n a n d f o r

Wa s h i n g t o n C o u n t y. T h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a , p l a i n t i f f ,

versus Michae l Er ic Ne lson, de fendant . Case Number

2 3

2 4

2 5
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C F - 2 0 2 1 - 3 0 4 .1

I n f o r m a t i o n f o r C o u n t 1 , v i o l a t i o n o f O k l a h o m a

s t a t u t e v i a c o m p u t e r, S e c t i o n 2 1 o . s . s e c t i o n 1 9 5 8 , a

State o f Ok lahoma, County o f Washington, I ,

W i l l i a m B . D r a k e , t h e u n d e r s i g n e d d i s t r i c t a t t o r n e y o f

sa id coun ty, i n the name and by the au thor i t y o f the S ta te

o f O k l a h o m a , g i v e i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t i n s a i d c o u n t y o f

Washington and in the s ta te o f Ok lahoma, Michael Er ic

N e l s o n d i d t h e n a n d t h e r e , u n l a w f u l l y , w i l l f u l l y ,

know ing l y, and w rong fu l l y, commi t t he c r imes o f :

C o u n t 1 , v i o l a t i o n o f O k l a h o m a s t a t u t e v i a

compu te r, a f e l ony, on o r be tween t he 1s t day o f l une ,

2020 , and t he 6 th day o f Sep tembe r, 2000 , and o r 2022 ,

d id un law fu l l y commun ica te by e -ma i l , acompu te r sys tem,

f o r t h e p u r p o s e o f u s i n g s u c h a c c e s s f o r s t a l k i n g i n

v i o l a t i on o f Ok lahoma S ta tu te Ti t l e 21 O .S . Sec t i on 1173 ,

W i l l i a m D . D r a k e , D i s t r i c t A t t o r n e y, s i g n e d b y Z o e

G u l l e t t , A s s i s t a n t D i s t r i c t A t t o r n e y .

To t h i s c h a r g e , t h e d e f e n d a n t h a s e n t e r e d a p l e a o f

2

3

f e l o n y .4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

n o t g u i l t y .2 0

Lad ies and gen t l emen , t ha t i s t he i n f o rma t i on o r

t h e I n d i c t m e n t i n t h i s c a s e , a n d t h a t i s w h a t t h i s c a s e i s

As you heard yes te rday a t vo i r d i re , we ta l ked a

l o t a b o u t h a r a s s m e n t , w e t a l k e d a l o t a b o u t s t a l k i n g , w e

t a l k e d a l o t a b o u t c o m p u t e r s .

2 1

2 2

a b o u t .2 3

2 4

And as you-al l know, we2 5
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l i v e i n a v e r y m o d e r n a g e w h e r e y o u ' r e a b l e t o s t a l k

someone, you' re able to harass someone wi thout being in

t h e i r p h y s i c a l p r e s e n c e , a n d t h a t ' s w h a t t h i s c a s e i s

a b o u t .

1

2

3

4

T h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a h a s a s p e c i fi c s t a t u t e f o r

u s i n g a c o m p u t e r t o v i o l a t e a n o t h e r s t a t u t e t h a t t h e S t a t e

i n t h i s c a s e t h a t w e a r e p u t t i n g f o r w a r d

t o y o u i s t h a t M r. N e l s o n u s e d a c o m p u t e r t o s t a l k C y n t h i a

a n d A n t h e m B l a n c h a r d .

Yo u ' r e g o i n g t o h e a r f r o m a n u m b e r o f S t a t e ' s

wi tnesses who are go ing to te11 you about the re ign o f

te r ror tha t Mr. Ne lson has had aga ins t Ms. B lanchard and

M r. B l a n c h a r d f o r t h e l a s t , a p p r o x i m a t e l y, f o u r t o fi v e

T h e y ' r e g o i n g t o t e l l y o u a b o u t v o i c e m a i l s ,

e - m a i l s , a n d c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r s w h o h a v e b e e n — t h a t h a v e

b e e n se n t t o t h e v i c t i ms i n t h i s ca se , a s w e l l a s o th e r

p e o p l e t h a t t h e v i c t i m s k n o w, a n d a c o u p l e o f p e o p l e t h a t

t h e v i c t i m s d i d n ' t k n o w b e f o r e t h e b e g i n n i n g o f t h i s c a s e .

They ' re go ing to te l l you abou t how e -ma i l s and

phone ca l ls have been sent to the i r personal phones and to

Yo u ' r e g o i n g

t o h e a r a b o u t h o w M r . N e l s o n h a s n e v e r s e t f o o t i n t h e

5

6

o f O k l a h o m a h a s .7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 y e a r s .

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

addresses tha t they d id no t share w i th h im.2 1

2 2

s t a t e o f O k l a h o m a , i n t h e c i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e , u n t i l t h i s

c a s e w a s fi l e d .

Ms. B lanchard is go ing to te l l you about how she

2 3

2 4

2 5
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moved to Bar t lesv i l le in May of 2020, and how she received

v a r i o u s e - m a i l s a s s o c i a t e d — o r d i f f e r e n t e - m a i l a c c o u n t s

1

2

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h M r. N e l s o n t h a t i n c l u d e v i l e a c c u s a t i o n s ,

and that on those e-mails were various people, not just

h e r s e l f , i n c l u d i n g b u s i n e s s p a r t n e r s , s h a r e h o l d e r s o f h e r

business, fami ly, f r iends, as wel l as acouple of media

3

4

5

6

7 s o u r c e s .

S h e ' s g o i n g t o t e l l y o u a b o u t r e c e i v i n g a v o i c e m a i l

f r om the de fendan t and how on tha t vo i cema i l —you ' re

8

9

g o i n g t o h e a r t h e v o i c e m a i l — t h e d e f e n d a n t t a l k s a b o u t a

b lood feud be tween h is fami l y and her fami l y.

1 0

She 's go ing

t o t e l l y o u a b o u t o p e n i n g u p a b u s i n e s s i n B a r t l e s v i l l e

1 1

1 2

r i g h t o v e r o n F r a n k P h i l l i p s i n t h e o l d c o u r t h o u s e ,

going to te l l you about how they were get t ing some

pub l i c i t y f r om open ing up tha t bus iness he re t h rough the

Examine r En te rp r i se and the Ba r t l esv i l l e Rad io , how the re

w e r e a c o u p l e o f a r t i c l e s w r i t t e n a b o u t t h e m , t h a t t h o s e

a r t i c l e s w e r e p u b l i s h e d o n l i n e , a n d t h a t t h e y r e c e i v e d —

t h a t s h e r e c e i v e d a c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r f r o m t h e d e f e n d a n t t o

S h e ' s g o i n g t o t e l l y o u a b o u t t h a t l e t t e r ,

a n d t h e n y o u ' r e g o i n g t o g e t t o s e e t h e l e t t e r, w h a t i t

s a y s , a l l t h e a c c u s a t i o n s i n i t , a l l t h e t h i n g s t h a t i t

S h e ' s1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

t h a t a d d r e s s .2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 s a y s .

Yo u ' r e t h e n g o i n g t o fi n d o u t a b o u t a n e - m a i l t h a t

w a s s e n t t o t h e c i t y m a n a g e r, M i k e B a i l e y, t e l l i n g t h e

2 4

2 5
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city manager a11 these vile things about the Blanchards,

abou t Cyn th ia B lancha rd , abou t t he i r bus iness , abou t t he

new business that opened up on Frank Phillips,

going to tell you about how they had to get the city

A t t o r n e y i n v o l v e d .

Yo u ' r e g o i n g t o h e a r f r o m a c r i m i n a l i s t w i t h O S B I

who 's go ing to exp la in to you tha t she rece ived

Mr. Ne lson 's phones , ana lyzed those phones , took da ta o f f

o f those phones , and re tu rned tha t da ta to the

B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e D e p a r t m e n t , s p e c i fi c a l l y t o D e t e c t i v e

Lewis , who 's here .

1

2

3 T h e y ' r e

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

And then Detec t i ve Lewis i s go ing to take the s tand

and he's going to tel l you how he poured over 96,000 pages

o f d a t a , l o o k e d t h r o u g h a l l t h a t d a t a , a n d f o u n d t h a t

M r. N e l s o n , t h r o u g h h i s p h o n e s , s e a r c h e d B a r t l e s v i l l e ,

Cynth ia and Anthem Blanchard, and HeraSof t , which is the

company tha t i s ove r on F rank Ph i l l i ps .

F i n a l l y, y o u ' r e g o i n g t o h e a r f r o m t w o i n d i v i d u a l s

who are shareholders of the companies owned by Cynthia and

Anthem Blanchard who were contacted in September of 2022,

O n e w a s c o n t a c t e d a n d h a d a c o n v e r s a t i o n

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

by Mr. Nelson,

over the phone wi th Mr. Nelson, who, once again , sa id

th i ngs o f v i l e na tu re abou t t he B lancha rds , and he ' s go ing

t o t e s t i f y a s t o w h a t t h a t c o n v e r s a t i o n w a s a b o u t .

And then you ' re go ing to

2 1

2 2

2 3

H e ' s a2 4

sha reho lde r i n the i r company.2 5
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hear avoicemail that was left on the phone of another

shareholder. And you'11 hear what Mr. Nelson has to say

a b o u t t h e B l a n c h a r d s t o t h a t i n d i v i d u a l .

A t t he end o f th i s , I 'm go ing to ask you to keep in

mind everything that you hear, everything that you see,

b e c a u s e w e t a l k e d a b o u t i n v o i r d i r e t h a t s t a l k i n g ,

h a r a s s m e n t i s n o t j u s t a o n e - t i m e t h i n g . I t i s o v e r t i m e ,

i t i s a c o u r s e t h r o u g h t i m e .

S o t h e r e w i l l b e a b e g i n n i n g o f a s o r t , b u t i t ' s

no t t he beg inn ing , t he re w i l l be t h i ngs t ha t happened , and

t h e n t h e r e w i l l b e t h e s e t h i n g s a t t h e e n d t h a t w e ' r e

g o i n g t o t a l k a b o u t . A n d i a s k y o u t o c o n s i d e r a l l o f

t hose as you l i s t en t o t h i s t oday, because a t t he end o f

t h i s t r i a l , t h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a i s g o i n g t o a s k y o u t o

find Mr. Ne lson gu i l t y, and we a re go ing to ask to you

assess pun i shmen t app rop r i a te f o r t ha t .

Thank you, ladies and gent lemen.

THE COURT: M r . A d a m s .

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

M i c h a e l N e l s o n ' s a w h i s t l e - b l o w e r .1 9 M R . A D A M S :

Cynthia Blanchard is the one -- and her husband and aman

by the name of Chad Koehn and agroup of fr iends are

p e o p l e t h a t h e ' s t r y i n g t o b l o w t h e w h i s t l e a b o u t . T h e y

wen t t o t he Ba r t l esv i l l e Po l i ce Depa r tmen t even be fo re

they had any assoc ia t i on t o do w i t h Ba r t l esv i l l e because

Cyn th ia B lanchard ' s f rom here , so tha t they cou ld comp la in

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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and c la im tha t they were av ic t im because they were

attempting to silence Mr. Nelson, and they were attempting

t o s t o p h i m f r o m i n f o r m i n g p e o p l e a b o u t t h e i r c r i m i n a l —

f r a u d u l e n t c r i m i n a l b e h a v i o r .

1

2

3

4

S o h e r e ' s w h a t t h i s c a s e i s a b o u t a n d h e r e ' s w h a t I5

an t ic ipa te the ev idence to show. I t ' s avery confus ing

c a s e a n d I ' m b o i l i n g i t d o w n , s o I ' m g o i n g t o t r y t o g i v e

i t t o y o u a s c l e a r a s I — a s c l e a r l y a s I c a n .

in November o f 2018 , okay, M ichae l Ne lson i s l i v ing

in Las Vegas . The B lanchards have ahouse in Santa

M o n i c a , b u t i t ' s u n c l e a r e x a c t l y w h e r e t h e y l i v e . T h e y ' r e

p e o p l e t h a t c a l l t h e m s e l v e s p e r p e t u a l t r a v e l e r s , a n d t h a t

wou ld desc r i bed the B lancha rds . Okay?

Anthem Blanchard, the husband, which he may or may

n o t t e s t i f y, h e s a y s o n h i s F a c e b o o k t h a t h e l i v e s i n

Te x a s . O k a y ? I ' m n o t s u r e w h e r e t h e y l i v e , e v e n t o t h i s

day. They fi l l ed ou t pape rwork i n Pue r to R ico and had an

a p a r t m e n t i n P u e r t o R i c o s o t h e y c o u l d g e t a t a x b e n e fi t

in Puer to R ico and no t have to pay taxes , okay? And so

t h e y — t h e r e ' s s t u f f o n t h e P u e r t o R i c a n w e b s i t e t h a t

s a y s t h e y l i v e i n P u e r t o R i c o .

I t ' s my unders tand ing tha t they a l so had an

apartment in Dubai for the same reason. And based on

the i r soc ia l med ia pos ts , you can p rove tha t t hey were

t h e r e f o r m o n t h s .
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But they got sued in the cayman Is lands, okay,

because they had acompany there . And they a lso - - when

t h e y g o t s u e d — a t t h e t i m e t h e y ' r e c l a i m i n g t h e y l i v e

he re i n Ba r t l esv i l l e , t hey go t sued i n Texas by Amer i can

Exp ress f o r ove r ahund red t housand do l l a r s , and t he

l a w s u i t t h e r e a l l e g e d t h a t t h e r e s i d e n c y w a s — a t l e a s t

An them's res idency was Texas . And we ' l l be ab le to ask

Ms. B lanchard whether her and her husband l ived together.

I t i s r a t h e r c o n f u s i n g , s o t h i s i s o n e o f t h e

t h i n g s I ' m h o p i n g t o fi g u r e o u t d u r i n g t h e t r i a l , b u t I

d o n ' t w a n t t o g e t o f f t r a c k .

Michael Nelson is l i v ing in Las Vegas in November

o f 2018 . He ' s wo rk i ng f o r one o f t he va r i ous , many

d i f fe ren t , compan ies tha t the B lanchards own because they

k e e p s t a r t i n g c o m p a n i e s — t h e y ' l l s t a r t n e w c o m p a n i e s ,

start new companies, start new companies, some companies

w i l l m e r g e i n t o o t h e r c o m p a n i e s . I t ' s v e r y d i f fi c u l t t o

figure i t ou t —what 's go ing on. But he 's work ing fo r a

company by the name of Anthem vault.

An them B lanchard i s the adop t i ve son o f aguy tha t

was rea l l y invo lved in the go ld indus t ry, and he was named

Anthem. Supposedly named after Ayn Rand's book Anthem.

Okay? He's the husband, and he was invo lved wi th the go ld

business. He met Michael in Las Vegas, so he had what he

w o u l d — w h a t h e d i d i s — t h i s A n t h e m V a u l t b u s i n e s s .
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what they would do is they would produce gold. They would

se11 gold, but they would buy abar of gold, okay, and

t h e n t h e y w o u l d s e l l — l e t y o u b u y a p i e c e o f i t .

So, l ike, you could buy, l ike, agram of gold out

o f t h i s k i l o b a r . B u t t h e i s s u e w i t h a b u s i n e s s l i k e t h a t

1

2

3

4

5

i s :6 Are you sel l ing more gold —because nobody knows how

m u c h y o u ' r e s e l l i n g — t h a n y o u a c t u a l l y p o s s e s s ?

we l l , M ichae l ' s work ing fo r the company and he 's a

One of the things he does is he

so he w ro te t hem ap iece o f ap rog ram

w h i c h i s b a s e d u p o n b l o c k c h a i n t e c h n o l o g y, w h i c h I d o n ' t

But my understanding

i s t h e y g o t t h e s e — b l o c k c h a i n i s t h e s a m e t h i n g l i k e

these Bi tco in which has been in the news la te ly wi th some

o f t h e s e — s o m e o f t h e s e i s s u e s .

7
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9 c o m p u t e r p r o g r a m m e r.

1 0 p r o g r a m s c o m p u t e r s .

1 1

p re tend t o know awho le l o t abou t .1 2

1 3

1 4

And the techno logy ' s

supposed to secu re —be secu red to t e l l peop le wha t

y o u ' r e a c t u a l l y d o i n g .

1 5
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1 7

S o h e s e n d s t h i s b l o c k c h a i n — h e b u i l d s t h i s1 8

b l o c k c h a i n s o t h a t h e c a n v e r i f y, b a s i c a l l y, i f y o u d o —

i f y o u d o a n a u d i t , t h a t . H e y, t h i s i s t h e a m o u n t o f g o l d

we ac tua l l y have , t h i s i s t he amoun t o f go ld t ha t we ' ve

a c t u a l l y s o l d .

1 9

2 0

2 1

And then the auditors can come in and say,

w e l l , t h i s i s w h a t t h e y d i d , a n d j u s t t o p r o v e t o p e o p l e

t h a t . H e y, I ' m n o t s e l l i n g y o u , y o u k n o w, s o m e t h i n g t h a t I

T h a t w a s w h a t — t h a t w a s k i n d o f t h e s t a r t i n g
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d o n ' t o w n .2 5
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o f i t .1

w e l l , t h e B l a n c h a r d s n e v e r w e r e i n t e r e s t e d i n

a c t u a l l y p u t t i n g t h a t i n t o p l a c e . T h e y n e v e r w o u l d h i r e

an accoun tan t t o do t he aud i t o r any th i ng . Bu t t hey had

the gold and they would put the gold up on video where

people could see the gold. You can see the gold. Idon' t

know where it 's at, but you could see it —that they got

gold. Hey, they got some gold up here, give me your money

o n t h e s p o t . Yo u c a n t r u s t m e , I ' v e g o t t h e g o l d ,

so wha t happens i s th i s b lockcha in techno logy i s

t h e s a m e t y p e o f t e c h n o l o g y t h a t ' s u s e d w i t h , l i k e ,

c r y p t o c u r r e n c y, F T X , y o u k n o w, s o m e o f t h i s s t u f f t h a t ' s

g o i n g o n , B i t c o i n , a l l t h i s s t u f f , y o u k n o w . I t ' s r a t h e r

c o n f u s i n g t o s o m e b o d y l i k e m e . A n d I t h i n k t h a t t h e

theory i s tha t they send th i s cha in ou t and peop le do

t h e s e c o m p l i c a t e d m a t h c o m p u t a t i o n t o v e r i f y t h a t i t ' s

a c c u r a t e o r s o m e t h i n g . I d o n ' t k n o w . B u t t h a t ' s — i t ' s

based on tha t techno logy.

So what happens is , i s that they want to issue a

c r y p t o c u r r e n c y. S o t h e y h a v e M i c h a e l w r i t e t h e

c r y p t o c u r r e n c y t e c h n o l o g y, s o h e w r i t e s i t , a n d i t i s

a c t u a l l y a l o t l e s s c o m p l i c a t e d t h a n t h e o t h e r o n e t h a t h e

w r o t e . S o h e w r i t e s t h i s c r y p t o c u r r e n c y t e c h n o l o g y, a n d

they issue th is , and i t launches in November o f 2018, and

i t ' s ca l led HERC, wh ich i s l i ke H-E-R-C, HERC. Okay?
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S o t h e n l e t m e p i c k u p t h e s t o r y h e r e . T h e y ' r e

going to have acompany conference cal l on November the

8th of 2018. And in preparation for the company

con fe rence ca l l , M ichae l sends an e -ma i l t o Cyn th ia

Blanchard, which we should hear from, and aguy by the

n a m e o f P a u l A u b e r t o r A u b e r t . I t ' s A - u - B - E - R - T . A n d I

m a y b e m i s p r o n o u n c i n g i t . H e ' s a l a w y e r . H e ' s t h e s e n i o r

vice president of Anthem Vault, which is launching this

c r y p t o c u r r e n c y, a n d t h e g e n e r a l c o u n s e l , o k a y ? A n d h e ' s

i n T e x a s w h e r e A n t h e m c l a i m s t h a t h e l i v e d . A n d I t h i n k

1
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1 0

th is company was incorpora ted in Texas , th is An them vau l t1 1

1 2 c o m p a n y .

So what happens is Michael has heard f rom ta lk ing

to peop le in the company tha t what ' s go ing on i s tha t

Anthem, which is Cynth ia 's husband that the company 's

n a m e d a f t e r, h a s b e e n g e t t i n g i n d i v i d u a l s , i n c l u d i n g

p e o p l e h e r e i n B a r t l e s v i l l e , o k a y, t h a t w e r e a s s o c i a t e d —

because Cyn th ia ' s f r om, I t h i nk , Dewey o r some th ing , and

she grew up here,

some of her fami ly has worked for her.

B u t s h e ' s — h e ' s g e t t i n g t h o s e p e o p l e t o g e t o n

t h e — t h e y c a l l t h e m w a l l e t s ,

s e l l t h e s e c r y p t o c u r r e n c y t h i n g s .

I t ' s n o t l i k e t h e s t o c k m a r k e t , b u t t h e y g e t o n t h e s e

w a l l e t s a n d — t o b u y t h i s c r y p t o c u r r e n c y t h a t t h e y ' r e
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And so she's got fami ly down here, and1 9

2 0

2 1

I t ' s , l i k e , w h e r e t h e y2 2

I t ' s l i k e a w a l l e t .2 3
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Issu ing. Because they ' re issu ing th is cryptocurrency at

40 cents apiece to the publ ic, they're sel l ing for 20

cents apiece to people that they know, and they're trying

to pump up the p r i ce , okay?

S o w h a t t h e y ' r e d o i n g , i t ' s a f o r m o f — k i n d o f a

var ia t ion of what you would ca l l "pump and dump" wi th the

s t o c k m a r k e t . I t ' s a v a r i a t i o n o f a s e l f - d e a l i n g , y o u

k n o w , t y p e o f t h i n g . O k a y ? A n d — b u t i t ' s f o o l i s h i n

the sense that with the blockchain technology, people that

r e a l l y k n o w w h a t y o u ' r e t a l k i n g a b o u t o r t h a t r e a l l y

understand i t , not somebody l ike me, but somebody that

r e a l l y u n d e r s t a n d s w h a t ' s g o i n g o n , t h e y w i l l b e a b l e t o

t e l l s o m e t h i n g ' s n o t r i g h t a b o u t t h i s b e c a u s e t h e r e ' s a l l

t h e s e t r a n s a c t i o n s t h a t a r e c o m i n g f r o m t h i s s l i g h t f e w

a n d i t d o e s n ' t a p p e a r t o b e o r g a n i c , I g u e s s y o u c o u l d

s a y . o k a y ?
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S o M i c h a e l c a t c h e s w i n d o f t h i s , t h a t t h i s i s g o i n g

o n . o k a y ? A n d , i n f a c t . A n t h e m h a d a s k e d h i m t o d o i t ,

t oo . So M ichae l sends an e -ma i l t o two peop le . He sends

i t t o C y n t h i a , b e c a u s e C y n t h i a ' s , l i k e , t h e p r e s i d e n t o f

the company, and he sends i t to the genera l counse l , th is

Paul Auber t guy down in Texas. And he sends i t to them in

p r e p a r a t i o n f o r t h i s m e e t i n g t h a t t h e y ' v e g o t c o m i n g u p ,

t h i s — I ' m c a l l i n g i t a m e e t i n g , i t ' s a — h e s e n d s i t

t o t h e m i n p r e p a r a t i o n f o r t h i s c o n f e r e n c e c a l l t h a t t h e y
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1 got coming up on the 8th.

And he just lays i t out to them —let me just tel l

you this: She talked about the 96,000 pages that they got

o f f o f h i s phone . Th is w i l l —th is w i l l be an i ssue , so

let me take aside step and explain this so you guys can

p a y a t t e n t i o n t o t h i s .

They've got h is phone when they arrested h im, and

t h e y s e a r c h e d h i s p h o n e s . T h e y g o t — I t h i n k t h e y t o o k ,

l i ke , 11 o r 12 g i g o f f h i s phone . He had an iPhone 8and

an iPhone 7that had 128 gig apiece. He had almost 250

g igs wor th o f da ta . So the re ' s a lo t o f s tu f f tha t they

d i d n ' t g e t o f f t h e p h o n e s , o k a y ?

B u t i n h i s r e p o r t — a n d I s a y t h a t b e c a u s e o f

this: B e c a u s e i n t h i s r e p o r t t h a t t h e y h a v e t h e r e — a n d

I a n t i c i p a t e t h e e v i d e n c e w i l l s h o w t h a t i t ' s o n p a g e

5 3 , 8 4 6 - - t h e r e i s a l o g o f e - m a i l s t h a t h e - - t h a t h e

s e n t t o M r. A u b e r t a n d — a n d t o C y n t h i a . A n d t h e r e a s o n

t h a t I b r i n g t h i s u p i s b e c a u s e w h e n y o u l o o k a t i t o n t h e

l o g o f t h e e - m a i l s — t h e r e ' s a c t u a l l y t w o e - m a i l s . I ' l l

ge t to the second one —i t pu ts the t ime zone as UTC, in

s o m e u n i v e r s a l t i m e z o n e c o d e o r s o m e t h i n g , I — t h e

c o m p u t e r s — i n s t e a d o f , l i k e , e a s t e r n o r c e n t r a l t i m e o r

w h a t e v e r l i k e t h a t .
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w e l l , t h a t a c t u a l l y m e a n s t h a t t h e e - m a i l s t h a t w e

h a v e — t h a t M r . N e l s o n s t i l l h a s , y o u k n o w, l i k e , o n h i s
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c o m p u t e r a n d s t u f f , t h a t i t m a y s h o w a d i f f e r e n t d a t e .

O k a y ? B u t I j u s t w a n t t o h i g h l i g h t t h i s t o y o u g u y s a n d

1 * 11 t r y t o a s k t h e q u e s t i o n s t o f e r r e t o u t t h e

i n f o r m a t i o n s o w e c a n , y o u k n o w, s o r t a l l t h i s o u t .

But anyway, le t me ge t back to i t - - to the main

1
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p o i n t .6

S o i n t h i s e - m a i l t o P a u l — a n d h e s e n d s i t t o7

C y n t h i a ,

hoping that they can kind of get Anthem onboard, you know,

because the cryptocurrency thing, as some of you guys may

k n o w, i f y o u d o i t r i g h t a n d y o u g e t a g o o d o n e , t h e y a l l

made a l o t o f money, bu t j us t be hones t abou t i t , you

k n o w .

NOW, he doesn't send it to Anthem because he's8

9
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And tha t ' s wha t Mr. Ne lson i s wan t ing .

S o h e s e n d s t h i s e - m a i l t o

H e ' s w a n t s1 4

t o b e h o n e s t a b o u t i t .1 5

Cynth ia , the husband o f Anthem (s ic ) , and to the genera l

c o u n s e l , k i n d o f , y o u k n o w, l e t m e g e t t h i s g u y i n l i n e

a n d t h i s w h o l e t h i n g w i l l b e g o o d . A n d h e a l s o t e l l s t h e m

t h a t h e w a n t s — h e t e l l s P a u l , y o u k n o w , i w a n t a — i

w a n t t h e p h o n e c a l l t o b e h i g h l y p r o d u c t i v e , o k a y ? A n d

he 's ta lk ing about the November the 8 th phone ca l l .

B u t i n — s o m e t i m e s , a s y o u w i l l p r o b a b l y fi g u r e

o u t t h a t M r . N e l s o n c a n b e a l i t t l e s t r o n g w i l l e d , o k a y ?

A l i t t l e — a l i t t l e M i c h a e l N e l s o n s o m e t i m e s g o e s a l o n g

w a y . o k a y ? H e h a s t o s p r e a d h i m s e l f o u t a l i t t l e b i t . I
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unde rs tand t ha t myse l f .

Bu t , anyway, he goes o f f i n th i s e -ma i l and he

starts saying. It should be clear as day to all employees

not to trade this token on these exchanges,

looks l ike market manipulat ion, and i t 's not organic i f we

are pumping the token p r i ce i s one o f the th ings tha t he

H e ' s l i k e . L o o k , w e c a n ' t d o t h i s , a n d d o n ' t
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4 B e s i d e s , i t
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t e l l s t h e m .7

b e d o i n g i t .8

He goes on in to th is e -ma i l and he says —and he 's

te l l i ng t h i s t o t he gene ra l counse l o f t he company and to

the p res iden t o f the company, Cyn th ia B lanchard , who 's

also the wife of the CEO of the company,

them. Anthem's asking me to promote HERC to pump the price

9
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1 1

A n d h e ' s t e l l i n g1 2

1 3

and ge t vo lume t rad ing , i s d i rec t ing me to do someth ing

w h i c h I b e l i e v e i s i l l e g a l a n d m a n i p u l a t i o n ,

t hem. Hey, t h i s i s whe re I 'm a t .

1 4

A n d h e t e l l s1 5

A n d i t ' s a l o n g e - m a i l ,

wh i ch , you know, hope fu l l y we can ge t i n to t h roughou t t h i s

1 6

1 7

1 8 c a s e .

so that happens on the 8th.

yo u t h a t M r. N e l so n , h e ma y n o t l i ke t h e d e sc r i p t i o n , i s a

b i t na i ve , you know, be l i ev ing tha t a l l he had to do was

p o i n t o u t t h a t i t w a s i l l e g a l a n d t h e y w o u l d s t o p i t ,

b u t - -

N o w, I w o u l d s u b m i t t o1 9
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SO l e t ' s f as t - f o rwa rd t o Feb rua ry t he 24 th o f 2019 .

Okay? So tha t ' s abou t th ree months la te r, maybe th ree and
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a h a l f , I d o n ' t k n o w . F e b r u a r y 2 4 t h , 2 0 1 9 . M i c h a e l s e n d s

a tes t message to aboard member o f An them Vau l t . Now,

Michael used to be on the board, but he wasn' t on the

board anymore, okay? And they all kind of started backing

away f rom him when he —when he staked out h is posi t ion.

And he a lso, by the way, in the cal l on November the 8th,

h e s a i d i t a l l t o e v e r y b o d y, h e y, t h i s i s — n o , c a n ' t d o

i t , n o .
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S o w h a t h a p p e n s i s — s o M i c h a e l h a s a c a l l ,

sends atest message to aguy by the name of Mark

I m a y b e

9 H e

1 0

Hea two le , wh i ch i s l i ke H -E -A -T-w -o -L -E .

I 'm sure Ms. Blanchard can pronounce

1 1

m i s p r o n o u n c i n g i t .

i t p r o p e r l y .

1 2

1 3

S o , a n y w a y, h e s e n d s t h i s — h e s e n d s h i m a t e x t

m e s s a g e t o h i m . A n d i n t h i s t e s t m e s s a g e , M i c h a e l t e l l s

t hem —you know, he says . Hey, Mark , I sen t you a

b i r t h d a y t e x t , I d i d n ' t h e a r b a c k f r o m y o u . I r e c e i v e d a n

e - m a i l I ' d l i k e t o d i s c u s s w i t h y o u o n t h e D L . A n d t h e n

he pu t s —you know, f o r peop le l i ke me —down l ow, you

k n o w , p r i v a t e l y — c o n c e r n i n g a t h r e e - m i l l i o n - d o l l a r

i n v e s t m e n t . T h i s i s M i c h a e l N e l s o n , w h i c h t o —

You know, Mr. Hea two le responds back , M i ke , I j us t

l a n d e d i n L A X , I ' l l c a l l y o u w h e n I ' v e g o t t o m y c a r,

o k a y ? S o t h i s — s o w h a t h a p p e n s , M i c h a e l ' s t a l k i n g o n

the phone to Mark Heatwole who's aboard member, and at
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2 0

the same time, he's texting with both Anthem and Cynthia

a b o u t t h i s t h r e e - m i 1 1 i o n - d o 1 1 a r i n v e s t m e n t .

1

2

And t he dea l i s , i s t ha t he has l ea rned , okay, f r om

a n o t h e r i n d i v i d u a l t h a t t h e r e w a s a t h r e e - m i l l i o n d o l l a r

3

4

investment and that that money was making market , that

they were using that money to pump up the token, okay?

which got up to 54 cents and is now, l i ke , 1 / lOOOth o f a

p e n n y. I f y o u h a d a t h o u s a n d o f t h e m , y o u ' d h a v e a l i t t l e

o v e r a p e n n y , o k a y ? B u t t h a t ' s — s o t h a t ' s w h a t — s o

t h a t ' s w h a t s e t s t h i s w h o l e t h i n g u p .

Now, he 's work ing for the company at the t ime,

okay? And so he's on the phone with Mark Heatwole, and

M a r k t e l l s — a n d M a r k ' s , l i k e , w e l l , w h a t ' s t h e p r o b l e m ?

You know, what 's the prob lem? Yeah, you know, but what 's

the p rob lem w i th tha t , you know? we l l , a t t he same t ime

he's texting Anthem Blanchard and Cynthia Blanchard, and

he 's ask ing where 's the three mi l l ion do l la rs? Iknow

i t ' s no t mak ing ma rke t because I have e -ma i l s t o Pau l —

the general counsel , the one that he sent back in November

—in aphone convo with Paul he assured me the company

w o u l d n o t m a k e m a r k e t .

N O W, s o m e t h i n g I n e g l e c t e d t o t e l l y o u t h e fi r s t

t i m e i s t h a t h e f o l l o w e d u p t h a t e - m a i l w i t h P a u l w i t h a

t e l e p h o n e c a l l , o k a y, b e f o r e t h e b i g c a l l , y o u k n o w, a n d

they —there were other e-mails back and forth.
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1 Anthem responds, who has aTexas phone number, Calm

the Fdown or you're fired r ight now.

And then he calls him abigot.

And Iw i l l make su re you have un —al l you have unearned

is given back to the company,

t h e F n o w .

2 T h e n h e c a l l s h i m

a n M F ' e r .3 And he says

4

YOU better shape up right5

6

I m e a n , h e ' s n o t u s i n g t h e a b b r e v i a t i o n s , b u t I

don ' t wan t to say tha t l anguage .

And then, you know, he starts tell ing him that

he' l l make sure that he has to pay back al l unearned money

to the company,

know, Michae l doesn ' t have the resources tha t the

Blanchards do, you know.

And, you know, Michael responds, says. Hey, you

A f t e r a l l t h e s e y e a r s - - h e ' d b e e n

w i t h t hem, l i ke , seven yea rs —and you t h i nk you can t ake

from my fami ly, you know.

B lanchard te l l s h im . Hey, you know, acco rd ing to the

c o m p a n y r e c o r d s — n o t t h a t i t ' s t r u e — b u t a c c o r d i n g t o

the company records and accounts, that they've been way

overpay ing h im, and tha t you work so l i t t l e the admin team

They put him

on sabbat ica l when they found out he wouldn ' t go a long

w i t h t h e i r l i t t l e c r i m i n a l s c h e m e .

He goes on to te l l them —and then Michae l says .

7

8

9

1 0

I t ' s , y o u k n o w , a fi n a n c i a l t h r e a t .1 1 Y O U

1 2

1 3

1 4

k n o w , t h a t ' s a t h r e a t .1 5

1 6

H e ' s , l i k e , i t ' s p e r s o n a l .1 7 s o

1 8

1 9
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thought you were on sabbat ica l , yada, yada.2 2
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Wel l , federa l cour t then. Michael 's threatening them to

r e p o r t t h i s t o t h e f e d e r a l a u t h o r i t i e s , w e ' l l t a k e t h i s

to federal court if you want —you know, if you guys are

going to do th is , to which Anthem said - - you know, he

re sp o n d s a n d t e l l s h i m . Yo u ' r e l u cky i f t h e co mp a n y d i d n ' t

take back -- in al l caps which they say is, l ike, yel l ing

i n t e x t m e s s a g e s — h u n d r e d s o f t h o u s a n d s o f d o l l a r s . A n d

he says . Loony b in fo r you . And he l i kes to make fun o f

M i c h a e l s o m e t i m e s . A n d e v e n m a d e a c o m m e n t a b o u t s h o r t

b u s , t r y i n g t o c a l l h i m l i k e h e ' s , l i k e , y o u k n o w,

retarded on someth ing.

M i c h a e l i s u n d e t e r r e d , a s i s h i s p e r s o n a l i t y t o b e

u n d e t e r r e d , a n d h e j u s t a s k s , W h e r e ' s t h e t h r e e m i l l i o n

d o l l a r s ? A n d t h a t ' s w h e n A n t h e m s a y s . Yo u ' r e fi r e d , a n d

s t a r t s t e l l i n g h i m t o g e t a j o b a n d g o a s k h i s b r o t h e r f o r

a j o b , a n d a l l t h i s .

S o , n o w, t h a t ' s h o w h e g o t fi r e d v i a t e x t w h i l e

h e ' s t a l k i n g t o M a r k . T h e n , n e x t t h i n g y o u k n o w, t h e

B l a n c h a r d s g o i n t o t h i s , l i k e , d i s c r e d i t i n g M i c h a e l m o d e ,

okay? And wha t they do i s they s ta r t c la im ing tha t he was

fi red , no t because he was ask ing abou t t he t h ree m i l l i on ,

they c la im he was fi red because he th rea tened aboard

m e m b e r ' s l i f e o n a p h o n e c o n v e r s a t i o n . A n d t h i s M a r k g u y

s t a r t s — s t a r t s s a y i n g . O h , w e l l h e t h r e a t e n e d m y l i f e

a n d t h a t ' s w h y A n t h e m fi r e d h i m . A n d t h i s w o u l d l a t e r
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p u t I n t o a r e q u e s t f o r a r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r b y C y n t h i a

h e r s e l f . O k a y ?

And as Ihave a tendency to do , I l e f t ou t akey

1

2

3

p o i n t . o k a y ?4

A t one po in t du r ing the conversa t ion , An them

t h r e a t e n s M i c h a e l i n a n o t h e r w a y, n o t j u s t i n m o n e y. A n d

what he says to him is: B e c a u s e i f y o u t r y a n y t h i n g ,

t h e s e t e x t s a l r e a d y p r o v e y o u g u i l t y o f c o l l u s i o n . B u t h e

might have been exci ted when he typed i t because he d idn ' t

h i t — i n s t e a d o f h i t t i n g t h e s p a c e h e h i t t h e V, s o p r o v e

and you i s covered by aV, ins tead o f separa ted by a

s p a c e . B u t a n y w a y, p r o v e y o u g u i l t y. S o , b a s i c a l l y, w h a t

h e ' s s a y i n g i s . B u d , y o u b e t t e r s h u t u p , o r y o u ' r e g o i n g

t o fi n d y o u r s e l f c h a r g e d , t o o .

NOW, Michael had not sent that e-mai l to Blanchard

— t o A n t h e m . H e s e n t i t t o C y n t h i a . M a y b e w e c a n fi g u r e

o u t , y o u k n o w, w h o ' s — I d o n ' t k n o w, I ' d l i k e t o k n o w

whether Cynth ia ever had that d iscuss ion wi th Anthem or

no t , you know. Bu t anyway, so wha t happens —and l i ke I

s a i d , t h e l o g s i n t h e — o n t h e p h o n e t h a t — o u t o f t h i s

96 ,000 pages tha t they go t , the logs o f the phones , they

do the UTC t ime . Okay? So i t may show d i f f e ren t l y t han ,

you know, what he has to say.

Bu t anyway, M i chae l r e f o rwa rds o r r esends , I guess ,

I d o n ' t k n o w, h o w e v e r y o u c a l l i t , b u t h e s e n d s t h a t
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e-mail that he had previously sent to Cynthia and to the

general counsel, he sends it back, but this time he just

sends i t back to the genera l counse l . And he changes the

subject call , dot, dot, dot, remember this, you know.

T h i s i s m a r k e t m a n i p u l a t i o n , i t * s w r o n g / i l l e g a l , a n d y o u

had agreed tha t i t was wrong and i l l ega l .

He sends i t back to the genera l counse l , wh ich i s

M i c h a e l s a y i n g . H e y, b u d d y, I g o t p r o o f t h a t I w a s n ' t

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s s c h e m e , l w a r n e d y o u g u y s , t o l d y o u g u y s

no t t o be do i ng t h i s s cheme , no t t o be do i ng t h i s s t u f f .

S o — a n d — a n d h e ' s g o t t h e e - m a i l s . S o h e s e n d s i t t o

t hem say ing . Hey, you can ' t be cha rg i ng me , I go t p roo f ,

okay?

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

T h e y g o o n a c a m p a i g n a g a i n s t M i c h a e l . E v e n t u a l l y,

s h e r e q u e s t s a c i v i l h a r a s s m e n t r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r i n

C a l i f o r n i a . O k a y ? A n d s h e i s - - a n d a t t a c h e d t o t h e

c i v i l r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r i n C a l i f o r n i a , s h e h a s a —

statements f rom Paul , f rom Mark Heatwole, okay, the guy

tha t M ichae l was ta l k ing to when An them fi red h im . And

tha t ' s wha t he says i n h i s s ta temen t t ha t Cyn th ia has

a t t a c h e d t o h e r r e q u e s t f o r a r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r t h a t s h e ' s

a d o p t e d h e r b e l i e f i n . A n d h e s a y s . O h , d u r i n g t h e

c o n v e r s a t i o n h e g o t fi r e d . B u t t h e n i n t h e r e s t r a i n i n g

o r d e r , C y n t h i a c l a i m s t h a t h e a c t u a l l y g o t fi r e d f o r

t h r e a t e n i n g t h i s g u y, y o u k n o w.
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And also attached there are e-mails that Cynthia

and Anthem and Paul Aubert , th is lawyer down in Texas —

wh ich t he l awye r ' s a l o t be t t e r a t a r t i cu la t i ng i t i n a

way that Michael looks a lot bet ter than they are —they

s t a r t a t t a c h i n g l e t t e r s a n d e - m a i l s , a n d t h e y s t a r t e d

s e n d i n g t h e s e o u t — t h e s e e - m a i l s — a t t a c k i n g M i c h a e l .

And they s ta r t say ing tha t , you know, he th rea tened

our board of director, we documented this with the police,

a n d t h e y s t a r t s a y i n g t h a t w e fi l e d p o l i c e r e p o r t s a b o u t

h i m a n d t h e y a c c u s e h i m o f h a c k i n g — i n t o i l l e g a l h a c k i n g

the i r computers , and they accuse h im o f o ther - - mak ing —

mak ing c l a ims f r om ne fa r i ous ac t i v i t i e s be i ng commi t t ed by

t h e c o m p a n y. T h e y d i d n ' t u s e t h e w o r d " v i l e , " a n d t h i s

migh t be the on ly th ing tha t we w i l l ag ree on in the case ,

i s t h a t w h a t t h e y ' r e d o i n g i s v i l e , o k a y ? A n d h e ' s

m a k i n g v i l e a c c u s a t i o n s , b u t t h e y ' r e t r u e .

A n d — b u t t h e y c l a i m i t ' s n e f a r i o u s a c t i v i t i e s ,

a n d t h e y s t a r t s e n d i n g t h e s e o u t , I m e a n , t o l i t e r a l l y

j u s t h u n d r e d s o f p e o p l e , a l l t h e s e p e o p l e t h a t a r e i n t h e

commun i t y t ha t he ' s known fo r yea rs . They ' ve des t royed

h i s r e p u t a t i o n ,

w e l l , a l o t o f t h e s e p e o p l e h a v e g o t m o n e y i n v e s t e d

i n t h i s , t o o , a n d t h e y s t a r t b a s i c a l l y c l a i m i n g t h a t

M ichae l i s go ing to hu r t t he company, he ' s go ing to hu r t

o u r i n v e s t m e n t , h e ' s g o i n g t o — y o u k n o w, w e ' r e g o i n g t o
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lose money because of Michael, and he just gets attacked.

Imean , he ' s j us t pumme led .

And, eventual ly, what he does is he pu11s down a11

o f h i s s o c i a l m e d i a , a l l o f i t .

1

2

3

Doesn ' t want any t race

because i f he's —any trace at al l , then he' l l go ahead

and ge t a t tacked,

t o b e t h e r e t h a t h e k n e w b e f o r e t h a t h a d t r i e d t o — t r i e d

4

5

6 M i c h a e l i s t a l k i n g w i t h a g u y t h a t u s e d

7

to warn him, you need to stay away from these people,

these people are not who they pretend to be.

i s Tom winger t .

s t u f f - - i n s o m e o f t h e e - m a i l s a n d s t u f f .

8

A n d h i s n a m e9

A n d t h a t ' s i n — w i l l b e i n s o m e o f t h e1 0

1 1

S o , a n y w a y, w h a t h a p p e n s i s — I c a n f u l l y m o v e

t h i s — m o v e t h i s t h i n g a l o n g — i s t h e y g e t a — a n d

we ' l l be t a l k i ng abou t t hese messages and s t u f f , bu t t hey

get ae-mail from an individual by the name of Brett

Dunaway, and he 's f rom Miss iss ipp i ,

bunch o f bus inesses i n M iss i ss ipp i , and he ' s one o f t he

B l a n c h a r d s ' a s s o c i a t e s a n d f r i e n d s a n d h e ' s i n v e s t e d i n
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1 5

And Dunaway runs a1 6
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the i r company.1 9

And wha t had happened , i t ' s j us t l i ke M ichae l had

though t t ha t he cou ld t r us t t he gene ra l counse l and the

other board member, Tom Winger t , who Mike —had t r ied to

warn M ichae l be fo re , he —Tom Winger t reached ou t t o th i s

Dunaway and he te l l s h im. Hey, the B lanchards a re s t i l l

i n t o r o b b i n g .
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We need to get some lawyers together get some

money together, and we need to go sue these people before

t h e y b l o w i t a l l .

And I—we don't know anything about the

conversat ion, but we know that Dunaway sent that to Anthem

because Cyn th i a a t t ached i t i n he r r eques t f o r t he

A n d A n t h e m s e n t t h a t a n d t u r n e d t o —

And i n t ha t , Dunaway te l l s

h im , he goes , t hey need to be s topped —ta l k ing abou t

M ichae l and ta l k ing abou t w inger t - - t hey need to be

s topped,

p u t a s t o p t o i t , t h a t i t ' s g o i n g t o h u r t t h e i m p a c t o f

the company in the fu tu re .

A n d t h a t w a s o n M a r c h t h e 2 8 t h o f 2 0 1 9 .

d a y — n o w, C y n t h i a i s s u p p o s e d l y l i v i n g i n C a l i f o r n i a a t

A n d I b e l i e v e t h e e v i d e n c e w i l l b e f r o m h e r —

o r t h e c l a i m f r o m h e r i s t h a t s h e e s t a b l i s h e d r e s i d e n c y

here in Wash ing ton County in May o f 2020, bu t we ' l l j us t

have to see what she says,

b e f o r e , o k a y, M a r c h o f 2 0 1 9 , s h e fi l e s a p o l i c e r e p o r t

w i t h B a r t l e s v i l l e .

do i ng .1

2
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6

r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r ,

to the lawyer and to Cyn th ia .

7

8

9

1 0

And he 's concerned that i f our company doesn ' t1 1
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T h e n e x t1 4
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t h i s t i m e .1 6
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B u t — a n d t h i s i s a f u l l y e a r1 9
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2 1

Michael was l iv ing in Las Vegas and Rhode is land.

I t h a d n o t h i n g t o d o w i t h B a r t l e s v i l l e . T h e o n l y

c o n n e c t i o n t o B a r t l e s v i l l e i s t h a t s h e ' s f r o m h e r e a n d s h e

knows people and that some of the people that were in here
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in Bartlesville were more involved with pumping up the

c r y p t o c u r r e n c y .

B u t a n y w a y, s h e t r i e s t o g e t — b u t o n e o f t h e

issues —and l*m going to ask her —is that, you know,

when you fi l e f o r ap ro tec t i ve o rde r o r a res t ra in i ng

o r d e r i n a l o t o f s t a t e s , t h a t t h e y w a n t y o u t o fi l e a

p o l i c e r e p o r t s a y i n g t h a t y o u fi l e d a p o l i c e r e p o r t , y o u

know. So that may or may not have been the pol ice, but

who knows . No th i ng eve r happened w i t h t ha t o r i g i na l .

So that was on the next day af ter she got that

e-mai l f rom Dunaway saying, Hey, they need to be stopped.

So they go and cont inue to t ry to s top h im. And then she

fi l e d f o r h e r p r o t e c t i v e o r d e r i n C a l i f o r n i a o n A p r i l t h e

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

n t h o f 2 0 1 9 .1 4

M i c h a e l j u s t g e t s b e a t d o w n , d e c i m a t e d . H e p u l l s

a l l h i s s o c i a l m e d i a s t u f f u p a n d h e a c t u a l l y g o e s t o

Spain and had started the process sometime before to move

to Spa in . H is b ro ther l i ves in Spa in . He 's go t an iece

in Spain. And he's, you know, wanting to be there, you

k n o w, w i t h h i s b r o t h e r . O k a y ? A n d h e ' s b a s i c a l l y , l i k e ,

forget a l l th is craz iness, a l l these crazy people, I 'm

go ing to Spa in ,

w h i l e h e ' s i n S p a i n , h e ' s w o r k i n g i n , l i k e ,

building furniture and posts something on social media.

Boom, he gets hit again. So he had to take it down. Lost

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 his job over it because of it. And he wants nothing to do
w i t h t h e B l a n c h a r d s a t a l l .

And then in 2020, as you guys all went through,

COVID hit. And now here, you know, we*re not as

restrictive, but in Spain, they locked down. Okay? stay

in your apartment. You can't come out. They're fogging

t h e s t r e e t s , a l l t h i s . H e c a n ' t w o r k . H e w o r k s o n t h e

computer. He's not from Spain, you know. And he ends up

— h e ' s , l i k e , m a n , I — h e ' s g o t t a h a v e s o m e m o n e y, y o u

know, to su rv i ve because he ' s no t aSpan ish c i t i zen and he

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

doesn ' t wan t to mooch o f f h i s fami l y and he 's bu rn ing

s o h e fi l e s a r e q u e s t f o r

1 1

t h r o u g h h i s a s s e t s ,

unemployment in Nevada because he worked for them for

seven years, and he puts an unemployment claim in.

T h i s s t a r t s o f f a w h o l e n e w — a w h o l e n e w l i n e o f

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

—once they get to the unemployment claim, they try this

claim again that she put in the restraining order. They

try th is c la im again saying. Hey, look, he got fired for

cause, we don't have to pay him unemployment for

threaten ing the l i fe o f aboard member. But the s tu ff

tha t Cynth ia a t tached to a res t ra in ing o rder in Ca l i fo rn ia

came back to bite them and they lost. They were required

to pay Michael the unemployment. He had al i t t le card --

a l i t t l e d e b i t c a r d a n d s t u f f . S o h e ' s a b l e t o g e t

t h rough t he re and su rv i ve .

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



3 0

1 But this just starts just another —just pounding,

after pounding, after pounding, and they're just going

after him, just going after him, going after him. They

even got aguy that was aformer board member, okay, on

2

3

4

there that was afinancial guy that was raising money for

their company that has since been suspended because he was

raising it in away that he wasn't supposed to be raising

They even got him to sue Michael up in Kansas with

And they were jus t

5

6

7

i t .8

the same lawyer that they got .

pounding him and pounding him and pounding him.

Michael comes back to the united States when Spain

S p a i n , t h e y ' r e s t i l l k i n d o f r e s t r i c t i n g .

A n d t h e n , i n — I c a n ' t e v e n t h i n k o f t h e d a t e , b u t I ' m

A n d — e i t h e r 2 0 2 1 o r 2 0 2 2 , h e ' s

A n d h e ' s n e v e r b e e n

9

1 0

1 1

u n l o c k s d o w n .1 2

1 3

s u r e w e ' l l fi n d o u t .1 4

going to fly back out to Spain,

a r r e s t e d i n h i s l i f e ; h a d a s e c u r i t y c l e a r a n c e .

1 5

1 6

He's standing in line at the Newark airport and

these people come up and say. Hey, can Italk to you?

He's got an arrest warrant on this case. They throw him

in j a i l i n t he Newark j a i l . No t an i ce p lace . And he

si ts in there for, l ike, amonth. Then they drag him back

h e r e t o O k l a h o m a . T h e fi r s t t i m e h e ' s e v e r b e e n a r r e s t e d .

And this case bumps along and here we are today.

This case is about free speech. This case is about

them t ry ing to s i lence awh is t le -b lower. And the s ta te o f

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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Oklahoma has charged the wrong people.

Thank you, Mr. Adams.

A t t h i s t i m e , b e f o r e t h e s t a t e c a l l s i t s fi r s t

witness, l*m going to invoke the Rule of Sequestration.

Lad ies and gen t lemen , wha t tha t means i s tha t i f t he re ' s

1

2 T H E C O U R T:

3

4

5

anybody in the courtroom that is going to test i fy, they're

going to be directed to step out into the hallway unti l

a f t e r t h e y t e s t i f y .

6

7

8 That keeps witnesses from testi fying

after they've already heard someone else testi fy.9

So, Mr. Adams, do you have anyone in the room that

y o u i n t e n d t o c a l l a s a w i t n e s s ?

MR. ADAMS: NO, Judge.

THE COURT: o k a y . M s . G u l l e t t , d o y o u ?

MS. GULLETT: N O , J u d g e , I d o n o t .

THE COURT: I f , d u r i n g t h e c o u r s e o f t h e t r i a l ,

you do have awitness come in inadvertently or

unknowingly, please remind them that they need to stay in

t h e h a l l w a y.

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

O k a y. T h e s t a t e m a y c a l l i t s fi r s t w i t n e s s .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

The State o f Ok lahoma ca l ls Cynth ia B lanchard.

THE COURT: M a ' a m , i f y o u w i l l r a i s e y o u r r i g h t

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

hand, p lease.2 3

THE WITNESS: I w i l l .2 4

THE COURT: Oka y. C o me o ve r h e re .2 5
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^ . 1 THE WITNESS: I ' m s o r r y . S o r r y .

THE court: T h a t ' S a l l r i g h t .

THE WITNESS: I g o t i t .

THE COURT: S w e a r t o t e l l t h e t r u t h , t h e w h o l e

truth, and nothing but the truth, so help me God?

THE WITNESS: I d o .

2

3

4

5

6

THE COURT: M a ' a m , i f y o u ' l l h a v e a s e a t t h e r e .

Pu l l tha t m ic rophone up in f ron t o f you c lose enough to

y o u r m o u t h t h a t y o u c a n s p e a k d i r e c t l y i n t o i t .

M S . B l a n c h a r d , I w a n t t o r e m i n d y o u t h a t - - o r t o

t e l l y o u t h a t t h i s c o u r t r e p o r t e r i s t r y i n g t o t a k e d o w n

everything that 's said in the courtroom, so Ineed you to

be aware that you need to speak c lear - - c lear ly enough,

loudly enough. Sometimes people have atendency to talk

o v e r o n e a n o t h e r. P l e a s e l i s t e n t o h e r q u e s t i o n a n d t h e n

a n s w e r i t , a n d w h e n s h e ' s — w h e n y o u ' r e fi n i s h e d , s h e

wi l l ask her nex t quest ion , so i f Is top you dur ing the

course of your testimony and remind you of that --

THE witness: u h - h u h .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

— d o n ' t b e a l a r m e d b e c a u s e I h a v e2 0 T H E C O U R T :

to do tha t on a lmos t every w i tness , so —

THE WITNESS: T h a t ' s fi n e . I u n d e r s t a n d .

2 1

2 2

THE COURT: w e j u s t —2 3

THE WITNESS: S o r r y . S o r r y .

THE COURT: T h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r w o u l d g r e a t l y

2 4

2 5
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3 4

1 search engines optimization work for acompany he used to

w o r k f o r .2

3 And where were you guys located at when you metQ .

M r . N e l s o n ?4

5 A . I n L a s Ve g a s .

A n d i s t h a t w h e r e M r . N e l s o n w a s ?6 Q .

Y e a h . H e l i v e d t h e r e .7 A .

Is Mr. Nelson cur rent ly employed wi th any companies

associated wi th you or your husband?

8 Q .

9

1 0 N O .A .

HOW long was he employed with you or your husband's

companies, or anyone associated —

He came to us in the —2013 and , apparen t l y, a

company that he had folded or something of that nature. I
don't know. He talked to my husband, and he asked if he

could work for our company. And Anthem, my husband, hired

h i m a s a c o n s u l t a n t . A n d h e w a s i n t h a t r o l e f o r t w o

years, until he came to us in 2015, and asked to become an

employee because he had hurt his wrist and he wanted to

get health insurance, and we said, okay. So he became an

employee in 2015.

Okay. But he's been doing some sort of work since

2013 for your company?

Ye s , u n t i l h e w a s fi r e d .

And that brings me to my next question.

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5 Q-
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1 A . S o r r y .

2 Y o u ' r e fi n e .Q .

3 What was his last day? If you know, the exact day
o r m o n t h —4

Y e a h .5 A .

—tha t he wo rked fo r you guys?

He was fired the evening of February 24th of 2019,

a n d h i s o f fi c i a l t e r m i n a t i o n l e t t e r w a s s e n t i n t h e

6 Q .

7 A .

8

morn ing o f the 25th o f February in 2019.

Okay. Are you aware o f the c i rcumstances under

w h i c h h e w a s fi r e d ?

9

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 Y e s .

were you involved in part of that discussion?

Iw i tnessed par t o f tha t d iscuss ion . Imean, when

they were texting —my husband was texting with him when

one of our board d i rec tors ca l led h im to in form my husband

t h a t M r . N e l s o n h a d t h r e a t e n e d t o s h o o t h i m b e c a u s e h e

wasn't agreeing with some of the accusations that

Mr. Nelson was t ry ing to accuse us o f .

All right, which board member was that?

T h a t w a s M a r k H e a t w o l e .

And without going into alengthy, drawn-out

explanation of what Mr. Nelson was accusing you guys of,

can you kind of sum up —

Ye a h .

A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5 A .
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— w h a t y o u b e l i e v e M r. N e l s o n ' s c o m p l a i n t w a s w i t h

you and your husband and the company?

Mr. Ne lson go t i t i n h is head tha t we were , quo te ,

stealing from our company, and that we were doing all sort

o f ne fa r i ous , bad th ings , and he go t ag i ta ted tha t weekend

and he just went on arampage. And when he ca l led one of

o u r b o a r d d i r e c t o r s t h a t e v e n i n g o f t h e 2 4 t h , t o v o i c e h i s

—whatever he was th ink ing was happen ing , the board

d i r e c t o r w a s a b s o l u t e l y , l i k e . N o , I d o n ' t b e l i e v e a w o r d

y o u ' r e s a y i n g ; t h a t ' s n o t t r u e , t h a t ' s n o t t r u e . A n d h e

go t so agg rava ted tha t he j us t go t en raged , and tha t ' s

w h e n h e t h r e a t e n e d t o s h o o t M a r k H e a t w o l e .

S o y o u s a i d t h a t h e w a s o f fi c i a l l y t e r m i n a t e d o n

the 25 th o f February?

Yes . Tha t was when ou r l ega l counse l sen t h i s

1 Q .

2

3 A .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 A .

l e t t e r .1 6

A n d s i l l y q u e s t i o n , b u t w a s t h e 2 5 t h o f

February o f 2019, the las t t ime you ever heard f rom

M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ?

Okay.1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0 A . N o . N o . N o .

Have you chosen to keep in contact wi th —Okay.2 1 Q .

2 2 A . N O .

— M r . N e l s o n ?2 3 Q .

2 4 N O .A .

YOU have to let me finish my quest ion —2 5 Q .
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1 A . S o r r y .

T h a t ' s a l l r i g h t .

— b e f o r e y o u a n s w e r. O k a y ?

A11 r igh t . So you have no t chosen to keep in

c o n t a c t w i t h h i m ?

2 Q .

3

4

5

6 A . N o .

S o b a s e d o n c o n t a c t — w h o h a s i n i t i a t e d c o n t a c t7 Q .

between you and Mr. Nelson —

M r . N e l s o n .

8

9 A .

— d u r i n g t h a t t i m e ?

M r . N e l s o n ,

what type of contact has Mr. Nelson had wi th you

since February 24th of 2019?

He immedia te ly s ta r ted to send hundreds o f e -ma i ls

accus ing us o f , oh, my gosh, Ponz i scheme, s tea l ing f rom

the company, talking old women and men out of their money

and t rave l ing around the wor ld and us ing the i r money, and

j u s t - - y o u n a m e i t , h e a c c u s e d u s o f i t . A n d i t w a s

r e l e n t l e s s . R e l e n t l e s s . R e l e n t l e s s . I n e v e r r e s p o n d e d .

Let me put it this way: B y A p r i l 1 1 t h o f 2 0 1 9 ,

there were 600 pr in ted pages of e-mai ls and tex ts and

h a r a s s m e n t t h a t I l i t e r a l l y e v e n t o o k d o w n t o t h e S a n t a

Monica Police Department where we had asecond home

b e c a u s e h e h a d t a k e n t h a t a d d r e s s a n d b l a s t e d i t

e v e r y w h e r e , a n d I w a s p e t r i fi e d . I w a s p e t r i fi e d t h a t h e

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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would come physically and harm us because he was so

enraged.

1

2

S o , M s . B l a n c h a r d , d i d y o u — a g a i n , s 111 y

q u e s t i o n s , b u t I ' v e g o t t o a s k t h e m — d i d y o u e v e r w i s h

t o r e c e i v e a n y k i n d o f c o n t a c t f r o m M r. N e l s o n l i k e t h i s ?

3 Q .

4

5

6 A . N O .

As fa r as the con tac t goes , was the con tac t on ly

w i th you o r was I t —

7 Q .

8

9 N O .A .

— w i t h a n y o n e e l s e ?

I ' m s o r r y , I d i d I t a g a i n .

Anybody we were assoc ia ted w i th —and

t h a t m e a n s f a m i l y, f r i e n d s , o u r e m p l o y e e s , o u r a d v i s o r s .

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

I ' m — n o .1 2

1 3

o u r b o a r d o f d i r e c t o r s , c o n s u l t a n t s — h e j u s t w o u l d g o

Horrendous,

1 4

a f te r anybody tha t was assoc ia ted w i th us .

a g g r e s s i v e , t h r e a t e n i n g ; I t j u s t d i d n ' t s t o p .

So, Ms. Blanchard, you know that we' re

right now In Washington County In Oklahoma?

1 5

1 6

A l l r i g h t .1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9 A . Y e s .

So when did you come to reside InA l l r i g h t .2 0 Q .

o k l a h o m a ?2 1

When COVID hit, we had asecond home that we rented

In Santa Monica, and we got stuck there when lockdown

And a t t he end o f Ap r i l , my pa ren ts ' 68 th

wedding anniversary was happening, and my husband and I

2 2 A .

2 3

happened.2 4

2 5
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d i d n ' t w a n t t o m i s s t h a t — a n d t h e y l i v e h e r e i n

Washington county, so we ended up put t ing our dogs in the

car and d r i v ing fo r th ree days . And when we go t to

O k l a h o m a , i t w a s a b r e a t h o f f r e s h a i r .

we s tayed and ce lebrated wi th them. And then we

were t ry ing to dec ide what to do , and tha t ' s when the

S a n t a M o n i c a r i o t s h a p p e n e d . A n d t h a t w a s i t . w e s a i d ,

nope, we' re not going back, we h i red someone to pack up

t h a t h o m e — i t w a s a r e n t a l , s o o u r l e a s e , f o r t u n a t e l y ,

was at the end - - and we s tayed here. And we l ived wi th

m y p a r e n t s w h i l e w e s t a r t e d l o o k i n g f o r a h o m e . A n d i t

t o o k a b o u t fi v e m o n t h s , b u t w e fi n a l l y f o u n d a h o m e .

So when do you th ink tha t you guys o ffic ia l l y moved

in w i t h you r pa ren t s?

I w o u l d — w e m a d e t h a t d e c i s i o n a t t h e e n d o f

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 Q-

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 M a y - -

Okay.1 7 Q .

— o f — o f 2 0 2 0 .1 8 A .

1 9 2 0 2 0 ?Q .

Ye a h .2 0 A .

Okay,

t o fi n d a h o m e t o b u y ?

Y e a h .

A n d t h e n y o u s a i d t h a t i t t o o k y o u a w h i l e2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

When do you think that you guys purchased your2 4 Q .

home?2 5
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W e d o s e d o n o u r h o m e o n N o v e m b e r 1 0 t h . w e m a d e1 A .

t h e o f f e r , l t h i n k , i n S e p t e m b e r .

Same year?

O h , y e a h . I ' m s o r r y, 2 0 2 0 .

And is that home in Washington County?

I t i s .

2

3 Q .

4 A .

5 Q .

6 A .

And have you —since you bought the home in

November of 2020 and/or stayed with your parents and

dec ided to l i ve w i th your parents in May o f 2020, have you

moved from —have you moved your residence from

Washington County?

7 Q .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 A . N O .

A r e y o u s t i l l a r e s i d e n t o f Wa s h i n g t o n C o u n t y1 3 Q .

today?1 4

1 5 Y e s .A .

1 6 Since you've moved to Washington County, have youQ .

had any contact with Mr. Nelson in any way?1 7

I h a v e n o t .1 8 A .

Okay.

Ye s , h e h a s .

A l l r i g h t .

Has Mr. Nelson contacted you in any way?1 9 Q .

2 0 A .

What types of contact has he had with

you s ince you became ares ident of Washington County?

He sent aggressive e-mai ls , one to my personal

I h a d b l o c k e d h i m w h e n h e s t a r t e d t h i s a c t i v i t y

r i g h t a f t e r h e g o t fi r e d , b u t h e h a d a n o t h e r e - m a i l

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

e - m a i l .2 4

2 5
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address that he used, and the date of that was October

20 th o f 2020 . He sen t apersona ! e - rna i ! to my e - rna i ! and

i t i n c l u d e d , I t h i n k , m y h u s b a n d ' s s t e p d a d a n d j u s t r a n d o m

o t h e r p e o p l e , b a s i c a l l y a g g r e s s i v e , w h a t — h e c u s s e d i n

i t , w h a t a r e y o u d o i n g , d a h , d a h , d a h . Yo u k n o w, j u s t

t h a t t y p i c a l r a n t i n g t h a t h e d i d .

And i t was shock ing because Ihad b locked h im, and

a l l o f a s u d d e n , h e r e c o m e s a n o t h e r r a n t . I b l o c k e d t h e

— i t w a s a n i C l o u d a c c o u n t . I b l o c k e d i t . A n d t h e n t h e

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

next day, he sent an e-mai l to acompany address a t the

A n t h e m v a u l t a d d r e s s t h a t I w a s i n c l u d e d i n , a n d t h e r e

were —oh, my gosh, probably 50 or 60 people on that —

s a m e t h i n g , r a n t i n g . T h e y ' r e a P o n z i s c h e m e . T h e y a r e

c r i m i n a l s . T h e y h a v e — y o u k n o w , j u s t e v e r y t h i n g — I

m e a n , i t j u s t d i d n ' t s t o p . A n d t h e n w e b e l i e v e h e u s e s

a l i a s e s . A n d w h e n h e u s e s a l i a s e s , t h a t r a n t i n g g e t s e v e n

more aggress ive and th rea ten ing ,

s o a s f a r a s t h e e - m a i l s t o t h e , l i k e , 5 0 o r 6 0

peop le , you sa id —

Ye a h .

— d o y o u r e c a l l w h a t d a y - - w e l l , I u n d e r s t a n d

t h e r e ' s p r o b a b l y a l o t .

Y e a h .

DO you remember adate of one of those e-mai ls?

Ye s . T h e o n e , l i k e I s a i d , t o m y p e r s o n a l e - m a i l

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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w a s O c t o b e r 2 0 t h o f 2 0 2 0 . T h e o n e t o t h e b u s i n e s s e - m a i l1

was the 21st of October, 2020, and then there was another

o n e o n t h e 2 3 r d , a n d t h e n I w a s t a k e n o u t o f t h e e - m a i l

There were jus t a few more that went back and

for th tha t were sent to us f rom some of the peop le ,

inc lud ing my husband 's s tepmother, o f course, my husband 's

Oh, my gosh, there were employees' —

2

3

c h a i n .4

5

6

s t e p f a t h e r a g a i n .

Okay.

— e - m a i l , a n d s o —

s o , M S . B l a n c h a r d , y o u ' v e t e s t i fi e d a b o u t t h i s

s i t u a t i o n b e f o r e ?

7

8 Q .

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1

U h - h u h .1 2 A .

I S t h a t a " y e s " ?1 3 Q .

1 4 A . Y e s . S o r r y .

And tha t was a t t he p re l im ina ry hea r ing?1 5 Q .

1 6 A . Y e s .

Du r i ng t he p re l im ina ry hea r i ng , we re you

asked about some e-mai ls that went around and that you

r e c e i v e d ?

Okay.1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0 A . Y e s .

A t t h a t t i m e , d i d y o u g i v e a s p e c i fi c e - m a i l

address that you would have rece ived e-mai ls a t?

2 1 Q .

2 2

I d i d .2 3 A .

w h a t e - m a i l a d d r e s s d i d y o u — d o y o u r e c a l l g i v i n g2 4 Q .

2 5 a t
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Y e a h .1 A .

— t h a t p r e l i m i n a r y h e a r i n g ?

I g a v e a n e - m a i l — w e h a v e s u b s i d i a r i e s i n t h e

company, and Anthem Gold was one of the subsidiar ies,

A n t h e m Va u l t i s a s u b s i d i a r y,

those e-mai ls were sent to Anthem Gold, but they were

ac tua l l y sen t to my An them Vau l t e -ma i l .

IS there —why do you th ink tha t you sa id An them

Go ld i ns tead o f An them Vau l t a t t he p re l im ina ry?

Because there was jus t so much act iv i ty that was

g o i n g o n t h a t I — I t h o u g h t i t w a s — I — y o u k n o w , I

d i d n ' t r e m e m b e r i t w a s A n t h e m v a u l t .

2 Q .

3 A .

4

A n d I t h i n k I s a i d t h a t5

6

7

8 Q .

9

1 0 A .

1 1

1 2

Did you in any way want to mislead the court —1 3 Q .

1 4 A . N O .

- - a t t h a t t i m e ?1 5 Q .

N o . N O . N O . N O . I w a s s u r p r i s e d I h a d n o t s a i d

t h e r i g h t t h i n g , b u t I d i d n ' t .

Roughly, how many e-mail addresses do you have?

My persona l , and then there are the four bus iness

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

e - m a i 1 s .2 0

S o i s t h a t a l o t t o k e e p t r a c k o f ?

L e t m e — l e t m e c o u n t t h a t , l u s t a s e c o n d . Y e a h ,

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

f o u r . F o u r .2 3

s o i n c l u d i n g y o u r p e r s o n a l e - m a i l , t h a t ' s fi v e

e-mai ls you have?

2 4 Q .

2 5
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U h - h u h .1 A .

S o i s t h a t a l o t t o k e e p t r a c k o f ?2 Q .

3 A . Y e s .

Okay.4 Q .

5 MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , m a y I a p p r o a c h ?

6 THE court: Y e s .

(By MS. Gu11ett) l*m going to hand you what l*ve

T a k e a l o o k a t t h a t .

7 Q .

m a r k e d a s S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 1 .8

U h - h u h .9 A .

O k a y. D o y o u r e c o g n i z e t h a t d o c u m e n t I j u s t h a n d e d1 0 Q .

1 1 you?

I d o .1 2 A .

Okay. A n d d o e s t h a t l o o k l i k e a t r u e a n d c o r r e c t1 3 Q .

document that you've seen before?1 4

1 5 Y e s .A .

Okay. can you explain to me what that document is?

I t i s a n e - m a i l f r o m M i c h a e l N e l s o n t h a t ' s s e n t t o

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

— t h e r e ' s m y h u s b a n d ' s s t e p m o t h e r, t h e r e ' s a d v i s o r s ,

s tep fa the r, my husband , boa rd o f d i rec to rs , emp loyees ,

r a n d o m e d i t o r s a t d i f f e r e n t — a t d i f f e r e n t p u b l i c a t i o n s ,

a p p a r e n t l y, m o r e b o a r d d i r e c t o r s —

o k a y.

— a n d s h a r e h o l d e r s .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

W h a t ' s t h e d a t e o n t h a t e - m a i l ?2 4 Q-

O c t o b e r 2 1 s t o f 2 0 2 0 .2 5 A .
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O k a y. A n d w h a t ' s t h e t i m e ?1 Q .

T h e t i m e w a s 2 : 3 2 a . m .2 A .

A l l r i g h t .

MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , I ' d m o v e t o a d m i t

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 t h r o u g h t h i s w i t n e s s .

MR. ADAMS: N o o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

3 Q .

4

5

6

7

(By MS. Gu l le t t ) I 'm go ing to hand you what 's

Same thing; do you recognize

8 Q .

m a r k e d a s S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 2 .9

t h a t d o c u m e n t ?1 0

I d o .1 1 A .

A n d d o e s t h a t l o o k l i k e a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e1 2 Q .

r e p r e s e n t a t i o n o f a d o c u m e n t y o u ' r e f a m i l i a r w i t h ?1 3

1 4 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t , w h a t i s t h a t d o c u m e n t ?

Ano the r e -ma i l f rom Michae l Ne lson tha t ,

appa ren t l y, was pa r t o f an e -ma i l cha in tha t was c rea ted .

O k a y, s a m e o r s i m i l a r s i t u a t i o n ?

Yeah. Same people .

A l l r i g h t . A n d w h a t ' s t h e d a t e o n t h a t e - m a i l ?

T h a t i s O c t o b e r 2 3 r d o f 2 0 2 0 a t 4 : 5 5 a . m .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u .

MS. GULLETT: Y o u r H o n o r , t h e S t a t e w o u l d m o v e

2 2 Q .

2 3

t o a d m i t S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 2 .2 4

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .2 5
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T H E C O U R T ; S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 2 s h a l l b e1

a d m i t t e d .2

3 MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .

(By Ms. Gul let t ) When you saw these e-mai ls wi th4 Q .

a l l t h e d i f f e r e n t p e o p l e l i s t e d o n t h e m —5

U h - h u h .6 A .

— a s w e l l a s t h e b o d y o f t h e e - m a i l s , w h a t — h o w7 Q .

d i d y o u f e e l ?8

we had come here, we had made our

home here, we had just bought ahome here, and al l of a

sudden, he 's enraged and he 's go ing a f te r us aga in ,

w a s p e t r i fi e d ,

that i f he found out what our new home address was, which

would have been publ ic record once that sa le went through,

I — I w a s s c a r e d t o d e a t h b e c a u s e I k n e w w h a t w o u l d

I w a s s c a r e d .9 A .

1 0

A n d I1 1

To b e h o n e s t w i t h y o u , I w a s p e t r i fi e d1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

happen . And w i t h t he he lp o f t h i s commun i t y, t hey he lped

us change the way it was purchased so that address was not

pub l i c . And i f he knows whe re i t i s , t ha t s ca res me even

m o r e . A n d h e m i g h t , b e c a u s e h e j u s t i s r e l e n t l e s s . H e

digs and d igs and d igs.

A f t e r t h e s e e - m a i l s w e r e s e n t i n O c t o b e r o f 2 0 2 0 ,

d id you rece ive any o ther contac t f rom Mr. Ne lson?

Y e s , I d i d .

O k a y, w h a t t y p e o f c o n t a c t d i d y o u r e c e i v e ?

H e l e f t t w o l o n g - w i n d e d , o v e r f o u r - m i n u t e - l o n g

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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voicemai ls on my phone, January 30th of 2021.

I h a d b l o c k e d h i m y e a r s a g o , b u t

I t w a s f r o m1

a n u n k n o w n n u m b e r .2

somehow he got around it.

How did you know it was Mr. Nelson?

I — w h e n I s t a r t e d t o l i s t e n t o o n e o f t h e m — h i s

3

4 Q .

5 A .

vo i ce i s ve ry un ique and ve ry easy to recogn ize , and i t

j us t sen t sh i ve rs t h rough me .

And you said that you have blocked his phone

6

7

8 Q .

n u m b e r ?9

1 0 A . Y e s .

Have you ever at any t ime unblocked his phone1 1 Q .

n u m b e r ?1 2

1 3 A . N O .

Were these voicemails welcomed by you?1 4 Q-

1 5 A . N O . N O .

And when you received these voicemai ls on

January 30th, you sa id?

1 6 Q .

1 7

O f 2 0 2 1 .1 8 A .

Where were you when you —

I w a s i n B a r t l e s v i l l e .

1 9 Q .

I w a s a t h o m e .2 0 A .

And d id you immedia te ly l i s ten to them?

I l i s t e n e d t o a b o u t t w o s e c o n d s — w e l l , p r o b a b l y

A n d I

Okay.2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

t e n s e c o n d s , a n d i t w a s t h r e a t , t h r e a t , t h r e a t .2 3

A n d I d i d n ' t e r a s ec o u l d n ' t d o i t . I c o u l d n ' t d o i t .2 4

t hem, I j us t l e f t t hem because we had hea rd so - - t he re2 5
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w e r e h u n d r e d s o f t h e s e v o i c e m a i l s t h a t h e * s l e f t o v e r a1

p e r i o d o f y e a r s , t w o h u n d r e d s — I c a n ' t s a y a s p e c i fi c

number —but many, many, many people that are assoc ia ted

w i t h u s , f a m i l y, e m p l o y e e s , a g a i n , s a m e — s a m e s t o r y,

same threats, same aggression, same l ies about my husband

and Iand peop le tha t a re assoc ia ted w i th our company.

He has no p roo f . There i s no ev idence . He has no

ev idence because there is none. I 'm go ing to go ahead and

s a y t h i s . H e ' s n e v e r s e e n t h e fi n a n c i a l s o f o u r c o m p a n y.

H e d o e s n ' t k n o w o u r p e r s o n a l fi n a n c i a l s i t u a t i o n , w e ' v e

p u t m i l l i o n s o f d o l l a r s i n t o o u r c o m p a n y, w e p a i d h i s

salary out of our own pocket many times when we needed to

because that 's what you do when you ' re responsib le to keep

a c o m p a n y h e a l t h y.

S o , M S . B l a n c h a r d , i k n o w t h i s i s a l o t - -

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6 Y e s .A .

— I k n o w t h e r e ' s a l o t g o i n g o n .

focus on the ques t ions —

Y o u b e t .

I n e e d y o u t o1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9 A .

— I ' m a s k i n g . O k a y ?

O k a y . I ' m s o r r y .

Y o u ' r e fi n e . I k n o w i t i s —

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

I t ' s j u s t t o o m u c h .

T h e r e ' s a l o t g o i n g o n a n d t h e r e ' s a l o t o f

q u e s t i o n s I ' v e g o t t o a s k y o u , s o —

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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Okay.

—we 've go t t o ge t t h rough some o f t hese

1 A .

2 Q .

q u e s t i o n s .3

Yo u b e t . I ' m s o r r y .

Yo u ' r e a l l r i g h t .

S o — t h a n k y o u .

So we were talking about the voicemails that you

4 A .

5 Q .

6

7

h a d .8

9 A . Y e s .

So you saw them on your phone. You know the date

because you saw them and you said you didn't erase them.

R i g h t .

Okay. A t any t ime , d i d you do any th i ng w i t h t hose

vo icemai ls? D id you g ive them to anyone or do any th ing

l i k e t h a t ?

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

No , no t un t i l you ca l l ed i n December o f ' 21 .

so d id you ever p rov ide me w i th acopy o f

1 6 A .

o k a y.1 7 Q .

t h o s e v o i c e m a i l s ?1 8

I d i d .1 9 A .

A l l r i g h t ,

v o i c e m a i l s t o g e t h e r ?

w e h a v e .

And have you and I l i s t ened t o t hose2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

Okay. So I 'm go ing to approach w i th S ta te ' s

Do you recognize

2 3 Q .

I 'm go ing to hand you th i s .E x h i b i t 3 .2 4

t h i s ?2 5
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I d o .1 A .

What 1s that that I 've handed you?

T h i s i s a c o p y o f t h e v o i c e m a i l s t h a t I s e n t t o

Okay.2 Q .

3 A .

4 y o u .

And do you see , l i ke , some wr i t ing on tha tOkay.5 Q .

d i s c ?6

7 A . Y e s .

w h a t i s t h a t w r i t i n g ?

M y i n i t i a l s a n d t h e d a t e ,

o k a y, w h a t d a t e i s o n t h e r e ?

I ' m s o r r y . 2 - 6 - 2 3 .

Okay. And so was tha t yes te rday?

Ye s , i t w a s .

A 11 r i g h t . S o w h a t d i d y o u d o y e s t e r d a y ? D i d y o u

up to my o ffice?

8 Q .

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 c o m e

1 6 A . Y e s .

And did you have achance to v iew —1 7 Q .

1 8 A . Y e s .

— t h e s e v o i c e m a i l s a g a i n ?1 9 Q .

I d i d .2 0 A .

A l l r i g h t . s o i s t h i s a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e2 1 Q .

dep ic t ion o f the vo icemai l s tha t were on your phone?2 2

2 3 Y e s .A .

Yo u r H o n o r , I ' d m o v e t o a d m i t

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 3 a n d t h e n p u b l i s h f o r t h e j u r y.

2 4 M S . G U L L E T T :

2 5
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MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 3 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d

1

2

and you may publish.3

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .4

T h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r ' s n o t t a k i n g d o w n5 T H E C O U R T :

w h a t ' s o n t h e e x h i b i t .6

MS. GULLETT: O h , t h a t ' s fi n e .

THE COURT: 3ust SO you know.

( S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 3 p u b l i s h e d . )

( B y M s . G u l l e t t ) A l l r i g h t . T h e r e w a s a l o t o n

tha t vo i cema i l , so Iwan t t o ask you some ques t i ons abou t

7

8

9

1 0 Q .

1 1

i t .1 2

T h e fi r s t h a l f o f t h a t v o i c e m a i l , b e c a u s e ,

o b v i o u s l y, t h e r e w e r e t w o , g o t c u t o f f .

you back?

1 3

A n d d i d h e c a l l1 4

1 5

I — y e a h . T h e r e w e r e t w o v o i c e m a i l s ,

o k a y. S o t h e v e r y fi r s t o n e t a l k s o f a b l o o d f e u d

b e t w e e n y o u r f a m i l y l i n e a n d h i s f a m i l y l i n e . D o y o u h a v e

any idea what that has to do wi th?

N o i d e a . I t j u s t s c a r e d m e .

Are you aware of Mr. Nelson having any chi ldren?

I d o n ' t t h i n k h e h a s a n y c h i l d r e n .

Okay. D id t ha t s t r i ke you as odd tha t he wou ld say

s o m e t h i n g a b o u t h i s c h i l d r e n i n t h a t v o i c e m a i l ?

He had sa id t h i ngs abou t h i s ch i l d ren i n o the r

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q -

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 A .
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e-mai ls to other people, and we didn' t know where he was

or what he was do ing or —we d idn ' t know,

a p p a r e n t l y, h e d o e s n ' t h a v e c h i l d r e n .

There 's a l so ament ion o f your husband . An them,

be ing in the un i ted Arab Emi ra tes?

1

2 B u t ,

3

4 Q .

5

U h - h u h .6 A .

And then he ment ioned someth ing about apr ince o f7 Q .

t h e U . A . E .8

I h a v e n o i d e a w h a t h e ' s t a l k i n g a b o u t w i t h t h e

My husband was in Dubai when that voicemail

He was —we go t —he go t a

H e h a d — t h a t

9 A .

p r i n c e t h i n g ,

was le f t on my vo icemai l ,

c l i e n t f o r o u r b u s i n e s s d u r i n g t h a t t r i p ,

was h is second t r ip to Duba i ,

t o s p e a k a t a c o n f e r e n c e ,

t o w n , b u t I w a s .

so when you hear th ings l i ke ap r ince o f Duba i and

aprince of the U.A.E. was my bunkmate, what do you take

t h a t a s ?

1 0

1 1

1 2

T h e fi r s t t i m e , h e ' d g o n e

S o h e d i d n o t — h e w a s n ' t i n

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

I d o n ' t — a g a i n , t h i s w a s a f t e r y e a r s o f

Mr. Ne l son l eav ing t hese so r t o f l ong -w inded vo i cema i l s o r

t h e s e l o n g e - m a i l s t h a t j u s t r a t t l e d o n a b o u t — I

shou ldn ' t use t ha t wo rd —th ings t ha t made no sense - -

th ings tha t made no sense . So Iassumed tha t was ano ther

o n e o f t h o s e t h a t m a d e n o s e n s e . T h e s e t h r e a t s a n d —

So would you associate Dubai and the United Arab

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



5 3

Emi ra tes as be ing awea l t hy coun t r y?

Y e s , I w o u l d .

S o w o u l d a p r i n c e o f a p l a c e o f t h e U . A . E

t h a t b e p r o b a b l y a w e a l t h y p e r s o n ?

Probab l y, yes .

so to have someone tell you that they have someone

who's a—been abunkmate with them with awealthy

person, w i th means l i ke the U.A.E

you?

1

2 A .

3 w o u l dQ . ● I

4

5 A .

6 Q .

7

8 w a s t h a t a c o n c e r n t o■ f

9

Y e a h , I w a s p e t r i fi e d . I w a s p e t r i fi e d . B u t f o r

the record , tha t was on the 30 th o f January o f 2021 . On

t h e 1 4 t h o f F e b r u a r y , I fl e w t o D u b a i f o r t h e v e r y fi r s t

t ime to meet my husband because he had gone back there. I

fl e w o v e r a n d b a c k t h r e e m o r e t i m e s . T h e r e w a s n o — b u t

1 0 A .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

e v e r y t i m e I w e n t , I w a s a f r a i d . H a d — w a s t h e r e

someth ing tha t had happened tha t - - t ha t Iwas go ing to —

I m e a n , i t w a s h o r r i b l e . T h e r e w a s , a g a i n , n o e v i d e n c e o f

a n y t h i n g , b u t i t w a s j u s t t h e s e i d l e t h r e a t s t o h a r a s s a n d

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9 s c a r e u s .

so l *m go ing to sh i f t f rom the vo icema i l s to some

more things that have happened in Washington County.

Okay.

So you guys have moved here. You l ive here . Do

you have work here —

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 Y e s .A .
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— i n Wa s h i n g t o n —

Okay, what business do you have here?

The business is Her software Development Company.

A n d w h e r e i s t h a t l o c a t e d ?

1 Q .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

I t i s l o c a t e d a t t h e o l d c o u r t h o u s e o n F r a n k5 A .

T h a t i s a b u i l d i n g t h a t t h e c o m p a n y p u r c h a s e d

in 3u1y of 2021, to put the headquarters of the company

t h e r e .

P h i l l i p s .6

7

8

And so Iam ho r r i b le w i th da tes , as you and

Ihave ta lked about many t imes, so we ' re go ing to make

t h i s t i m e l i n e i n o u r b r a i n s .

o k a y.9 Q .

1 0

1 1

Okay,

so the vo icemai ls are in January o f 2021?

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 Y e s .A .

A n d t h e n J u l y o f 2 0 2 1 , H e r a S o f t b u y s a b u i l d i n g .1 5 Q .

1 6 A . Y e s .

Okay. When was HeraSoft formed?

HeraSoft was formed in January of 2020, as a

1 7 Q .

1 8 A .

s u b s i d i a r y .1 9

O k a y . A l l r i g h t . J u l y 2 0 2 1 , b u i l d i n g .

Okay. A t tha t t ime, had you had any more con tac t

i n J u l y o f 2 0 2 1 , w i t h M r . N e l s o n , l i k e a v o i c e m a i l o r

t h i n g s l i k e t h a t , t h a t r e a l l y s t a n d o u t ?

I d i d n ' t p e r s o n a l l y .

A l l r i g h t , s o t h e n w e g e t t o J u l y a n d t h e n , l e t ' s

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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say, in to August o f 2021, have you had any contact w i th

Mr. Nelson at that time that stands out to you in August

o f 2 0 2 1 ?

1

2

3

T h a t h e c o n t a c t e d m e ?4 A .

5 Q . Y e s .

6 A . Y e s .

Okay. So what happens in August of 2021?

O n A u g u s t 2 6 t h , I g o t a c a 11 f r o m o n e o f o u r

e m p l o y e e s a t t h e c o u r t h o u s e , a n d t h e y s a i d a c e r t i fi e d

l e t t e r h a d c o m e f o r y o u . I ' m l i k e , o k a y. I ' l l c o m e d o w n .

I h a d n o i d e a w h a t i t w a s . H e h a d s i g n e d f o r i t . A n d

w h e n I o p e n e d i t , i t w a s f r o m M r. N e l s o n . A g a i n , j u s t

t h r e a t s s a y i n g t h i n g s l i k e I w a s t r y i n g — t r y i n g t o k i l l

h i s p a r e n t s , t h a t I w a s m e n t a l l y i l l . T h e r e ' s s o m e t h i n g

a b o u t C h a d K o e h n i n t h e r e b e c a u s e t h e l e t t e r w e n t t o C h a d

7 Q .

8 A .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

Koehn a l so , t he same l e t t e r, bu t i t had i t add ressed t o1 6

b o t h o f u s .1 7

I h a d — i t j u s t , a g a i n , j u s t — b u t t h e s c a r y p a r t

a b o u t t h a t i s t h a t i t c a m e t o t h e c o u r t h o u s e , a n d I d i d n ' t

1 8

1 9

I d i d n o t k n o wk n o w h o w h e k n e w a b o u t t h e c o u r t h o u s e .2 0

t h a t o u r m a r k e t i n g d i r e c t o r a t t h e t i m e h a d p u t t h e

p ic tu re o f the cour thouse and i t s address on ou r webs i te

e a r l i e r i n t h e m o n t h .

2 1

2 2

2 3

Okay,

w h e n t h a t — o h , I ' m s o r r y .

2 4 Q .

G o a h e a d .2 5 A .
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S o t a l k i n g a b o u t t h e w e b s i t e f o r H e r a S o f t .1 Q .

U h - h u h .2 A .

3 Wha t - - o t he r t han t he p i c t u re o f t he cou r t house

and the address o f the cour thouse and HeraSof t , the

Q .

4

5 n a m e

U h - h u h .6 A .

— w h a t e l s e w a s o n t h a t w e b s i t e t h a t w o u l d l i n k i t7 Q .

to you? How would someone know i f they looked at that

webs i te tha t HeraSof t was assoc ia ted w i th you?

O h , l * m s o r r y . O k a y . I u n d e r s t a n d .

Y e a h .

8

9

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

We l l , yeah , a t t he t ime , my p i c tu re was on i t , my

h u s b a n d ' s p i c t u r e w a s o n i t , t e l l i n g t h e m t h e p o s i t i o n s

that we held wi th the company.

And what was your posi t ion?

A t t h a t t i m e , i w a s t h e p r e s i d e n t o f t h e c o m p a n y.

A l 1 r i g h t .

MS. GULLETT: I ' m g o i n g t o s h o w h e r S t a t e ' s

E x h i b i t 4 , t h e e n v e l o p e a n d t h e l e t t e r i s i n s i d e , 4 - A .

Yo u r H o n o r, i f I m a y a p p r o a c h ?

THE COURT: Ye s , m a ' a m .

( B y M s . G u l l e t t ) A l l r i g h t . I ' m g o i n g t o h a n d y o u

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 , w i t h 4 - A i n s i d e .

Okay.

S o fi r s t w e ' r e g o i n g t o t a l k a b o u t 4 .

1 2 A .

1 3

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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u h - h u h .1 A .

DO you recognize what I 've handed you?2 Q .

3 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t .

A c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r .

w h a t i s i t t h a t I ' v e h a n d e d y o u ?4 Q .

5 A .

O k a y. A n d i s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e r e fl e c t i o n

o f a c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r t h a t y o u ' r e f a m i l i a r w i t h ?

6 Q .

7

8 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t . S o w h a t c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r i s t h i s ?

T h i s i s t h e l e t t e r I w a s j u s t r e f e r r i n g t o f r o m

M i c h a e l N e l s o n .

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1

Okay.

S o i t - - w h a t I ' m t r y i n g — I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t

y o u ' r e t r y i n g t o g e t .

N o , y o u ' r e fi n e ,

what address —wel l , what name and address is

l i s t e d o n t h e r e ?

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

O k a y . O k a y . I u n d e r s t a n d .

Cyn th ia D . B lancha rd , p res iden t , He ra So f twa re

Deve lopmen t , I nc . , 501 Sou theas t F rank Ph i l l i ps Bou leva rd

— B o u l e v a r d , S u i t e 1 0 2 , B a r t l e s v i l l e , O k l a h o m a 7 4 0 0 3 .

w h a t i s t h e r e t u r n a d d r e s s ?

1 8 A .

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

Return mai l p rocess ing center, 8551 East Anderson

Dr ive , Number 108, Scot tsda le , Ar izona 85255.

So that does not say Mr. Nelson on that

2 3 A .

2 4

Okay.2 5 Q .
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o u t s i d e p a r t ?1

I t d o e s n o t .2 A .

Okay.3 Q .

S o , Yo u r H o n o r , s t a t e w o u l d m o v e

t o a d m i t S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 , w h i c h i s t h e e n v e l o p e , w i t h

t he cavea t we ' r e go ing t o t h rough S ta te ' s Exh ib i t 4 -A as

w e l l , s o - -

4 M S . G U L L E T T :

5

6

7

MR. ADAMS: we have no ob jec t i on .8

MS. GULLETT: A l l r i g h t .9

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 , w h i c h i s t h e1 0 T H E C O U R T:

ou ts ide enve lope —1 1

MS. GULLETT: Y e s , m a ' a m .1 2

THE COURT: — s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .1 3

(By Ms . Gu l l e t t ) So I ' l l have you open the1 4 Q .

enve lope .1 5

Now you ' re l ook ing a t t he con ten ts o f

Do you recognize that?

A l l r i g h t ,

what was in that envelope.

1 6

1 7

u h - h u h .1 8 A .

I s t h a t a " y e s ” ?

Y e s . I ' m s o r r y . Y e s .

T h a t ' s a l l r i g h t .

S o t h i s i s m a r k e d a s S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 - A . S o y o u

1 9 Q .

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

recognize th is document?2 3

2 4 Y e s .A .

I s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e d e p i c t i o n o f a d o c u m e n t2 5 Q .
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you 've seen before?1

2 A . Y e s .

A 11 r i g h t , w h a t i s t h i s d o c u m e n t ?3 Q .

T h i s d o c u m e n t i s t h e c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r t h a t w a s s e n t4 A .

t o m e a t t h e c o u r t h o u s e a n d i t a l s o w a s a d d r e s s e d t o5

M r . c h a d K o e h n .6

So this document was inside that envelope

when that envelope was sealed?

Okay.7 Q .

8

9 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t .1 0 Q -

so , Your Honor, the s ta te wou ld1 1 M S . G U L L E T T :

m o v e t o a d m i t S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 - A .1 2

MR. ADAMS: N o o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 4 - A , t h e l e t t e r

i t s e l f , s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

1 3

1 4

1 5

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .1 6

A n d , M s . G u l l e t t , I ' m n o t s u r e t h e

jurors back behind you can hear you, so you might speak up

a l i t t l e b i t l o u d e r .

1 7 T H E C O U R T :

1 8

1 9

MS. GULLETT: S o r r y a b o u t t h a t .

( B y M s . G u l l e t t ) O k a y. S o I ' m g o i n g t o t a k e t h i s

f r o m y o u , b u t w e ' r e g o i n g t o t a l k a b o u t t h e l e t t e r.

A l l r igh t . So , Ms. B lanchard , tha t le t te r you sa id

was addressed to yourself and Mr. Koehn?

u h - h u h . Y e s .

2 0

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 A .
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1 What —what types of th ings are in that let ter?

J u s t l i k e I s a i d b e f o r e , t h e d e a t h t h r e a t s h a v e t o

stop, you're mentally ill, you've threatened my parents,

he goes on and on about other people. And then he talks

about Mr. chad Koehn and how Ihave threatened his family

a g a i n .

Q .

2 A .

3

4

5

6

J u s t a l l s o r t s o f s t u f f ?7 Q .

J u s t t h e s a m e —8 A .

A l l r i g h t .9 Q .

— c o n s t a n t s t u f f .1 0 A .

So we ' re go ing to ask tha t ques t ion .

Have you , a t any t ime, th rea tened Mr. Ne lson 's

1 1 Q .

1 2

f a m i l y ?1 3

1 4 N O .A .

Have you, a t any t ime, threatened Mr. Nelson —1 5 Q .

1 6 N o .A .

— i n a n y w a y ?1 7 Q .

1 8 A . N o .

AS far as HeraSoft goes here in the —

i n B a r t l e s v i l l e , w a s — d i d H e r a S o f t g e n e r a t e a n y k i n d o f

publ ic i ty or anyth ing of that nature?

A l l r i g h t .1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2 A . Y e s ,

w h a t k i n d o f p u b l i c i t y w a s H e r a S o f tA l l r i g h t .2 3 Q .

g e t t i n g ?2 4

Spec i fica l l y, t he re were two d i f f e ren t a r t i c l es i n2 5 A .
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t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e E x a m i n e r E n t e r p r i s e .

i n A u g u s t , a n d t h e r e ' s a — t h e r e ' s a p r o g r a m i n

B a r t l e s v i l l e , I t h i n k i t ' s c a l l e d t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e

Deve lopmen t P rog ram, whe re t hey —i f you ' re accep ted - -

and we were invited into this program —it encourages

b u s i n e s s e s t o b r i n g e m p l o y e e s t o B a r t l e s v i l l e ,

t h e y d o t h a t , t h e C i t y w i l l p r o v i d e $ 1 0 , 0 0 0 t o t h a t

emp loyee to buy ahouse o r $20 ,000 i f t hey bu i l d ahome.

And so i t was an incent ive program to he lp bus inesses

a t t r a c t e m p l o y e e s t o c o m e a n d l i v e i n B a r t l e s v i l l e .

S o w e r e — w e r e y o u f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t a r t i c l e ?

1 T h e fi r s t o n e w a s

2

3

4

5

6 A n d i f

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2 I w a s .A .

D i d y o u r e a d t h e a r t i c l e ?1 3 Q .

I d i d .1 4 A .

D id you see the a r t i c le when i t was pub l i shed?

I t w a s n ' t j u s t a b o u t H e r a s o f t , i t w a s a b o u t

the p rog ram, and the re was , I t h ink , one o the r company

B u t H e r a s o f t w a s d e fi n i t e l y

1 5 Q .

I d i d .1 6 A .

1 7

t h a t w a s t a l k e d a b o u t i n i t .1 8

t a l k e d a b o u t i n t h a t a r t i c l e .1 9

o k a y. A n d s o y o u ' r e f a m i l i a r w i t h i t ?2 0 Q .

2 1 A . I a m .

A l l r i g h t .2 2 Q .

Yo u r H o n o r, i f I m a y a p p r o a c h ?2 3 M S . G U L L E T T :

THE COURT: Ye s , m a ' a m .2 4

(By MS. Gu l le t t ) Ihand you what ' s marked as2 5 Q .
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1 S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 5 .

2 ( C r o s s - t a l k . )

3 Ye a h .A .

(By MS. Gullett) So what have Ihanded you?

The art icle from the Examiner Enterprise that Iwas

j u s t t a l k i n g a b o u t .

Okay,

d e p i c t i o n o f t h e a r t i c l e t h a t y o u s a w i n t h e E x a m i n e r

E n t e r p r i s e ?

4 Q .

5 A .

6

A n d d o e s t h a t l o o k l i k e a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e7 Q .

8

9

1 0 A . Y e s .

C a n y o u t e l l m e t h e d a t e o f t h a t a r t i c l e ?

The da te i s Augus t 26 th , 2021 , a t s i x o ' c l ock a .m .

And who was i t wr i t ten by?

Daisey Creager - -

Okay.

— o f t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e E x a m i n e r E n t e r p r i s e .

Your Honor, the State would move

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7 M S . G U L L E T T :

t o a d m i t s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 5 .1 8

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE court: s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 5 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

1 9

2 0

( B y M S . G u l l e t t ) A n d i n t h a t a r t i c l e , i t t a l k s

a b o u t H e r a S o f t .

2 1 Q .

2 2

Y e a h .2 3 A .

And i s the re amen t ion o f you o r An them in tha t2 4 Q .

a r t i c l e ?2 5
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1 P e r s o n a l l y , I d o n ' t t h i n k s o .

t h i n k i t ' s j u s t H e r a S o f t .

Okay.

I 'd to have look at i t again.

T h a t ' s o k a y.

The second one defin i te ly was about HeraSof t , and

i t ment ioned us , bu t tha t was in September.

A r e y o u f a m i l i a r w i t h a n y o t h e r a r t i c l e s o r

pub l ica t ions that happened about HeraSof t f rom anyone

other than the Examiner Enterpr ise as we ta lked about

t h e m ?

I t h i n k i t ' s — iA .

2

3 Q .

4 I ' m s o r r y .A .

5 Q .

6 A .

7

Okay.8 Q .

9

1 0

1 1

I t h i n k i t w a s o n t h e r a d i o w e b s i t e .1 2 A .

Okay.

Y e a h .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

A r e y o u f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t h a p p e n i n g , t h e r a d i o1 5 Q .

hav ing —1 6

1 7 Y e s .A .

- - a n a r t i c l e ?1 8 Q .

1 9 A . Y e s .

I'm going to hand you what's marked as

I f y o u ' l l t a k e a l o o k a t t h a t .

Okay.2 0 Q .

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 6 .2 1

Do you recognize that?

I d o .

Okay. And wha t i s t ha t t ha t I ' ve handed you?

I t i s t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e R a d i o w e b s i t e . T h e y h a v e —

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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what do you call 1t? You know, they have the news and

they have different weather, you know, local news, and

t h i s w a s f r o m t h e r e .

1

2

3

S o a n a r t i c l e b y t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e R a d i o ?4 Q .

U h - h u h .5 A .

And do you know what day that was from?

This says i t was posted August 25th a t 8 :49 a .m. ,

a n d u p d a t e d A u g u s t 2 5 t h , 2 0 2 1 — s o r r y, i t w a s 2 0 2 1 — a t

D i d I s a y a . m . o r p . m . e a r l i e r ?

I d o n ' t r e c a l l .

6 Q .

7 A .

8

9 : 1 6 a . m .9

1 0 Q .

I t w a s 8 : 4 9 a . m . a n dI t ' s 8 : 4 0 — I ' m s o r r y ,

updated at 9:16 a.m., on the on 20 —on August 25th,

1 1 A .

1 2

2 0 2 1 .1 3

Thank you.

S o r r y a b o u t t h a t

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

Your Honor, the state would move1 6 M S . g u l l e t t :

t o a d m i t s t a t e ' s n u m b e r 6 .1 7

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 6 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

1 8

1 9

(By MS. Gu l le t t ) Now th is —2 0 Q .

2 1 THE COURT: H a n g o n .

2 2 MS. GULLETT: S o r r y .

(By MS. Gullett) NOW, this article from the Radio,

does i t , as far as you' re aware, ment ion you and Anthem by

n a m e ?

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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1 N o t s p e c i fi c a l l y , n o .

W h a t d o e s i t s h o w o n t h e r e ?

A .

2 Q .

3 Again, that HeraSoft was accepted into this program

and what the program is and how it incentivizes companies

to b r i ng emp loyees i n to Ba r t l esv i l l e and he lp t hem to wan t

t o s t a y i n B a r t l e s v i l l e .

A l l r i g h t .

2 5 t h , 2 6 t h —

U h - h u h .

— o f A u g u s t 2 0 2 1 ?

A .

4

5

6

S o t h e s e a r t i c l e s c a m e o u t a r o u n d t h e7 Q .

8

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1 Y e s .A .

A f te r t ha t t ime , d id you rece ive any commun ica t i on

—did you receive any concerning communication about

Mr. Nelson reaching out to anyone?

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4

1 5 Y e s .A .

who did you hear from?

Iactually heard from one of our employees at the

time, and he had received an e-mail from, Ibelieve, David

wood, who runs this program, because somebody had e-mai1ed

the c i ty manager and, Ibe l ieve, h is ass is tant , tha t

somebody was Michael Nelson, and warning them about the

B lanchards and how we were aPonz i scheme and how we were

c r i m i n a l s a n d w e h a d c o m e t o B a r t l e s v i l l e t o s t e a l

everything from everybody, from what iremember,

d idn ' t say i t l i ke tha t , bu t tha t was the ins inuat ion .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

H e2 4

2 5
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1 Okay. So you were aware that there had been an —

an e-mail to the —to the city manager?

Q .

2

3 Iwas aware, but Idid not know unti l Monday

morn ing about tha t because the employee tha t rece ived tha t

e - m a i l w a s i n a d i f f e r e n t o f fi c e , i f i t * s o k a y — t e l l m e

i f I s h o u l d n ' t g o o n a n d e x p l a i n t h i s p a r t . B u t w h e n I

g o t t h e c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r o n t h e 2 6 t h , i t s c a r e d m e

t e r r i b l y . I w e n t d i r e c t l y t o t h e p o l i c e d e p a r t m e n t t o

fi l e a r e p o r t .

Okay.

The pol ice department encouraged me to go to Ray of

Hope to ge t apro tec t ive order. Iwent to Ray o f Hope. I

fi l led out the paperwork . But in ta lk ing and find ing out

more about how i t works , ld idn ' t go ahead and comple te

that completely until Monday morning when Ifound out that

Mr. Ne l son had e -ma i l ed the c i t y manager. And tha t

petr ified me because I thought, oh, no, h is re ign of

terror was going to come into this community.

I w a s h o r r i fi e d , a n d I w a s a l s o s c a r e d f o r e v e r y o n e

t h a t ' s i n B a r t l e s v i l l e w h o i s c l o s e t o u s . A n d t h a t

A .

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

includes my family, my 91-year-old mother and 94-year-old

father, my sister, my nieces, my nephews, the tenants in

I t scared me, so tha t ' s when

2 1

2 2

ou r bu i l d i ng , ou r emp loyees .

I w e n t a n d I s a i d I — w e n e e d a p r o t e c t i v e o r d e r .

2 3

2 4

So , MS. B lanchard —and you ' ve k ind o fOkay.2 5 Q .
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a n s w e r e d t h i s q u e s t i o n — b u t t h e s e c o n t a c t s f r o m M r.

N e l s o n f r o m t h e t i m e t h a t M r . N e l s o n w a s fi r e d w i t h t h e

incident of him threatening aboard member that you're

a w a r e o f —

1

2

3

4

U h - h u h .5 A .

— t o t h e t i m e t h a t h e s e n d s y o u a c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r

and t he re ' s con tac t w i t h t he c i t y manage r o f

B a r t l e s v i l l e —

6 Q .

7

8

U h - h u h .9 A .

—how has t h i s en t i r e t ime made you f ee l?

Te r r i fi e d , w a l k i n g a r o u n d n e v e r k n o w i n g w h e n h i s

rage is going to happen and he's going to come out and

a c c u s e u s — i t ' s a l l l i e s . H e d o e s n ' t h a v e a n y e v i d e n c e

o f any o f t he t h i ngs t ha t he ' s accused us o f , any th i ng ,

because he doesn ' t have access to any o f our finance —he

d o e s n ' t , u n l e s s h e ' s — u n l e s s h e ' s h a c k e d a n d g o t t e n i n

t h e r e i l l e g a l l y . T e r r i fi e d .

H e h a s c o n t a c t e d s h a r e h o l d e r s w h o — h e s h o u l d n ' t

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

h a v e s h a r e h o l d e r i n f o r m a t i o n . H o w d i d h e g e t t h a t ? I t ' s

no t pub l ic . I t ' s no t pub l ic . So he s tops a t no th ing , and

then he doubles down, which is even more f r ighten ing

because he has errat ic behavior, which makes h im

unpredictable, and that makes him very dangerous, and I'm

s c a r e d o f h i m .

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

Thank you, Ms. Blanchard.2 5 Q .
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MS. GULLETT: I h a v e n o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s ,

J u d g e . I p a s s t h e w i t n e s s .

1

2

w e ' r e g o i n g t o t a k e a b r e a k f o r t h e

c o u r t r e p o r t e r ' s s a k e , a n d p r o b a b l y t h e j u r o r s w o u l d l i k e

I t i s j u s t a c o u p l e o f m i n u t e s a f t e r 11 .

S o i f y o u w i n b e

3 T H E c o u r t :

4

a b r e a k a s w e l l .5

We ' r e g o i n g t o t a k e a 1 5 - m i n u t e b r e a k ,

b a c k i n t h e j u r y r o o m i n 1 5 m i n u t e s , t h e b a i l i f f w i l l

b r ing you in when i t ' s t ime fo r you to come back in .

so , thank you, lad ies and gent lemen.

6

7

8

W e ' l l b e i n9

1 0 r e c e s s .

( w h e r e u p o n , a b r i e f r e c e s s w a s t a k e n .

T h e r e a f t e r, p r o c e e d i n g s r e s u m e d a s f o l l o w s : )

THE COURT: okay. We are now back on the record

i n t h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a v e r s u s M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

Mr. Adams, are you ready to proceed?

MR. ADAMS: Ye s , J u d g e .

THE court: A n d , M s . G u l l e t t , a r e y o u r e a d y ?

MS. GULLETT: Y e s , J u d g e . T h a n k y o u .

THE COURT: M a d a m B a i l i f f , w o u l d y o u p l e a s e

d i r e c t t h e j u r o r s t o t h e i r p l a c e i n t h e j u r y b o x ?

wou ld bo th o f t he a t t o rneys t ake a l ook a round and

make sure you are - - don' t have any of wi tnesses in the

c o u r t r o o m . T h e r e ' s o n e e x t r a p e r s o n t h a t I d o n ' t

r ecogn i ze .

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

THE BAILIFF: A l l r i s e .2 5
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Ms . B lancha rd , Iwou ld rem ind you1 T H E C O U R T :

tha t you are under oa th .

And, Mr. Adams, you may cross-examine the witness.

2

3

4 .CRQS5.7EXAM1NAIIQN

5 B Y M R . A D A M S ;

Now, Ms. B lanchard, on Apr i l the 11th o f 2019, you

fi l e d a r e q u e s t f o r a c i v i l h a r a s s m e n t r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r

i n C a l i f o r n i a ; i s t h a t t r u e ?

6 Q .

7

8

9 Y e s .A .

And you fi l ed t ha t r eques t and reques ted t he cou r t

o u t t h e r e t o g i v e y o u a c i v i l h a r a s s m e n t r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r

aga ins t Mr. Ne lson?

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3 A . Y e s .

A n d d i d y o u fi l e t h a t i n p e r s o n ?1 4 Q .

I d i d .1 5 A .

An d yo u l i s t e d a n a d d re ss t h e re o f w i l sh i r e

B o u l e v a r d i n S a n t a M o n i c a ?

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8 A . Y e s .

Now, you to ld th is jury that was your second home.

N o . T h a t ' s a m a i l b o x n u m b e r .

1 9 Q .

2 0 A .

S o t h a t ' s n o t a h o m e , t h a t ' s j u s t a m a i l b o x ?

T h a t i s a m a i l b o x n u m b e r , b u t w e d i d h a v e a h o m e i n

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

S a n t a M o n i c a .2 3

N o w, y o u a l s o fi l e d a p o l i c e r e p o r t t h e p r e c e d i n g

month, in March o f 2019, aga ins t Mr. Ne lson here in the

2 4 Q .

2 5
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C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e ?1

2 A . Y e s .

And the address you l i s ted on tha t , tha t was

a m a i l b o x n u m b e r , t o o , w a s n ' t i t ?

I d o n ' t r e c a l l .

Okay.3 Q .

4

5 A .

D idn ' t you have ama i lbox number here in6 Q .

B a r t l e s v i l l e ?7

I d o n o t r e c a l 1 .8 A .

Didn' t you have amai lbox number in the Cayman9 Q .

i s l a n d s ?1 0

1 1 N O .A .

NOW, your husband, on his Facebook page —

Do you guys l i ve together?

W e d o .

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4 A .

A n d y o u ' v e t o l d u s t h a t B a r t l e s v i l l e i s y o u rOkay.1 5 Q .

home?1 6

I t i s .1 7 A .

Doesn't your husband on his Facebook page say that

h e l i v e s i n T e x a s ?

1 8 Q .

1 9

I d o n ' t g o t o h i sYou' l l have to ask my husband.2 0 A .

Facebook page.

Q . o k a y . D i d y o u g e t — y o u t o l d u s t h a t y o u

estab l ished res idency here in May of 2020?

We s tayed here . We were l i v ing w i th my parents

u n t i l w e f o u n d a h o m e . Y e s , t h a t ' s w h a t I s a i d .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5
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But 1n September, a lmost October, September the

28th of 2020, you got sued in Texas?

I d i d n ' t g e t s u e d a n y w h e r e , s i r .

D idn ' t your husband —

YOU and your husband live together, though, right?

We l i v e t o g e t h e r.

Your husband got sued in Texas, and i t

a l l e g e d i n t h e l a w s u i t t h a t h e r e s i d e d i n Te x a s ?

YOU wi11 have to ask my husband that question.

Ma 'am, An them vau l t , i nco rpora ted , a re you the

p r e s i d e n t o f t h a t o r g a n i z a t i o n ?

1 Q .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

5

6 A .

Y e a h .7 Q .

8

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 A . N o , I a m n o t .

Are you the CEO?1 3 Q .

1 4 A . I a m n o t .

You have nothing to do wi th Anthem Vaul t ,1 5 Q .

I n c o r p o r a t e d ?1 6

N o t a t t h i s p o i n t . I ' m a n e m p l o y e e .

Okay. You ' re an emp loyee?

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

U h - h u h .1 9 A .

Bu t i t ' s —you r husband i s t he CEO?

Ye s , h e i s .

Do you have anyth ing to do wi th them at that po int?

You mean , as amar r i ed coup le o r a re you re fe r r i ng

to the company?

As far as the company.

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 A . Y e s .

2 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r .

THE WITNESS: I t d o e s n ' t m a k e s e n s e .3

3us t amomen t , p l ease .

I w o u l d a s k h i m t o l a y a

T h e r e ' s b e e n a l o t o f d a t e s , s o w h e n

4 T H E C O U R T :

5 M S . G U L L E T T :

f o u n d a t i o n t o w h e n .6

a re we ta lk ing about?7

So I 'm go ing to sus ta in you r8 T H E C O U R T :

o b j e c t i o n .9

A n d i f y o u ' l l j u s t g i v e u s a t i m e f r a m e o f w i t h i n

w h i c h y o u ' r e t a l k i n g a b o u t .

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .

THE court: o k a y

(By Mr. Adams) At one point , you were l is ted as the

C E O o f A n t h e m v a u l t ?

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 Q .

1 5

1 6 A . N O .

Have you ever had any re lat ionship wi th Anthem1 7 Q .

V a u l t ?1 8

1 9 A . Y e s .

O k a y. A n d w h a t i s t h a t ?

I w a s t h e p r e s i d e n t o f A n t h e m Va u l t .

When?

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

An them vau l t was incorpora ted in 2011 . An them

v a u l t w a s l a u n c h e d , I b e l i e v e , a s a l i v e c o m p a n y w i t h a

w e b s i t e i n , l b e l i e v e , D e c e m b e r o f 2 0 1 2 , a n d I r e m a i n e d i n

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5
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And then we created aholding company andt h a t p o s i t i o n ,

t hen Iwas t he p res i den t o f t he ho l d i ng company a t t ha t

1

2

t i m e . I h a v e n o t b e e n i n t h a t p o s i t i o n .

A t w h a t t i m e ?

3

4 Q .

Yo u k n o w w h a t , I d o n ' t r e c a l l . I c a n ' t g i v e y o u a

I ' m n o t g o i n g t o a n s w e r t h a t i f I d o n ' t k n o w

5 A .

s p e c i fi c ,

s p e c i fi c a l l y .

6

7

So you ' re re fus ing to answer?

No , I 'm no t r e f us i ng t o answe r.

8 Q .

I ' m s a y i n g t h a t I

don ' t know the spec i fic da te , because tha t w i l l come back

i f I d o n ' t a n s w e r c o r r e c t l y , s o I u n d e r s t a n d i s h o u l d n ' t

s p e c u l a t e .

Okay.

I k n o w a r o u n d a b o u t , b u t I ' m n o t g o i n g t o —

But you know what I 'm ta l k ing abou t w i th th i s

l a w s u i t , r i g h t ?

You' l l have to ask my husband.

Okay.

I t has noth ing to do w i th me.

D o e s n ' t i t — i s n ' t i t i n t h a t e x h i b i t t h a t j u s t

go t i n t roduced where Mr. Ne l son i s exp la in ing to t he

p e o p l e o f t h e c i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e t h a t t h e p e o p l e t h a t

they j us t ag reed to g i ve economic i ncen t i ve money to j us t

go t sued fo r over ahundred thousand do l la rs by Amer ican

Express in Texas?

9 A .

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r, f a c t s n o t1 M S . G U L L E T T :

i n e v i d e n c e .2

I t i s i n e v i d e n c e .3 M R . A D A M S :

4 THE COURT: J u s t a m o m e n t .

Yo u r o b j e c t i o n ?

MS. GULLETT: T h e e - m a i l f r o m t h e c i t y o f

B a r t l e s v i l l e h a s n o t a c t u a l l y b e e n i n t r o d u c e d y e t . T h a t

i s n o t o n e o f t h e e - m a i l s t h a t h a s b e e n i n t r o — o r t o t h e

5

6

7

8

C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e h a s n o t b e e n i n t r o d u c e d y e t . T h a t

would be through two other witnesses who have not come in.

THE COURT: o k a y . A t t h i s t i m e , l * m g o i n g t o

s u s t a i n t h e o b j e c t i o n .

( B y M r. A d a m s ) i n t h e e - m a i l t o t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e

Deve lopmen t Agency, doesn ' t he d i scuss —doesn ' t he

d i s c u s s t h i s , t h i s A m e r i c a n E x p r e s s l a w s u i t ?

I d o n ' t r e c a l 1 .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6 A .

Y O U d o n ' t r e c a l l ?1 7 Q .

I d o n ' t .1 8 A .

A n d s o y o u ' r e t e l l i n g — a r e y o u t e l l i n g u s t h a t

you know nothing about your husband that you l ive wi th and

the company that you used to be invo lved wi th get t ing sued

f o r o v e r a h u n d r e d t h o u s a n d d o l l a r s i n T e x a s a r o u n d - a b o u t

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2

t he t ime t ha t you pe rsuaded Ba r t l esv i l l e t o g i ve you guys

some economic incentive money?

This had to do with my husband.

2 3

2 4

I a m f a m i l i a r w i t h2 5 A .
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1 t , b u t 1 a m n o t f a m i l i a r w i t h i t e n o u g h t o a n s w e r y o u r

q u e s t i o n s . S o I d o n ' t w a n t t o s a y a n y t h i n g t h a t I d o n ' t

have aknowledge base on.

Q . o k a y . B u t y o u — y o u w i l l a d m i t t h a t y o u h a v e

know ledge o f i t ?

I d i d h a v e k n o w l e d g e o f i t , b u t i t w a s n ' t t o m e , i t

w a sn ' t a b o u t me , a n d i t w a s so me th i n g I t h i n k w a s se t t l e d .

But you can ask my husband.

Q . O k a y .

1

2

3

4

5

6 A .

7

8

9

P l e a s e f e e l f r e e t o d o t h a t .1 0 A .

Okay.1 1 Q .

Okay?

w e l l , I w i l l a s k y o u r h u s b a n d —

Okay.

— w h e n I h a v e a n o p p o r t u n i t y .

Okay,

o k a y.

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

N o w, l e t ' s t a l k a b o u t — i n t h e s a m e t i m e

frame, you guys got sued in the Cayman is lands, too,

r i g h t ?

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

THE COURT: So , Mr. —Mr. Adams , you keep say i ng

in the same t ime f rame, bu t we 've ta lked about severa l

d i f f e r e n t t i m e f r a m e s , s o i f y o u w i l l t a l k a b o u t w h i c h

t i m e f r a m e y o u a r e s p e c i fi c a l l y a d d r e s s i n g .

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .

(By Mr. Adams) June the 30th of 2020, d idn ' t your

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .
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companies, HERC CEZC and AG HERC, incorporated get sued in

the Cayman islands?

I ' m a w a r e o f t h a t .

1

2

3 A .

O k a y. D i d y o u g e t a c o p y o f t h e l a w s u i t ?

No, Id id not. That goes to our legal department.

But Iwill say this: I d o k n o w a b o u t t h i s o n e . W e h a d

ren ted o ffice space as pa r t o f t he Cayman En te rp r i se C i t y,

wh ich i s an o rgan iza t i on tha t he lped compan ies p rov ide ,

l i k e , i n c u b a t o r a n d o f fi c e s p a c e , a n d i t w a s a r e a l

community when we had acompany down there.

We were advised to go to Cayman islands from a

rep resen ta t i ve De lo i t t e o f San F ranc i sco , because tha t was

i n a j u r i s d i c t i o n t h a t w a s f a v o r a b l e f o r t h e — i t w a s

c a l l e d p r o t o c o l . A f t e r t w o y e a r s , w e h a d c o m p l e t e d t h e

protoco l , we d idn ' t need to be in Cayman anymore, we

in fo rmed the cayman En te rp r i se C i t y tha t we wou ld l i ke to

e n d t h e r e l a t i o n s h i p .

C O V I D h i t . I t b e c a m e a l i t t l e n u t t y, a n d w e w e r e

h a v i n g a h a r d t i m e w i t h a n y i n t e r a c t i o n f o r a w h i l e . A n d

t h e n a l l o f a s u d d e n , w e f o u n d o u t t h a t t h e r e w a s , l i k e , I

t h i n k i t w a s $ 1 0 , 0 0 0 t h e y s a i d t h a t w e o w e d — i t m i g h t

h a v e b e e n 2 0 , l d o n ' t r e m e m b e r . S e e , a g a i n , I d o n ' t

r e m e m b e r t h e d a t e s — I m e a n , t h e p r i c e . B u t i t w a s a

smal l amount o f money they sa id we s t i l l owed. I t was

s e t t l e d , I b e l i e v e f o r $ 1 9 , 0 0 0 , a n d t h e y w e r e fi n e w i t h

4 Q .

5 A .

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



7 7

i t . T h e y w e r e g r a t e f u l .

S o i t w a s a l o c a l . H e y, y o u g u y s h a v e n ' t p a i d .

We l l , y e a h , t r i e d t o w o r k w i t h y o u , b u t t h e n a l l c r a z i n e s s

because of COVID hi t , so i t was very minor.

NOW, do you —you would agree with me, ma'am -- or

would you agree wi th me that i f acommuni ty had dec ided to

g i ve a b u s i n e ss t a x -p a ye r mo n e y —w h i ch i s w h a t yo u

r e c e i v e d , r i g h t , e c o n o m i c i n c e n t i v e i s t a x - p a y e r m o n e y,

t h a t — t h a t c i t y o r t h a t c o m m u n i t y m a y w a n t t o k n o w t h a t

the peop le tha t they jus t gave th is money to have go t

t h e s e p e n d i n g l a w s u i t s o u t t h e r e ? D o n ' t y o u a g r e e t h a t

t h a t ' s a t l e a s t r e l e v a n t f o r t h e m t o k n o w t h a t

1

2

3

4

5 Q .

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

i n f o r m a t i o n ?1 3

You would have to ask the Ci ty.

I ' m t a l k i n g t o y o u .

I k n o w y o u ' r e t a l k i n g t o m e a n d I ' m a n s w e r i n g ,

( c r o s s - t a l k . )

THE COURT: 3 u s t a m o m e n t , m a ' a m . M a ' a m , l i s t e n

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8

t o h i s q u e s t i o n .1 9

THE WITNESS: Okay.2 0

( C r o s s - t a l k . )2 1

THE COURT: M a ' a m .2 2

THE WITNESS: G O a h e a d .2 3

THE COURT: L i s t e n t o h i s q u e s t i o n . D o n ' t t a l k2 4

o v e r o n e a n o t h e r .2 5
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1 (By Mr. Adams) Wouldn' t you agree that that would

b e a l e g i t i m a t e t h i n g f o r t h a t c o m m u n i t y t o a t l e a s t l o o k

at and consider whether they've given the money to

somebody they shou ldn ' t g i ve I t t o?

Q .

2

3

4

O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r , c a l l s f o r

She doesn ' t wo rk f o r t he C i t y,

n o t t h e c i t y m a n a g e r, a n d s h e ' s n o t I n t h e C i t y ' s

employment.

5 M S . G U L L E T T :

h e r t o s p e c u l a t e .6 S h e ' s

7

8

THE COURT: O k a y. Yo u r o b j e c t i o n I s s u s t a i n e d .

( B y M r . A d a m s ) w e l l , t h a t ' s — t h e s t u f f t h a t h e

sa id abou t you was t rue , r i gh t? When he to ld them tha t

y o u h a d t h e s e l a w s u i t s , t h a t — t h a t w a s t r u e , r i g h t ?

(No response. )

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r . H e s a i d a

l o t o f s t u f f , s o I d o n ' t t h i n k s h e c a n a n s w e r t h a t

q u e s t i o n .

9

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6

MR. ADAMS: I ' l l g e t m o r e s p e c i fi c .

THE COURT: I f y o u w o u l d , t h a t w o u l d b e v e r y

1 7

1 8

h e l p f u l . T h a n k y o u .

(By Mr. Adams) when he to ld the Bar t lesv i l l e

Development Association In that communication that you had

— t h e r e h a d b e e n t h i s l a w s u i t fi l e d I n T e x a s f r o m

Amer ican Express fo r over $120,000, tha t was the t ru th —

t h a t w a s t r u e ?

1 9

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

H e s a i d w e w e r e a P o n z i s c h e m e . H e s a i d2 5 A .
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a c c u s a t i o n s t h a t w e r e i n c o r r e c t .1

Okay. we*n ge t t o t he Ponz i scheme —

w e l l , I ' m j u s t a n s w e r i n g y o u r q u e s t i o n .

THE COURT. Ma 'am. Ma 'am. L i s t en j us t a

2 Q .

3 A .

4

5 m o m e n t .

Mr. Adams, repeat your ques t ion .

L i s t e n t o h i s q u e s t i o n a n d j u s t a n s w e r i t .

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Answer what he asks you.

THE WITNESS: Try again.

(By Mr. Adams) when he said that you guys had been

sued in Texas fo r over $120,000, tha t was t rue?

A S f a r a s I k n o w, t h a t w a s a s e t t l e d c a s e , b u t y o u

have to ask my husband. He was involved wi th i t and our

l e g a l c o u n s e l w a s i n v o l v e d w i t h i t . I t w a s s e t t l e d . I t

was se t t l ed . And , aga in , t h i s was pa r t o f COVID t ime , so

I k n o w t h a t t h e r e w a s i n t e r a c t i o n , b u t I d o n ' t k n o w t h e

d e t a i 1 s .

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

When he in formed the Bar t lesv i l le Deve lopment

Agency that you had been sued in the Cayman is lands, that

w a s t r u e ?

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

I n r e f e r e n c e t o t h e e - m a i l t h a t I t h i n k y o u ' r e

r e f e r r i n g t o — i f I ' m u n d e r s t a n d i n g y o u c o r r e c t l y ,

you're asking about that e-mail that was sent to the city

m a n a g e r ; i s t h a t c o r r e c t ?

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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NO, I 'm ta lk ing about the one tha t was sen t to the

Ba r t l esv i l l e Deve lopmen t Agency.

AS far as Iknow, it was sent to the city manager,

a n d — h e r — h i s a s s i s t a n t .

1 Q .

2

3 A .

4

Mr. Adams, a re you re fe r r i ng to a

s p e c i fi c e x h i b i t t h a t h a s b e e n a d m i t t e d ?

I ' m r e f e r r i n g t o e x h i b i t s t h a t h a v e

Bu t I 'm go ing t o

5 T H E c o u r t :

6

7 M R . A D A M S :

been given to me by the State, Judge,

m o v e o n t o t h e n e x t i s s u e .

8

9

THE COURT: o k a y. T h a n k y o u .

(By Mr. Adams) Now, ma'am, you take issue with the

f a c t t h a t h e i s c l a i m i n g a n d h e w a s t e l l i n g p e o p l e t h a t

y o u g u y s w e r e c o n d u c t i n g a P o n z i s c h e m e . I s t h a t — d i d I

hea r you say t ha t ea r l i e r?

cou ld you repea t wha t you jus t sa id , p lease .

D i d I h e a r y o u s a y e a r l i e r t h a t y o u w e r e

comp la in ing tha t Mr. Ne l son was te l l i ng peop le t ha t you —

your companies were conduct ing aPonzi scheme?

I w a s s t a t i n g a f a c t t h a t h e ' s b e e n t e l l i n g p e o p l e

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

t h a t .2 0

And you ' re compla in ing abou t tha t because you ' re

s a y i n g t h a t i t ' s n o t t r u e ?

I t i s n o t t r u e .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

Okay.

I d o n ' t t h i n k I u s e d t h e w o r d " c o m p l a i n .

2 4 Q .

f t2 5 A .
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1 Okay. You ' re say ing i t ' s not t rue?Q .

2 I t ' s n o t t r u e .A .

Okay.3 N o w, i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t — w h a t ' s t h e n a m e

of the —you guys had atoken called HERC, right?

Q .

4

5 A . Y e s .

6 H - E - R - C ?Q .

7 A . Y e s .

A n d i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t t h e c h i e f m a r k e t e r , o n e o f

your adv iso rs fo r tha t company, was ind ic ted and p led

gui l ty to afedera l Ponzi scheme in the b i t dub

p rosecu t i on?

8 Q .

9

1 0

1 1

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . C a l l s f o r

her to test i fy to hearsay, we don't have anything —

t h e r e ' s n o o n e h e r e t o t e s t i f y t o t h a t .

(By Mr. Adams) If you know.

THE COURT: Jus t amoment . I 'm go ing to sus ta in

her objection, so move on to your next question.

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, Joby weeks used to be one of

your board adv iso rs , d id he no t?

H e d i d .

Okay. Joby weeks was the chief marketer for the

B i t C lub M in ing?

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . N o t

r e l e v a n t . M r . w e e k s h a s n e v e r b e e n t o B a r t l e s v i l l e , d o e s

no t work fo r Heraso f t and has no th ing to do w i th th i s

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 c a s e .

2 THE COURT: H O W i s i t r e l e v a n t , M r. A d a m s ? A n d

if you want to come forward and discuss it, that's okay.3

4 t o o .

MR. ADAMS: J u d g e , I c a n a s k a d i f f e r e n t

quest ion and show the relevance. 1*11 t ie i t r ight up.

THE COURT: o k a y .

(By Mr. Adams) You put out awhi te paper in your

b l o c k c h a i n — y o u r H E R C b l o c k c h a i n , r i g h t ?

I d i d n o t . A g a i n , t h i s i s n o t s o m e t h i n g I c a n

d i s c u s s w i t h k n o w l e d g e , a n d I w o n ' t d i s c u s s a n y t h i n g I

d o n ' t k n o w a b o u t . Yo u h a v e t o t a l k t o t h e p e o p l e w i t h i n

the company that has knowledge base about a l l that .

Joby weeks is no longer one o f your adv isors , i s

5

6

7

8 Q .

9

1 0 A .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 Q .

h e ?1 5

1 6 A . N O .

Now, ma'am, do you guys make —you say things —

y o u ' r e i n v o l v e d i n t h e m a r k e t i n y o u r c o m p a n y, r i g h t ?

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9 N O , I a m n o t .

w e l l , y o u fl y a r o u n d w i t h y o u r h u s b a n d , r i g h t ?

I d o . I h a v e . N o t t h i s y e a r , b u t i n t h e p a s t .

A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 y e s .

And you've gone to conferences wi th h im?Okay.2 3 Q .

2 4 A . Y e s .

And you showed up with interviews on YouTube with2 5 Q .
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h i m ?1

2 A . Y e s .

Okay. And you've gone to Dubai with him?3 Q .

4 A . Y e s .

And New York City with him?5 Q .

6 A . Y e s .

A n d , i n f a c t , y o u ' r e t h e — a t t h e t i m e i n 2 0 1 9 ,

you were the pres ident of Anthem Vaul t , were you not?

7 Q .

8

9 A . Y e s .

Now, do you guys say th ings to people that are not

t r u e t o l o o k l i k e b i g s h o t s ?

N o . N o . A n d w e ' r e n o t b i g s h o t s .

D o e s n ' t —

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

we 've been a round b ig sho ts , we ' re no t b ig sho ts .

D o e s n ' t y o u r h u s b a n d c l a i m t h a t h e i s a d i p l o m a t —

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A . N O .

— f o r t h e F r e e R e p u b l i c o f L i b e r l a n d ?

No, he does not.

Ma 'am, doesn ' t he even have apasspor t tha t says he

h a s a d i p l o m a t i c p a s s p o r t f o r t h e F r e e R e p u b l i c o f

L i b e r l a n d ?

1 7 Q .

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

You would have to ask my husband.

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r . N o n e o f

th i s i s re levan t to why we a re he re today, wh ich i s a

c r i m i n a l c a s e f o r M r . N e l s o n .

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 I t goes to hones ty, Judge .

You ' r e ask i ng he r ques t i ons t ha t she

c a n o n l y a n s w e r, I b e l i e v e , t h r o u g h h e a r s a y, u n l e s s y o u

c a n e s t a b l i s h i t o t h e r w i s e .

M R . A D A M S :

2 T H E C O U R T :

3

4

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .5

THE COURT: S O s u s t a i n e d .6

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, you have acurrent campaign

o n a w e b s i t e f o r H e r a S o f t , a n d i t i s c a l l e d w e f u n d e r ?

7 Q .

8

9 Y e s .A .

Y o u k n o w a b o u t t h a t ?1 0 Q .

I d o .1 1 A .

T h e r e ' s a v i d e o o f y o u o n t h e w e b s i t e ?

N o t a v i d e o o f m e o n t h e w e b s i t e .

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

w e l l , a p i c t u r e o f a v i d e o o f y o u o n t h e w e b s i t e ?

I t ' s n o t a p i c t u r e o f a v i d e o o f m e o n t h e w e b s i t e ,

w o u l d i t r e f r e s h y o u r r e c o l l e c t i o n i f y o u w e r e a b l e

t o l o o k a t t h e w e b s i t e ?

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6 Q-

1 7

The re i s ap i c tu re o f my husband and I , bu t t he

v i d e o d o e s n ' t h a v e e i t h e r o f u s o n i t .

S o t h e r e ' s a p i c t u r e o f y o u g u y s a n d y o u ' r e

t r y i ng t o ra i se money f o r He raSo f t?

1 8 A .

1 9

Okay.2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 Y e s .A .

And you t e l l t hem tha t you ' r e t he co - f ounde r t he re2 3 Q .

o f H e r a S o f t ?2 4

2 5 Y e s .A .
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NOW, also, 1t lists the people associated with your

company, does i t not?

1 Q .

2

3 A . Y e s .

And you're listing that to present your company to

the publ ic in hopes of ra is ing three mi l l ion dol lars?

I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t t h a t n u m b e r i s . A g a i n —

MS. GULLETT: W e l l , J u d g e , o b j e c t i o n . I d o n ' t

— w h y i s t h i s r e l e v a n t ?

MR. ADAMS: I ' m a b o u t t o g e t t h e r e . J u d g e .

THE COURT: w a i t a m i n u t e .

I f you want to make an object ion, stand up and make

a n o b j e c t i o n , a n d t h e n I ' l l l e t h i m r e s p o n d .

MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , t h e s t a t e w o u l d o b j e c t

t h a t t h i s i s n o t r e l e v a n t . A s t o t h e b u s i n e s s d o i n g s o f

HeraSof t , what they do or not do has noth ing to do wi th

why we' re here today.

THE COURT: O k a y. M r. A d a m s , y o u r r e s p o n s e ?

MR. ADAMS: My response is: I s t h e c l a i m —

t h r o u g h t h i s w i t n e s s — i s t h a t m y c l i e n t i s h a r a s s i n g

them by c la iming tha t they ' re runn ing aPonz i scheme when

t h e y w e r e n o t , a n d t h e y a r e p r e s e n t i n g t h i n g s f a l s e l y t o

t h e p u b l i c o n t h i s w e b s i t e t h a t I w o u l d l i k e t o

c r o s s - e x a m i n e h e r a b o u t .

4 Q .

5

6 A .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t ?2 4

w e h a v e h a d n o e v i d e n c e t h a t t h e r e2 5 M S . G U L L E T T :
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i s a n y t h i n g f a l s e g o i n g o n w i t h H e r a s o f t ,1

2 THE WITNESS: Right.

3 I t h i n k a t t h i s p o i n t , M r . A d a m s ,

I f you wan t t o —

well , so for that reason, I 'm going to sustain her

And if you need to rephrase, you may, and

T H E C O U R T :

you are assuming fac ts not in ev idence.4

5

o b j e c t i o n ,

l e t ' s s e e i f w e c a n g e t t h e r e .

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, do you guys say anything

tha t ' s f a l se o r m is l ead ing on you r we funde r webs i t e?

N o t t h a t I ' m a w a r e o f .

6

7

8 Q .

9

1 0 A .

Okay.

I d i d n ' t p u t t h a t t o g e t h e r , t h o u g h ,

t o do w i t h any o f t ha t ,

o k a y.

— i f y o u w a n t t h o s e a n s w e r s ,

know these th ings.

Okay.

I d o .

1 1 Q .

I h a d n o t h i n g

You have to ask my husband —

1 2 A .

1 3

1 4 Q .

I ' m s e r i o u s , I d o n ' t1 5 A .

1 6

You know who Josh Gunter is, r ight?1 7 Q .

1 8 A .

He's your nephew?1 9 Q .

2 0 A . N O .

I s he re la ted to you?

N o t b i o l o g i c a l l y .

By marr iage?

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4 A . N O .

I f y o u a r e — i f y o u ' r e n o t r e l a t e d b y m a r r i a g e a n d2 5 Q .
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n o t r e l a t e d b i o l o g i c a l l y, h o w a r e y o u r e l a t e d ?

I s i t o k a y t o a n s w e r t h a t ?

I f h e a s k s y o u a q u e s t i o n s , a n s w e r

1

2 T H E W I T N E S S :

3 T H E C O U R T :

i t u n l e s s —4

5 He is my cous in 's s tepson.

Cous in 's s tepson, not re la ted d i rec t ly.

(By Mr. Adams) He's also —you've got him listed

on th is webs i te as the ch ie f admin is t ra tor o fficer, r igh t?

Y e s .

T H E W I T N E S S :

6

7 Q .

8

9 A .

And he also claims that he has adiplomatic

passpor t f rom the Free Repub l i c o f L iber land , does he no t?

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r , n o t

r e l e v a n t w h a t i s o n t h e H e r a S o f t w e b s i t e a s f a r a s t h i s

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3

w i t n e s s g o e s . I f M r. A d a m s w o u l d l i k e t o b r i n g i n s o m e o f

these o ther peop le and have them tes t i f y and then reca l l

t h i s w i t n e s s , h e c o u l d d o s o .

THE COURT: s u s t a i n e d .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

l u d g e , I w o u l d l i k e a n o p p o r t u n i t y1 8 M R . A D A M S :

to respond .1 9

THE COURT: s u s t a i n e d .2 0

I w o u l d w a n t t h e r e c o r d t o n o t e t h a t2 1 M R . A D A M S :

I h a v e n o t h a d a n o p p o r t u n i t y t o r e s p o n d a n d I o b j e c t t o

no t hav ing an oppor tun i t y t o respond .

THE COURT: You may ask your next quest ion.

(By Mr. Adams) we l l , ma 'am, l e t ' s t a l k abou t

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .
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N o v e m b e r t h e 7 t h o f 2 0 1 8 .1 NOW, on November the 7 th o f

2018, you guys were in the process —

when I say " you guys .

2

3 I I I 'm ta l k ing abou t An them

v a u l t .4

—was in the process o f launch ing the HERC token?

I t w a s n ' t A n t h e m V a u l t .

5

6 A .

But you were involved with the launch of the HERC7 Q .

t o k e n ?8

I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r t h e e x a c t d a t e , b u t i t w a s ' 1 8 .

I ' m j u s t s a y i n g —

Again, you have to ask my husband these th ings, but

the re was a launch —to answer you r ques t i on as we11 as I

can, there was alaunch of the HERC token at some point in

t h e t i m e l i n e , I g u e s s .

In fac t , you used to have an e -ma i l address tha t

sa id cynth ia@herc .one?

A g a i n , a s u b s i d i a r y o f o u r c o m p a n y.

Bu t t ha t was you r add ress , r i gh t?

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A . Y e s .

So cyn th ia@herc .one , tha t ' s you?2 0 Q .

2 1 A . Y e s .

And paul@herc.one, who is that?

P a u l i s o u r g e n e r a l c o u n s e l — o u r i n - h o u s e g e n e r a l

counsel for the company.

A n d i s h e o u t o f T e x a s ?

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 H e i s .A .

W h a t ' s h i s l a s t n a m e ?2 Q .

A u b e r t . w o u l d y o u l i k e m e t o s p e l l i t .

I S i t A - U - B - E - R - T ?

3 A .

4 Q .

I t i s .5 A .

Now, Mr. Ne lson , a t tha t t ime , was work ing fo r6 Q .

A n t h e m v a u l t ?7

8 A . H e w a s .

And Mr. Nelson, he had an e-mai l address of

m i c h a e l @ a n t h e m v a u l t , d i d h e n o t ?

9 Q .

1 0

1 1 Y e s .A .

Now, Mr. Nelson was working for you guys at the1 2 Q .

t i m e ?1 3

Ye s . i n ' 1 8 , y e s .

Yeah . And Mr. Ne lson sen t an e -ma i l to you a t

cyn th iadhere .one and pau ldherc .one to d iscuss w i th you

th is upcoming ca l l tha t you guys had about the launch o f

the HERC. Do you remember that?

U p c o m i n g h a l l ? H - A - L - L , h a l l ?

Y e a h . L i k e , a — l i k e a , g e n e r a l c a l l f o r t h e

company call or maybe on video?

o h c a l 1 .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

Y e a h .2 3 Q .

C a l l . I ' m s o r r y . I t h o u g h t y o u s a i d h a l l .

I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r t h a t , n o .

2 4 A .

2 5
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Ma 'am, do you th ink i t m igh t re f resh you r

r e c o l l e c t i o n i f y o u w e r e a b l e t o l o o k a t a c o p y o f t h a t

e - m a i l a d d r e s s ?

1 Q .

2

3

T h e e - m a i l a d d r e s s ?4 A .

I m e a n , n o t t h e — I a p o l o g i z e ,

o f t h e e - m a i l , t h e p r i n t e d e - m a i l , w o u l d t h a t

r e f r e s h y o u r r e c o l l e c t i o n a b o u t w h e t h e r y o u r e c e i v e d t h a t

e - m a i 1 ?

5 Q .

6

7

8

9 A . S u r e . Y e s .

MR. ADAMS: J u d g e , m a y I a p p r o a c h ?

THE court: Y e s , s i r .

Thank you.

(By Mr. Adams) Now, ma'am, that 's been forwarded a

c o u p l e o f d i f f e r e n t t i m e s , s o y o u ' l l h a v e t o fl i p t o t h e

— t o t h e s e c o n d p a g e t h e r e b e f o r e — a t t h e b o t t o m o f t h e

second page.

1 0

1 1

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6

I p r i n t e d i t l a r g e s o i t c o u l d b e r e a d .

A n d i f y o u ' l l j u s t k i n d o f r e a d t h r o u g h t h a t a

l i t t l e b i t a n d s e e i f t h a t —

That page?

T h e e - m a i l , i t s t a r t s o n t h e n e x t p a g e .

I f y o u ' d r e a d t h r o u g h t h a t a l i t t l e b i t a n d s e e i f

t h a t r e f r e s h e s y o u r r e c o l l e c t i o n a b o u t r e c e i v i n g t h a t

e - m a i 1 .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3

2 4

I d o n ' t — I d o n ' t r e c o g n i z e t h i s e - m a i l .2 5 A .
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Excuse me, ma 'am. I d i d n ' t h e a r w h a t y o u s a i d .

That is my address,

1 Q .

I d o n ' t r e m e m b e r t h i s e - m a i l .2 A .

I d o n o t r e m e m b e r i t .3

S o i s i t y o u r b e l i e f t h a t y o u n e v e r r e c e i v e d i t , i t

may have go t caugh t i n t he t r ash , o r t ha t you j us t don ' t

r e c a l l ?

4 Q .

5

6

I d o n ' t r e c a l l r e a d i n g t h i s e - m a i l .

W e l l , i f y o u d o n ' t r e c a l l , I g u e s s w e ' l l

j u s t h a v e t o g o a b o u t i t a d i f f e r e n t w a y.

e v e r b e e n t o l d — I ' l l m o v e o n f r o m t h a t .

7 A .

Okay.8 Q .

Ma'am, have you9

1 0

O k a y. D O I

Ye a h .

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

— g i v e i t b a c k t o y o u ?

Y o u c a n s e t i t t o t h e s i d e .

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

DO you remember, in November of 2018, ever being

to ld by M ichae l Ne l son i n any way, shape , o r f o rm , t ha t i t

was important that the employees not be trading the HERC

token because i t ' s marke t man ipu la t i on?

I d o n ' t r e c a l l a n y o f t h a t ,

wrong person to ask.

Okay.

S o r r y .

DO you ever reca l l be ing to ld by Michae l Ne lson , in

November of 2018, in any shape or form, that your husband.

A n t h e m —

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

W h e t h e r — a g a i n .1 9 A .

2 0

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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1 I *m sor ry, ma 'am?

w e l l , I —2 A .

3 Q . C a n I g e t y o u —

( C r o s s - t a l k . )4

5 THE COURT: M r. A d a m s , i f y o u d o n ' t w a n t — s h e

asked you to come get it, and you didn't, so if you don't

w a n t h e r t o l o o k a t i t , t h e n t a k e i t f r o m h e r.

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .

6

7

8

9 THE WITNESS: Y e s .

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, in November of 2018, do you

reca l l be ing to ld by Michae l Ne lson in any shape or fo rm

that your husband. Anthem, had been asking him to pump the

price and get volume trading of the herc token?

I d o n o t r e c a l l ; h o w e v e r, t h a t e - m a i l s a y s N o v e m b e r

I d o n ' t

Again, maybe ask Paul

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 A .

I d o n ' t r e c a l l t h a t e - m a i l .7 t h o f 2 0 1 8 .1 5

I d o n ' t r e c a l l i t .r e m e m b e r i t .1 6

A u b e r t .1 7

Yeah. What about your husband?

You' l l have to ask him and my husband, too.

Okay. NOW, do you recall Mr. Nelson, in November

o f 2018 , comp la in ing tha t he be l ieved tha t your husband

had asked him to do something that was i l legal by pumping

t h e H E R C t o k e n ?

A g a i n , I d o n ' t r e c a l l t h a t . I d o n ' t b e l i e v e m y

husband would ask anybody to do anyth ing i l lega l ; however.

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



9 3

I c a n ' t s p e a k f o r m y h u s b a n d ,

d i r e c t i y .

1 Y o u h a v e t o a s k h i m

2

3 Now, ma'am, your phone number —

Let's forward to the day and focus on the day that

your husband fired Michael Nelson, February the 24th —

Q .

4

5

u h - h u h .6 A .

— o f 2 0 1 9 . Do you have that in your mind?7 Q .

I d o .8 A .

DO you reca l l tha t?9 Q .

I d o .1 0 A .

Okay,

phone number 310-435-5707?

Now, at the t ime, your phone number —was1 1 Q .

1 2 y o u r

1 3 Y e s .A .

Now, tha t ' s aLos Ange les number?Okay.1 4 Q .

1 5 A . Y e s .

And your husband's phone number was 702-569-3431?1 6 Q .

1 7 Y e s .A .

A n d n o w t h a t ' s a T e x a s n u m b e r ?1 8 Q .

N o , i t ' s a — a N e v a d a n u m b e r — L a s Ve g a s n u m b e r.

N O W, d o y o u r e c a l l b e i n g i n v o l v e d i n a — i n

the tex t conversa t ion where your husband fi red Mr. Ne lson?

I w a s n ' t i n v o l v e d w i t h t h a t t e x t i n t e r c h a n g e , n o t

that one, but Iwas standing next to him when all this was

happening.

1 9 A .

Okay.2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

M a ' a m , i s i t p o s s i b l e y o u j u s t f o r g o t t h a t t e x t2 5 Q .
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exchange?1

2 I h a d t e x t e d w i t h M i c h a e l e a r l i e r i n t h e d a y

because he was agitated, and Iwas trying to calm him down

because what he was saying was out of l ine, not t rue, and

I d o r e c a l l r e s p o n d i n g t o h i m m i d - d a y s a y i n g , M i c h a e l ,

t h a t ' s n o t t r u e , w h a t a r e y o u t a l k i n g a b o u t ?

Okay.

T h a t ' s t h e e n d o f m y i n t e r a c t i o n .

I t ' s been many, many years , bu t i f tha t was

the same text exchange that my husband was on with him

l a t e r i n t h e e v e n i n g , t h e n I w a s o n i t , b u t I d i d n ' t s e e

so Iwas s tand ing nex t t o h im wh i l e he was tex t i ng

and then -- you know the rest ,

so are you saying you might have been involved in

t h i s t e x t — y o u m i g h t h a v e b e e n g e t t i n g s e n t i n t h i s t e x t

conve rsa t i on , bu t you we re pay i ng a t t en t i on t o you r

husband and not your phone?

I t e x t e d w i t h M i c h a e l N e l s o n e a r l i e r i n t h e d a y.

That could have been atext thread that my husband was on,

I d o n ' t r e c a l l , b u t I q u i t i n t e r a c t i n g w i t h h i m i n t h e

This was in the even ing o f February 24th ,

2019 , tha t the aggress ion happened, the th rea t to Mark

Hea two le happened , and An them tex ted "You ' re fi red , " I

t h i nk , and t hen t he nex t mo rn ing —and t hen he ca l l ed t he

g e n e r a l c o u n s e l , s a i d . Yo u g o t t a s e n d a t e r m i n a t i o n l e t t e r

A .

3

4

5

6

7 Q .

8 A n d I d o n ' t k n o wA .

t h e d e t a i l s .9

1 0

1 1

i t .1 2

1 3

1 4 Q-

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8 A .

1 9

2 0

a f t e r n o o n .2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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the next morn ing.

Now, ma 'am, do you reca l l du r ing tha t conversa t ion

that Michael Nelson was asking your husband where the

t h r e e m i l l i o n d o l l a r s w a s ?

T h a t ' s w h a t I k n o w .1

2 Q .

3

4

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; c a l l s f o r

h e a r s a y. S h e s a y s s h e d o e s n ' t r e c a l l t h e c o n v e r s a t i o n .

THE COURT: s u s t a i n e d .

5

6

7

MS. GULLETT: M o r e i m p o r t a n t , I — m o r e

i m p o r t a n t , I d o n ' t k n o w i f s h e w a s e v e n i n i t .

THE COURT: I —Ithink the question was: D o

y o u r e c a l l t h a t ? T h a t ' s a y e s o r n o q u e s t i o n .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 THE WITNESS: N O .

(By Mr. Adams) were you observ ing th is

conversa t ion wh i le i t was go ing on?

I t w a s a t e x t c o n v e r s a t i o n . I w a s s t a n d i n g n e x t t o

m y h u s b a n d . H e w a s — l a t e r — t h i s w a s i n t h e e v e n i n g

when he had got ten so aggravated and aggressive. And then

Mark Hea two le ca l l ed my husband —because Id idn ' t know

who he was text ing wi th —

M a ' a m —

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0 Q .

O k a y . I ' m r a t t l i n g o n .

Yo u ' r e p u l l i n g a w a y f r o m t h e p o i n t ,

okay.

So do you —were you observ ing th i s conversa t ion?

I w a s o b s e r v i n g h i m h a v i n g t h e c o n v e r s a t i o n , b u t I

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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d i d n ' t s e e t h e c o n v e r s a t i o n s b e c a u s e i t w a s t e x t . I S t h a t1

w h a t —2

M a ' a m , i s i t p o s s i b l e —

I ' m n o t f o l l o w i n g .

— t h a t y o u j u s t d o n ' t r e c a l l i t ?

I 'm no t qu i te sure what you ' re ask ing me.

I s i t p o s s i b l e t h a t y o u j u s t m i g h t n o t r e c a l l b e i n g

i n v o l v e d i n t h e c o n v e r s a t i o n , b u t t h a t i t w a s s e n t t o y o u

on your cel l phone?

Okay, wh i ch pa r t o f t he conve rsa t i on a re we

t a l k i n g a b o u t ?

The par t o f the conversat ion where your husband

t e l l s M r. N e l s o n t o c a l m t h e F d o w n o r y o u ' r e fi r e d r i g h t

now, ca l l s h im an MF 'e r and ab igo t .

O k a y . I w a s n o t a p a r t o f t h a t c o n v e r s a t i o n . H e

3 Q .

4 A .

5 Q .

6 A .

7 Q .

8

9

1 0 A .

1 1

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 t e x t

T h i s i s a l l t e x t , c o r r e c t ?1 7

1 8 Q . Y e s .

I f m y n u m b e r w a s o n i t , I w a s n ' t a t m y p h o n e . I

d i d n o t s e e t h a t i n t e r a c t i o n .

1 9 A .

2 0

Okay.

Is tha t what you ' re ask ing me?

Y e a h .

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

O k a y . Y e a h , i d i d n o t s e e t h a t i n t e r a c t i o n . I f

I ' m o n t h e t r a i l , I w a s — I w a s s t a n d i n g n e x t t o h i m .

2 4 A .

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A
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Actua l ly, 1walked out because he was very upset , and we1

h a d - -2

N o w, l * m g o i n g w a y o f f . Ye a h , s o r r y.

MS. GULLETT: S O , J u d g e , m y u n d e r s t a n d i n g i s

t h a t t h e r e i s a t e x t c o n v e r s a t i o n , w e ' v e h e a r d q u i t e a

b i t o f i t t a l k e d a b o u t . T h e S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a w o u l d h a v e

3

4

5

6

no ob jec t ion to th i s document coming in .

i s t h a t A n t h e m B l a n c h a r d c o u l d p r o b a b l y a u t h e n t i c a t e t h i s ,

and i t sounds l ike she was present whenever the texts were

a t leas t be ing exchanged.

My understanding7

8

9

1 0

Do you i n t end t o i n t r oduce i t as —1 1 T H E C O U R T :

MR. ADAMS: J u d g e , I —1 2

THE COURT: — a n e x h i b i t ?1 3

— I a g r e e w i t h t h e s t a t e m e n t .

I u n d e r s t a n d t h a t t h e C o u r t

I ' d1 4 M R . A D A M S :

l i k e t o i n t r o d u c e i t .1 5

probably doesn' t want me to in t roduce my copy wi th

h i g h l i g h t s , b u t I h a v e e x t r a p r i n t s o f i t h e r e ,

c o n v e n i e n t t i m e —

1 6

A n d a t a1 7

1 8

Or do you want me to introduce it now so you can

t a l k a b o u t i t ?

1 9

2 0

Tha t ' s up to you .2 1 M S . G U L L E T T :

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .2 2

MS. GULLETT: H a v e s o m e o f t h a t b a c k —2 3

I ' l l j u s t i n t r o d u c e t h i s n o w. J u d g e ,

I f i t ' s a p r o b l e m - - i s t h a t o k a y

2 4 M R . A D A M S :

w i t h t h e h i g h l i g h t s .2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T
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w i t h t h e C o u r t ?1

We i1 , you need ac lean copy o f t ha t .2 T H E c o u r t :

Do you have an extra copy?

MR. ADAMS: I d o . 3 u s t i n t h i s p i l e .

THE COURT: o k a y . i * l l g i v e y o u a m o m e n t t o

3

4

5

fi n d i t .6

MR. ADAMS: O k a y. J u d g e , I ' m g o i n g t o p u t

Mr. Nelson to work , so Ican keep moving on.

THE COURT: o k a y. L e t ' s m o v e o n .

MR. ADAMS: A l l r i g h t .

( B y M r . A d a m s ) s o l e t ' s t a l k a b o u t t h i s , i s i t

y o u r c l a i m t h a t y o u b e l i e v e — i s i t y o u r c l a i m t h a t

Mr. Ne lson was fi red because o f th rea ten ing Mr. Heatwo le?

T h a t ' s r i g h t .

O k a y. A n d w h e n y o u fi l e d y o u r c i v i l h a r a s s m e n t

r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r — o r y o u r r e q u e s t f o r t h e c i v i l

h a r a s s m e n t r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r, y o u a t t a c h e d a n u m b e r o f

d o c u m e n t s t o t h a t ?

7

8

9

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

1 8

We l l , t h e r e w e r e 6 0 0 p r i n t e d p a g e s . T h e y d i d n ' t

t a ke a l l o f t h e m. Th e y t o o k e n o u g h t o p ro ve t h a t t h e re

w a s a l o t o f —

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1

I ' m t a l k i n g a b o u t i n C a l i f o r n i a .

I ' m t e l l i n g y o u i n C a l i f o r n i a .

Okay.

Ye a h , I k n o w.

Okay.

I — I w a l k e d i n t o t h e S a n t a M o n i c a p o l i c e r e p o r t

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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—depar tmen t , w i t h ove r 600 p r i n ted pages o f ha rassmen t ,

and tha t was on ly amonth and aweek or so a f te r he got

fi r e d .

1

2

3

Okay.

They to ld me to go to the cour thouse to do th is

w h e n I w e n t t h e r e , t h e y

d i d t a k e i t — t h e y d i d p u t a r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r , s u b m i t

The on ly reason i t was re jec ted i s because we d idn ' t

know where he was and they couldn't serve him.

4 Q .

5 A .

because they were concerned, too.6

7

i t .8

9

1 0 Q . L e t m e s t o p y o u .

O h . Y O U a s k e d . I ' m s o r r y.1 1 A .

Y o u a t t a c h e d —1 2 Q .

F i r s t o f a l l , i s n ' t i t t r u e t h a t t h e y d e n i e d t h e

res t ra in ing o rde r and to ld you tha t you cou ld have a

hear ing because they d idn ' t see how you had a l leged that

M r , N e l s o n - -

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

They cou ldn ' t find h im t o se r ve h im . T h a t ' s1 7 N o .A .

w h a t I w a s t o l d .1 8

Okay.1 9 Q .

2 0 A . s o

The j udge d idn ' t i s sue an emergency res t ra in ing

o r d e r . T h e j u d g e s e t i t d o w n f o r a h e a r i n g ?

Because in Ca l i fo rn ia , even wi th an emergency

res t ra in ing o rder, the person has to be served, and no one

k n e w w h e r e h e w a s .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5
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1 Have you seen these documents —Q .

2 A . Y e s .

— t h a t y o u a t t a c h e d t o t h i s ?

Ye s , I h a v e .

Okay,

t h i s w a s a p o l i c e r e p o r t —

We11, le t me ask you th is :

t h a t w i t h t h e C o u r t i f y o u d i d n ' t b e l i e v e i t , r i g h t ?

B e l i e v e w h a t ?

3 Q .

4 A .

NOW, one of the th ings that you at tached to5 Q .

6

Y o u w o u l d n ' t h a v e fi l e d7

8

9 A .

what you at tached?

Was tha t Mark Heatwo le 's po l i ce repor t?

w e l l , a n y t h i n g , i s t h e q u e s t i o n ,

a t t a c h a n y t h i n g t o t h e p o l i c e r e p o r t t h a t y o u d i d n o t h a v e

a b e l i e f t o b e t r u e , r i g h t ?

I b e l i e v e M r. H e a t w o l e w h e n h e w a s t e l l i n g u s t h a t

M r . N e l s o n h a d t h r e a t e n e d t o s h o o t h i m b e c a u s e h e w a s

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

Y o u w o u l d n ' t1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6

S o i f t h a t ' s t h e p o l i c e r e p o r t y o u ' r eaggrava ted ,

r e f e r r i n g t o , y e s , I b e l i e v e d i t .

1 7

1 8

Y O U b e l i e v e d t h e — y o u b e l i e v e d t h e p o l i c e r e p o r t

t h a t y o u a t t a c h e d t o t h i s r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r ?

I f y o u w i l l l e t m e k n o w w h a t I a t t a c h e d , I w i l l

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1 A .

t e l l y o u .2 2

Okay.

I ' m p r e t t y s u r e t h e o n l y p o l i c e r e p o r t o u t t h e r e a t

t h a t p o i n t w a s — u n l e s s — I d o n ' t — y e a h .

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5
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1 MR. ADAMS: M a y I a p p r o a c h , J u d g e ?

THE COURT: L e t ' s S t o p r i g h t h e r e . I t ' s 1 2 : 0 0 .

W e ' r e g o i n g t o t a k e a b r e a k — t a k e a l u n c h b r e a k .

T h a t ' l l g i v e y o u a n o p p o r t u n i t y t o fi n d w h a t e v e r e - m a i l

y o u w e r e l o o k i n g f o r.

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .

THE COURT: w e ' l l j u s t s t o p t h e r e ,

s o , m a ' a m , w e ' r e g o i n g t o t a k e a l u n c h b r e a k . Yo u

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

may step down.9

1 0 THE WITNESS: N O W ?

1 1 THE COURT: Y e s .

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay. Leave?

THE COURT: Ye s , m a ' a m .

THE WITNESS: Okay.

(Whereupon, abench conference was had

o u t s i d e t h e h e a r i n g o f t h e j u r y . T h i s

bench con fe rence was no t a reques ted par t o f

t h i s t r a n s c r i p t . )

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

Lad ies and gent lemen, dur ing the

l u n c h b r e a k , I w o u l d r e m i n d y o u n o t t o t a l k a b o u t t h i s

D o n ' t t a l k a b o u t i t a m o n g s t y o u r s e l v e s .

Don ' t a l l ow anyone to t a l k abou t i t i n you r p resence ,

when you re turn f rom lunch, i f you would aga in

re tu rn t o t he j u r y room, and then we w i l l b r i ng you i n a t

S o w i t h t h a t b e i n g s a i d , i t ' s

1 9 T H E C O U R T :

2 0

case to anybody.2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

a t i m e t h a t i s a p p r o p r i a t e .2 5
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now 12:00; if everybody wi11 be back here and ready to go

a t 1 : 1 5 .

1

2

3 MS. GULLETT: J u d g e .

THE COURT: Ye s , m a ' a m .

MS. GULLETT: I ' m n o t s u r e w h o ' s g o i n g t o b e

ab le to do a r ra ignments f rom my o ffice —

THE COURT: o h .

4

5

6

7

— s i n c e t h e y a r e d o i n g —8 M S . G U L L E T T :

T H E c o u r t : o k a y.9

MS. GULLETT: — t h a t t r i a l u p s t a i r s , s o i f w e

may, may Ihave 1 :30?

THE COURT: I t h i n k t h e y m i s t r i e d t h a t o n e

1 0

1 1

1 2

u p s t a i r s .1 3

MS. GULLETT: T h e y d i d ?1 4

THE court: I d o n ' t k n o w .1 5

Let 's do 1:30, to be on the safe s ide and so you

guys don ' t end up s i t t i ng i n t he re an ex t ra 15 m inu tes .

1 6

1 7

1 8 s o 1 : 3 0 .

(Whereupon, a lunch break was taken.

T h e r e a f t e r, p r o c e e d i n g s r e s u m e d a s f o l l o w s : )

THE COURT: okay. We are now back on the record

in Washington County Dis t r ic t Cour t , Case Number

C F - 2 1 - 3 0 4 , S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a v e r s u s M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n .

E v e r y b o d y i s b a c k a f t e r t h e i r l u n c h b r e a k . A n d s o a t t h i s

t i m e . M a d a m B a i l i f f , w i l l y o u p l e a s e d i r e c t t h e j u r o r s t o

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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t h e i r p l a c e 1 n t h e j u r y b o x .

(The fo l l ow ing took p lace w i th in the p resence and

h e a r i n g o f t h e j u r y : )

1

2

3

M s . B l a n c h a r d , I w o u l d , a g a i n .4 T H E C O U R T :

remind you that you are under oath.

And, Mr. Adams, you may continue your

c r o s s - e x a m i n a t l o n .

5

6

7

MR. ADAMS: Y o u r H o n o r , a t t h i s t i m e , I w o u l d

move to admi t Defendant 's Exhib i t Number 1, which Is the

tex t messages tha t Ms . —Ms. GuHet t had ag reed to .

THE COURT: A n d t h a t ' s a c l e a n c o p y ?

MR. ADAMS: U h - h u h .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

MS. GULLETT: N O o b j e c t i o n . I ' m s o r r y , I d i d n ' t1 3

r e a l i z e —1 4

THE COURT: D e f e n d a n t ' s N u m b e r 1 s h a l l b e1 5

a d m l t t e d .1 6

what 's the date on that , Mr. Adams?

l u d g e . I t ' s a s c r e e n s h o t , b u t t h e

N O , a c t u a l l y. I t ' s o n F e b r u a r y 2 4 t h , 2 0 1 9 , a t

1 7

1 8 M R . A D A M S :

d a t e — o h .1 9

2 0 9:46 p.m.

THE COURT: T h a n k y o u , s i r .

(By Mr. Adams) Now, Ms. Blanchard, when you filed

t h i s p r o t e c t i v e o r d e r , y o u r r e q u e s t f o r t h e p r o t e c t i v e

o r d e r y o u a t t a c h e d — o r r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r s , a s t h e y c a l l

t hem In Ca l i f o rn ia , you a t tached an e -ma i l t ha t was sen t

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



1 0 4

1 out regarding updates regarding Mr. Nelson,

t h a t ?

Do you recal l

2

3 N o , I d o n ' t .

W o u l d i t r e f r e s h y o u r r e c o l l e c t i o n t o s e e i t ?

A .

4 Q .

5 A . Y e s .

6 MR. ADAMS: J u d g e , m a y I a p p r o a c h ?

THE COURT: Y e s , s i r .

( B y M r . A d a m s ) N o w, m a ' a m , i f y o u ' l l — t h i s i s n ' t

numbered as much, but —

L e t ' s s e e , s e v e n .

Ma 'am, i f you ' l l coun t back i n seven pages i n to

t h a t — a t t h e b o t t o m l o w e r l e f t - h a n d , i t s a y s o n e o f s i x .

I ' m s o r r y. S a y t h a t o n c e m o r e .

I w a s a s k i n g i f y o u ' l l c o u n t i n s e v e n p a g e s —

THE COURT: J u s t a m o m e n t . H o l d o n j u s t a

7

8 Q .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5

m i n u t e .1 6

(By Mr. Adams) Seven pages from the —

THE COURT: M r. A d a m s , j u s t a m o m e n t . G i v e o u r

c o u r t r e p o r t e r a m o m e n t , p l e a s e .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

I d i d n o t h e a r w h a t y o u j u s t s a i d .2 0 T H E W I T N E S S :

I w a s a s k i n g —2 1

THE COURT: o k a y .

(By Mr. Adams) okay. I f you would count seven

pages f rom the f ron t .

Okay.

2 2

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 A .
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1 And at the bottom, it should say —the bottom

left-hand, i t should say one of s ix.

N o . I t s a y s t w o o f s i x .

Well, then go to the page before it. Do you see

Q .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

t h a t o n e ?5

U h - h u h . O k a y. I * m t h e r e .

Are we on the same page?

6 A .

7 Q .

I d o n ' t — I d o n ' t k n o w h o w s h e8 T H E C O U R T :

wou ld know that , i f you sa id they ' re both on the same9

1 0 p a g e .

MR. ADAMS: Y e a h .1 1

(By Mr. Adams) Does i t say one of s ix at the1 2 Q .

b o t t o m ?1 3

1 4 Y e s .A .

A n d t h a t ' s t h e p a g e I ' d l i k e t o t a l k a b o u t .Okay.

Okay.

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

NOW, ma 'am, a t the top o f tha t , the re ' s anumber

Do you see that?

1 7 Q .

tha t ' s s tamped the re tha t says 19 -S .1 8

1 9 Y e s .A .

And now, that would be the case number for

that temporary rest ra in ing order that you fi led, wouldn ' t

Okay.2 0 Q .

2 1

i t ?2 2

I d o n ' t k n o w , s i r .

THE COURT: Mr. Adams, a re you ask ing her to

refresh your memory? Because you're asking her questions

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5
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f r o m t h a t d o c u m e n t .1

2 MR. ADAMS: O k a y .

3 I f you would do that properly, thatT H E C O U R T :

w o u l d —4

(By Mr. Adams) when you looked at that e-mai l at

t he t op and re f r esh you r r eco l l ec t i on abou t whe the r o r no t

you attached that to the temporary retraining order that

y o u fi l e d i n C a l i f o r n i a —

THE court: o k a y .

( B y M r. A d a m s ) — a g a i n s t , M r. N e l s o n o n A p r i l t h e

5 Q .

6

7

8

9

1 0 Q .

n t h o f 2 0 1 9 ?1 1

THE COURT: O k a y, w h a t I w a n t y o u t o d o i s a s k

her to re f resh her memory, re t r ieve the document f rom her,

and then ask questions from —ask questions to her, i f

you would.

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

MR. ADAMS: O k a y .1 6

Ma'am, i f you would read through1 7 T H E C O U R T :

t ha t , r e f resh you r memory.1 8

1 9 THE WITNESS: S u r e .

And when you ' re fin i shed read ing2 0 T H E C O U R T:

s i l e n t l y , t h e n l e t u s k n o w.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE court: A n d t h e n w a i t f o r a q u e s t i o n .

MR. ADAMS: M a y I r e t r i e v e ?

THE COURT: Ye s , p l e a s e .

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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(By Mr. Adams) Now, ma'am, you would agree with me

—or would you agree with me that when you applied for

th is rest ra in ing order in Cal i forn ia against Mr. Nelson

that you attached exhibits to i t , e-mails that you had

e-mailed out to multiple people accusing him of crimes?

I d i d n ' t e - m a i l t h a t e - m a i l . T h a t w a s n ' t m e .

But your company did?

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r .

Aga in —

1 Q .

2

3

4

5

6 A .

7 Q .

8

9 A .

T h i s e - m a i l — t h i s l e t t e r i s1 0 M S . G U L L E T T :

w r i t t e n b y a P a u l A u b e r t .1 1

THE COURT: o k a y .1 2

w e l l , J u d g e , I ' m n o t r e f e r r i n g t o

I ' m r e f e r r i n g t o t h e e - m a i l o n t h e p a g e

1 3 M R . A D A M S :

t h e l e t t e r .1 4

b e f o r e .1 5

Ibe l ieve she jus t sa id she d idn ' t1 6 T H E C O U R T :

s e n d t h a t e - m a i l o u t , o k a y ? S o —

(By Mr. Adams) But your company sent i t out?

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9 Y e s .A .

Acompany that you were an officer in?2 0 Q .

2 1 A . Y e s .

A n d y o u f o r w a r d e d t h a t e - m a i l , a c t u a l l y, o v e r t o

your husband and then your husband sent it —

N O , I d i d n ' t . I t — I t h i n k i t w a s — I t h i n k - -

wel l , no. NO. Paul Auber t wrote the le t ter. Anthem, my

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5
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husband , sen t i t ou t t o ou r sha reho lde rs ,

a n d I c o u l d b e w r o n g a b o u t t h i s —

1 I f I r e c a l l

2

3 M a ' a m , I j u s t n e e d y o u t o j u s tT H E C O U R T :

answer the ques t i on tha t —4

5 T H E W I T N E S S : I —

THE COURT: — h e a s k e d —6

THE WITNESS: I w i l l t r y .

THE court: M a ' a m , s t o p .

THE WITNESS: I 'm sorry.

THE court: s t o p , s t o p j u s t a m o m e n t .

Listen to his question and then answer the question

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

t h a t ' s a s k e d .1 2

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. okay.

THE COURT: And i f he wants to ask you another

quest ion, he ' l l fo l low up. Okay? But just answer the

question that 's asked, and don't add anything to i t .

Thank you.

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

THE WITNESS: Okay.

(By Mr. Adams) So you agree with me —or would you

agree that, to multiple people, you had sent out things

a t t a c k i n g h i s c r e d i b i l i t y ?

I d i d n o t s e n d a n y t h i n g o u t .

The company had sent things out attacking his

1 8

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

c r e d i b i l i t y ?2 4

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . S h e2 5
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doesn ' t speak for the company.1

W e 1 1 — a n d 1 t ' s b e e n a s k e d a n d2 T H E c o u r t :

answered, probably numerous t imes,

s u s t a i n y o u r o b j e c t i o n ,

no t send ou t tha t e -ma i l and any th ing abou t tha t —

any th i ng abou t t ha t e -ma i l wou ld be hea rsay a t t h i s po in t ,

a u d g e , i n r e s p o n s e t o t h a t , f o r t h e

r e c o r d , s h e ' s a d o p t e d i t — t h e b e l i e f o f i t b y a t t a c h i n g

i t t o t h e p e t i t i o n , s o w e t h i n k i t ' s a n e x c e p t i o n t o t h e

h e a r s a y r u l e ,

w o u l d l i k e .

So I 'm go ing to

I t h i n k i t ' s c l e a r t h a t s h e d i d

3

4

5

6

7 M R . A D A M S :

8

9

A n d I c a n g i v e t h e C o u r t a c i t e i f y o u1 0

1 1

I f y o u w o u l d l i k e t o d o t h a t , p l e a s e1 2 T H E C O U R T :

f e e l f r e e .1 3

MR. ADAMS: I t ' s p a g e 3 9 7 , T i t l e 1 2 , 2 8 0 1 - B - 2 - A ,

B , C , a n d D , I t h i n k i t q u a l i fi e s u n d e r a l l s t a t e m e n t s ,

n o t h e a r s a y — i f t h e s t a t e m e n t i s o f f e r e d a g a i n s t —

THE COURT: why don ' t you b r i ng t ha t he re and

let me read i t . we can make that argument up here,

(whereupon, abench conference was had

o u t s i d e t h e h e a r i n g o f t h e j u r y . T h i s

bench con fe rence was no t a reques ted par t o f

t h i s t r a n s c r i p t . )

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am —

MR. ADAMS: M a y I a p p r o a c h , a g a i n ?

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 THE COURT: Y e s .
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(By Mr. Adams) Ma 'am, Ip laced up there for you the

tempora ry res t ra in ing o rde r documen t ,

there nex t to you?

1 Q .

2 D o y o u s e e i t r i g h t

3

DO you want me to pick it up?4 A . Y e s .

Y e a h .5 Q .

And do you recognize that?6

7 A . Y e s .

A n d t h a t i s a d o c u m e n t t h a t y o u fi l e d i n

c o u r t i n C a l i f o r n i a a g a i n s t M r. N e l s o n ?

Okay.8 Q .

9

1 0 Y e s .A .

Okay. And those documents tha t a re a t tached to

that are documents that you took up wi th you to the

courthouse when you went to go do that?

I took 600 pages of documents wi th me.

Okay. Bu t w i t h in t hose 600 pages , t hose a re t he

o n e s t h a t w e r e a t t a c h e d t o t h a t r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r ?

Ye s , b u t I d i d n ' t a t t a c h t h e m , t h e c o u r t c l e r k d i d .

Okay.

She looked through and she just chose the ones that

s h e f e l t s h o u l d b e a t t a c h e d . I t w a s 6 0 0 p a g e s , s o - -

She attached some of the documents you took with

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1 Q .

2 2 you?

2 3 A . Y e s .

And you a t tached tha t i n hopes tha t a judge wou ld2 4 Q .

i s s u e a r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r a g a i n s t M r. N e l s o n ?2 5
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I l l

1 Until Iwas told that it wouldn't happen if they
d i d n ' t k n o w w h e r e h e w a s t o s e r v e h i m .

But that 's the purpose of i t , r ight?
I t w a s .

A .

2

3 Q .

4 A .

5 Okay.Q .

6 J u d g e , a t t h i s t i m e , I w o u l d m o v e t o

introduce this temporary restraining order document as

D e f e n d a n t ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 2 .

M R . A D A M S :

7

8

THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t ?9

MS. GULLETT: I t h i n k I c o u l d h a v e a n o b j e c t i o n ,

b u t t h e s t a t e h a s n o o b j e c t i o n . 1 t h i n k t h e r e ' s s o m e

i n t e r e s t i n g i t e m s i n h e r e .

THE COURT: o k a y. B a s e d o n t h e s t a t e n o t

objecting to that, Iwould admit Defense Number 2, the

r e s t r a i n i n g o r d e r .

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, now we can move on to the

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

n e x t i s s u e .1 7

I n t h e v o i c e m a i l t h a t t h e S t a t e i n t r o d u c e d , I

b e l i e v e i t ' s s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 1 , M r. N e l s o n i s

talking about an individual by the name of Chad Koehn.

Would you agree with that? Do you remember that?

o h , y e s .

okay. And now, Chad Koehn is an individual -- and

I s a w — w e l l , h e ' s h e r e i n t h e c o u r t r o o m t o d a y, r i g h t ?

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 Y e s .A .
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1 Okay. A n d c h a d K o e h n i s a n i n d i v i d u a l t h a t o w n sQ .

2 s o m e s o r t o f a n i n v e s t m e n t fi r m i n K a n s a s ?

3 A . Y e s .

4 Okay. And he became involved in your company, didQ .

h e n o t ?5

H e b e c a m e a s h a r e h o l d e r .6 A .

Wasn ' t he a t your a l l -hands-on company-wide

e v e n t t h a t y o u h a d h e r e i n B a r t l e s v i l l e b a c k — w a s i t

l u n e o f 2 0 1 6 ?

Okay.7 Q .

8

9

1 0 N O .A .

You're saying he was not?

NO, I 'm saying you had the wrong date,

oh, I 'm wrong on the day.

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

cou ld you t e l l us wha t1 3 Q .

day i t was?1 4

I t w a s i n J u n e o f 2 0 2 1 .1 5 A .

Oh , okay. Yeah , I sa id 2016 , d idn ' t I?

Y e a h .

Ye a h . Tr y i n g t o d o t w o t h i n g s a t o n c e .

So he was t he re?

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 Y e s .A .

And he helped you guys raise money?2 1 Q .

I 'm not going to answer anything that Idon't have

aknowledge base on, so you need to ask my husband or Paul
I w i l l s a y t h a t C h a d K o e h n

2 2 A .

2 3

Aube r t , ou r gene ra l counse l ,

d i d b e c o m e —

2 4

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



1 1 3

1 THE COURT: M S .

2 — d i d b e c o m e —A .

3 THE COURT: M a ' a m .

— a b o a r d d i r e c t o r —4 A .

THE COURT: Ma 'am, ho ld on j us t amomen t .

L is ten to the quest ion tha t he asks you and then

a n s w e r t h a t q u e s t i o n w i t h o u t a d d i n g i n f o r m a t i o n t o i t .

THE WITNESS: O k a y. L e t ' s t r y i t a g a i n .

5

6

7

8

9 THE COURT: Y e s .

Go ahead and ask your question.

(By Mr. Adams) so he became aboard member?

H e d i d .

And when you say "board member,

b o a r d o f d i r e c t o r ?

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

t t you mean l ike a1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 Y e s .

And you heard in the voicemail that Mr. Nelson said

that he was doing some things and that he had filed some

complaints against him?

I ' m s o r r y . S a y t h a t a g a i n .

You heard in the vo icemai l tha t Mr. Ne lson accused

A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

him of doing some things that he left in that voicemail

and said he had filed some complaints against Mr. Koehn?

I ' m n o t s u r e i f

2 1

2 2

I t h i n k h e s a i d h e w a s g o i n g t o .

he had done i t yet .

And since that time, Mr. Koehn, your board member.

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Q .
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has been suspended from his occupation, has he not?

I d o n ' t k n o w .

1

2 I d o n ' t k n o w .A .

3 THE COURT: O k a y. T h a t ' s t h e a n s w e r t o t h e

q u e s t i o n .4

THE WITNESS: Okay.5

6 THE COURT: T h a n k y o u .

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, did you remove him from the7 Q .

b o a r d —8

9 N O .A .

— w h e n h e l o s t — s o y o u l e t a g u y c o n t i n u e o n t h e

b o a r d t h a t l o s t - -

He stepped down from the board. He stepped down.

And you're telling us you don't know whether or not

that had anything to do with him raising 1.45 mil l ion

do l la rs fo r your company?

I 'm sor ry. Idon ' t know what you ' re ta l k ing abou t .

1 . 4 5 m i l l i o n d o l l a r s —

Y e a h .

— f o r o u r c o m p a n y ?

Y e a h .

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

T h a t ' s i n c o r r e c t .2 1 A .

D i d h e r a i s e m o r e t h a n t h a t ?

H e d i d n ' t r a i s e a n y m o n e y,

well, ma'am, didn't you and your husband —

o k a y.

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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1 —go up to h is p lace there in Kansas and have a

seminar where you were trying to raise money for your

company?

Q-

2

3

4 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r . I t ' s n o t

re levan t to why we ' re he re today.

MR. ADAMS: She ' s say ing she doesn ' t know.

MS. GULLETT: S h e ' s a n s w e r e d t h e q u e s t i o n .

THE COURT: sh e h a s a n sw e r e d t h e q u e s t i o n . An d ,

M r. A d a m s , I ' m s t i l l s t r u g g l i n g w i t h w h y a n y o f t h i s i s

re levant . And you assured me you were go ing to get to the

re levancy, but Ihave not yet d iscovered i t .

MR. ADAMS: I ' m j u s t t r y i n g t o p u t s o m e c o n t e x t

f o r t h e s t a t e m e n t s i n S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 1 t h a t t h e y

introduced that my client is making about Mr. Koehn is

just to help the jury understand what's really going on
h e r e .

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

The object ion is sustained.

(By Mr. Adams) well, now, in the letter that the

Sta te in t roduced, Ibe l ieve i t was 4-A, the le t te r, you

know, with the —the 4is the envelope and the 4-A is the

l e t t e r p a r t o f i t .

DO you remember that exhibit?

Are you referring to the certified letter that was
d e l i v e r e d t o t h e c o u r t h o u s e ?

1 7 T H E c o u r t :

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Y e s .Q .
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O k a y. Ye s , I r e m e m b e r t h a t .

And just —when you*re saying "courthouse," are

y o u s a y i n g i t w a s d e l i v e r e d t o t h i s c o u r t h o u s e —

1 A .

2 Q . I t

3

4 A . N O .

— o r i t w a s d e l i v e r e d t o t h e o l d —5 Q .

6 A . N O

— c o u r t h o u s e ?7 Q .

— m y f a u l t .8 A .

9 Y e s .Q .

The o ld cour thouse, which is now the headquar ters

of the company.

Oh, okay.

I a p o l o g i z e f o r t h a t . T h a t ' s c o n f u s i n g .

I j us t wan t to be c lea r.

I k n o w , y e a h . Ye a h .

NOW, do you remember that letter?

1 0 A .

1 1

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 Y e s .A .

A n d i n t h a t l e t t e r , t h e r e ' s t a l k a b o u t a d e a d1 8 Q .

w h i s t l e - b l o w e r ?1 9

2 0 A . Y e s .

Now, just to put this statement into

context, you —did you —you knew what he was referring
to when he r e f e renced t ha t , r i gh t?

Ihad no idea wha t he was ta l k ing abou t ,

we l l , l e t me ask you acoup le more

Okay.2 1 Q-

2 2

2 3

2 4 A .

Okay.2 5 Q .
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1 q u e s t i o n s .

2 You have an individual —you were represented by

an attorney by the name of Craig Bran?

we are not represented by him.

Okay. But at one time you were represented by

B r a n , y o u r l i t i g a t i o n s a g a i n s t h i m w i t h - -

w e h a d n o —

3

4 A .

5 Q .

6

7 A .

—when you —

— l i t i g a t i o n a g a i n s t h i m .

THE COURT: M a ' a m . M a ' a m , l e t h i m fi n i s h .

THE WITNESS: O h , s h o o t . I ' m s o r r y.

8 Q .

9 A .

1 0

1 1

G o a h e a d .1 2

(By Mr. Adams) You had litigation where he was

trying to get unemployment from you in Nevada?

Oh, not my wheel house. Ican't answer anything

a b o u t t h a t . S o r r y, i t ' s — i t w a s l e g a l .

Okay, well, but you do understand that at some

point, you had —that there was abattle going on about

l i t i ga t ion —about unemployment , r igh t?

MS. GULLETT: Objection, Your Honor. She

answered that she doesn't know enough to testify as to the

legalities of whether or not the company was dealing with

unemployment with Mr. Nelson.

THE COURT: The way Iunderstand your question,

Mr. Adams, is you're asking her if she knew that there was

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



1 1 8

litigation going on with respect to his unemployment?1

2 MR. ADAMS: Y e s .

3 THE COURT: O k a y. M a ' a m , t h a t ' s a y e s o r n o

ques t i on . Do you know tha t?

THE WITNESS: I h a v e a q u e s t i o n . C a n I a s k i t ?

4

5

6 THE COURT: N O .

THE WITNESS: I don ' t - - Imean , the re was an

a p p e a l . S o , I g u e s s — d o e s t h a t m e a n l i t i g a t i o n ? I ' m

s o r r y . I d o n ' t k n o w i f t h a t m e a n s l i t i g a t i o n . I k n e w

t h e r e w a s a n a p p e a l , t h a t ' s a l l I k n e w . o k a y , s o r r y , I

d o n ' t k n o w a b o u t t h a t .

(By Mr. Adams) so there's an individual that's on

t h e H e r a s o f t b o a r d —

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 Q .

1 3

Let me go about i t in adi fferent1 4 M R . A D A M S :

d i r e c t i o n .1 5

(By Mr. Adams) Referencing the statement about the

T h e r e ' s a n i n d i v i d u a l t h a t ' s

1 6 Q .

— t h e d e a d w h i s t l e - b l o w e r ,

on your Herasoft board by the name of Dale Takio, and he's

aspecial cyber projects and business development adviser.

DO you know who I'm speaking of?

H e i s n o t o n t h e b o a r d ,

speak ing about .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

Ido know who you ' re2 1 A .

2 2

so —but he works fo r your company.

He's aspecial cyber projects and business development

a d v i s e r ?

A l l r i g h t .2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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1 No, he does not work for our company anymore. And

h e n e v e r d i d . H e w a s a c o n s u l t a n t .

Ma'am, do you list him on your -- has he —is he

now or has he ever been listed on your website as —under

team, meet our leadersh ip team, on the Herasof t webs i te?

Ican' t answer that . You'd have to ask market ing.

Okay.

S o r r y .

Ma'am, would you recognize your herasof t .com

A .

2

3 Q .

4

5

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q .

w e b s i t e ?1 0

1 1 Y e s .A .

Judge, may Iapproach and a t tempt to1 2 M R . A D A M S :

r e f r e s h h e r r e c o l l e c t i o n ?1 3

1 4 THE COURT: Y e s .

(By Mr. Adams) Please don't drop it.

I w o n ' t , I p r o m i s e .

Ma'am, I'm handing you my iPad, and do you

recognize what is pulled up on the internet on that
w e b s i t e —

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0 Y e s .A .

I m e a n , o n t h e i P a d ?2 1 Q .

2 2 A . Y e s .

And what is pul led up?

A c o m p a n y a n d f o u r p i c t u r e s .

May I?

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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1 2 0

1 A . Y e s .

2 D o e s t h a t r e f r e s h y o u r r e c o l l e c t i o n a b o u t w h e t h e r

or not Mr. Takio was listed on your website?

H e i s l i s t e d a s a n a d v i s e r .

Now, Mr. Takio, at one point, was facing criminal

c h a r g e s a n d t h e r e w a s a w h i s t l e - b l o w e r i n v o l v e d i n t h a t

c a s e , r i g h t ?

Q .

3

4 A .

5 Q .

6

7

I d o n ' t k n o w .I d o n ' t k n o w .8 A .

You ' re say ing you have no idea tha t theokay.9 Q .

m e m b e r —1 0

I c a n n o t a n s w e r a n y t h i n g a b o u t a c a s e l i k e t h a t .

I ' m s o r r y , b u t I c a n ' t .

YOU know nothing about that?

Idon' t know anything in detai l about any of that.

Ma'am, do you know much about the people that you

have involved with your company?

He's not invo lved wi th our company,

adviser, but —I'm sorry, you're asking the wrong person.

And the right person would be whom?

I ' v e a l r e a d y s a i d i t .

legal -- in-house legal counsel, Paul Aubert.

And this is acompany that Herasoft, we're speaking

to, that you are the co-founder/president of Herasoft?

I a m n o t t h e p r e s i d e n t .

Have you ever been listed on your website —

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

H e ' s a n1 7 A .

1 8

1 9 Q .

Ei ther my husband or the2 0 A .

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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1 A . Y e s .

2 Q. Okay, when did you stop becoming the —being the
p r e s i d e n t ?3

4 Months ago.

How old is the company?

I t w a s i n c o r p o r a t e d i n J a n u a r y o f 2 0 2 0 , a f t e r

M r . N e l s o n w a s fi r e d .

A .

5 Q .

6 A .

7

Okay.

By about ten months.

How many companies do you guys have?

W e h a v e a c t i v e n o w, I b e l i e v e , f o u r ,

s u b s i d i a r i e s , j u s t l i k e A m a z o n ,

s u b s i d i a r i e s i n c o r p o r a t i o n s ,

in the last ten years, how many companies have you

8 Q .

9 A .

1 0 Q .

They* re

T h e r e ' s a l o t o f

1 1 A .

1 2

1 3

1 4 Q .

guys had?1 5

A b o u t f o u r t h e r e i n — fi v e . H o l d o n . I d o n ' t

want to —six counting the LLC that the old courthouse is

u n d e r .

1 6 A .

1 7

1 8

At one point, you had acompany that was registered1 9 Q .

in Las Vegas?2 0

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r , n o t

re levan t to why we ' re here today.

THE WITNESS: N o n e o f i t i s .

THE court: s u s t a i n e d .

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, you told us that you live in

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 2 2

O k l a h o m a ?1

2 I d o . I d o .A .

3 Okay.

I d o .

Q .

4 A .

i sn ' t I t t r ue tha t you and you r husband comp le ted

paperwork to 11ve 1n Puerto Rlco so that you could get a

t a x b e n e fi t ?

5 Q .

6

7

w e d i d .8 A .

And when -- when did you --9 Q .

T h a t w a s 2 0 1 8 .1 0 A .

So you're saying you left Puerto Rico inY e a h .1 1 Q .

2 0 1 8 ?1 2

T h e r e i s - - I h a v e t o t h i n k a b o u t t h e d a t e s ,

whenever the Hurricane Maria happened, it was right after

that —the January after that, that we got accepted in

th is program ca l led —Iforgot the name of i t , but you

could apply, and if they accepted you, then you had to

l i ve in Puer to R ico s ix months and th ree days , bu t you go t

tax benefits from doing that. And we never did l ive there

t h e f u l l t i m e , w e l e f t a f t e r t e n m o n t h s .

Y e a h . I t w a s ' 1 8 . I t w a s ' 1 8 .

Now, ma'am, this HERC token that you guys had, you

guys were selling that for 40 cents apiece?
MS. GULLETT: Objection, Your Honor. She has

answered alot of questions about this company, how it

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 works, and as far as the HERC tokens have come up multiple
times and she has answered that she does not have the

knowledge base to tes t i f y to the Ins and ou ts o f how tha t

w o r k s .

2

3

4

5 I — s h e h a s n ' t b e e n a s k e d t h i sM R . A D A M S :

s p e c i fi c q u e s t i o n .6

THE COURT: I u n d e r s t a n d , b u t h o w I s t h a t7

r e l e v a n t a s t o h o w — h o w - - w h a t t h o s e w e r e s o l d f o r ?8

h o w ' s t h a t r e l e v a n t t o w h a t w e ' r e h e r e f o r ?9

B e c a u s e s h e ' s — b e c a u s e t h a t ' s1 0 M R . A D A M S :

what 's In Defendant 's Exhib i t Number 1, Is about the HERC

t o k e n a n d t h a t t h e y ' r e c r e a t i n g a m a r k e t , a n d t h a t t h i s

who le Ponz i s cheme th i ng , t ha t ' s wha t I t ' s abou t ,

why It 's bias motive to l ie of why they're doing this to

Mr. Nelson Is because they're trying to stop the fact that

they were Involved In criminal activity from this pump and

dump.

1 1

1 2

T h a t ' s1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

B u t s h e - - a n d b a c k t o M s . G u l l e t t ' s1 8 T H E C O U R T :

s h e h a s t e s t i fi e d t h a t s h e d o e s n ' t k n o w t h e I n sp o l n t .

a n d o u t o f t h i s H E R C t o k e n .

1 9

2 0

I d o n ' t k n o w w h a t s h e ' s g o i n g t o

T h i s I s t h e fi r s t t i m e I ' v e a s k e d h e r t h e s e

2 1 M R . A D A M S :

2 2 s a y .

q u e s t i o n s .2 3

THE COURT: Okay. Ask her the quest ion again.

(By Mr. Adams) Ma'am, do you know what they -- what

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 t h a t s o l d f o r ?

2 A . N O .

3 Do you know what the value is of i t now?Q .

4 A . N O .

Are you still —do you have any of your companies

s t i l l s e l l i n g t h i s t o k e n ?

I d o n ' t k n o w .

5 Q .

6

7 A .

And th is is —and now the company that you have —

you guys a re i n to cybe rsecu r i t y?

8 Q .

9

O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; i t ' s n o t1 0 M S . g u l l e t t :

r e l e v a n t .1 1

THE COURT: I t ' s n o t r e l e v a n t . A n d , M r . A d a m s ,

you keep referring to your company, this company, the

company. I'm not sure which company you're referring to.
MR. ADAMS: H e r a s o f t .

(By Mr. Adams) That's cybersecurity, is i t not?

Y e s .

And that's the company that you received tax

i n c e n t i v e s t o b r i n g t o B a r t l e s v i l l e ?

w e d i d n ' t r e c e i v e a n y t a x — o h , t a x i n c e n t i v e s ,

we haven't received any monies from that, but, yes, if

t h a t ' s w h a t y o u ' r e a s k i n g .

T h a t ' s w h a t t h o s e a r t i c l e s a r e a b o u t , r i g h t ?

Y e s . T h e —

And i t was af ter Mr. Nelson sent the message to the

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1

2 2

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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city attorney or to the Bartlesville Development Agency

and was contacting people here in Washington county to

tell them what he knew —or what he believed about your

background, that that's when you guys pushed this and the

B a r t l e s v i l l e - - fi l e d t h e p o l i c e r e p o r t ?

S i r , I g o t a c e r t i fi e d l e t t e r w i t h t h r e a t s a n d

f a l s e a c c u s a t i o n s a c c u s i n g m e o f r i d i c u l o u s , s c a r y t h i n g s

at the bui ld ing that we had purchased, who we had tenants

in , and th is was a f te r years and years o f harassment ,

thousands of pages of e-mails and texts and long-winded

voicemai ls to say to not on ly me, but anybody that was

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h m e , t h a t ' s w h y i w e n t a n d g o t a p o l i c e

report and that's why Iwent to Ray of Hope, because Iwas

scared . We d idn ' t know where he was a t tha t po in t . When

I f o u n d o u t —

M a ' a m .

— t h r e e d a y s l a t e r —

I ' m s o r r y. G o a h e a d .

You haven ' t answered the quest ion .

I d o n ' t u n d e r s t a n d i t t h e n .

Okay. Let me try to make it really simple.

Okay.

A l l t h i s s t u f f t h a t y o u j u s t e x p l a i n e d , y o u d i d n ' t

really push to get Mr. Nelson charged until he reached out

to the Ci ty of Bart lesvi l le to te l l them things about you

1

2

3

4

5

6 A .

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8

1 9 Q .

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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that you d idn ' t want them to know?

N o . I d i d a p o l i c e r e p o r t t h e d a y t h a t I r e c e i v e d

t h e c e r t i fi c a t e — t h e c e r t i fi e d m a i l . N o . T h a t w a s —

that was the day that Iwent to the police department.

And when d id you rece i ve t he ce r t i fied ma i l ?

August 26 th .

Okay. And when d id Mr. Nelson send an e-mai l to

the Bar t lesv i l l e Deve lopment P rogram?

I b e l i e v e i t w a s t h e 2 6 t h .

1

2 A .

3

4

5 Q .

6 A .

7 Q .

8

9 A .

SO af ter the 26th is when you went to the pol ice

department and started pushing —

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 N O .A .

— j u s t t o g e t —

Iwent to the police department on the 26th in the

a f t e r n o o n a f t e r l r e c e i v e d t h e c e r t i fi e d m a i l ,

t e s t i fi e d b e f o r e t h a t t h e e - m a i l t h a t w e n t t o t h e c i t y

manager and his assistant happened the same day, but I

d i d n ' t k n o w a b o u t i t u n t i l t h e n e x t M o n d a y b e c a u s e — I

don ' t know i f i t was Dav id woods —somebody f rom the C i ty

sent i t to one of our employees who's in adifferent

o f fi c e . I d i d n ' t k n o w t h a t h a d b e e n s e n t u n t i l M o n d a y

morning when Iwalked into his office and he told me.
I think I 've already said that once, but I 'm more than

happy to c lar i fy that .

And you agree that Mr. Nelson had never been here

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

I h a v e1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

s o2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .
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in Oklahoma until he got charged, as far as you know?

AS fa r as I know, he*s neve r been he re un t i l he

1

2 A .

3 was , bu t —

Now, on direct examination, you made some comment

abou t h im no t hav ing ch i l d ren .

I w a s a s k e d , a n d I s a i d I d i d n o t b e l i e v e h e d i d .

Okay. How would you know?

T h a t ' s w h a t I s a i d , i d o n ' t k n o w . I d o n ' t b e l i e v e

h e d o e s , b u t h e — I d o n ' t k n o w . I b e l i e v e I s a i d t h a t .

D id you —have you been send ing ou t th ings o ther

than wha t we 've a l ready d iscussed —or your company, to

your knowledge, been sending out things, other than what

we've already discussed, that would hurt Mr. Nelson's

reputation in his work community?

YOU lost me. What are you t ry ing to ask?

okay. Other than what we've already discussed,

l ike the let ters and the temporary restraining order —

U h - h u h .

—have you or people —to your knowledge, have

you or people associated with your company been sending

out things that would hurt Mr. Nelson's reputation in his

work community?

You wou ld have to ask e i the r the med ia spec ia l i s t

or my husband or my marketing director.

DO you think it would be wrong —

4 Q .

5

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 Not my marketing, the company's marketing director.A .

2 A p o l o g i e s .

3 would it be wrong to try to hurt his prospects of

m o v i n g o n w i t h h i s l i f e ?

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r , i t ' s

Q .

4

5

a rgumen ta t i ve .6

THE COURT: S u s t a i n e d .7

MR. ADAMS: N O f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t , y o u m a y r e d i r e c t .

MS. gullett: T h a n k y o u , l u d g e .

8

9

1 0

1 1 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N

1 2 B Y M S . g u l l e t t :

M S . B l a n c h a r d , t h e r e ' s a l o t q u e s t i o n s

And I'm going to try to go through some questions,

something to kind of clarify afew things that were said

a s q u i c k l y a s I c a n .

S o t h e r e w a s c o n v e r s a t i o n a b o u t a p o l i c e r e p o r t

that was fi led wi th the Ci ty of Bart lesvi l le in March of

Do you reca l l fi l ing tha t po l ice repor t?

Y e s .

Why'd you fi le that pol ice report?

Because, as I've mentioned afew times, he was

A l l r i g h t .1 3 Q .

a s k e d .1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9 2 0 1 9 .

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

sending hundreds of pages of harassing e-mails, texts,

was all coming in, and it was getting scary.

A n d I — w e h a v e a n a s s i s t a n t w h o w a s

I t2 3

w e d i d n ' t2 4

k n o w w h e r e h e w a s .2 5
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afraid to be in the office by herself, and Ithought we

n e e d e d t o r e p o r t i t .

So in March of 2019, you were not living in

1

2

3 Q .

B a r t l e s v i l l e ?4

5 A . N o , W e w e r e n o t .

So why d i d you reach ou t t o t he Ba r t l esv i l l e Po l i ce6 Q .

Department?7

B e c a u s e w e h a d a n a d m i n o f fi c e h e r e .8 A .

D i d y o u o n l y fi l e a p o l i c e r e p o r t t o b u i l d u p o r

buffer up your protect ive order case in Cal i fornia?

9 Q .

1 0

1 1 N O . N o .A .

I d o n ' t w a n t t o b e c a l l o u s b e c a u s e l k n o wo k a y,

w e ' r e i n a c o s t - o f - l i v i n g c r i s i s ,

such as ones that you've talked about, like Anthem vault

and al l these different companies, is sued for ahundred

1 2 Q .

B u t i f a c o r p o r a t i o n1 3

1 4

1 5

thousand dol lars in Texas, is that as ignificant amount of

money?

1 6

1 7

N O . A n d —

And, again, in the Cayman islands, you talked about

t h e r e w a s a $ 1 9 , 0 0 0 s e t t l e m e n t .

U h - h u h .

Again, we're talking about acorporation.
U h - h u h .

IS a$19,000 set t lement for acorporat ion a

significant amount of money?

1 8 A .

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 3 0

1 A . N O .

2 T h e r e ' s b e e n a l o t o f c o n v e r s a t i o n b a c k a n d f o r t h

abou t wha t you r ro le has been a t t hese d i f f e ren t

A n d I k n o w y o u ' v e t a l k e d

So at Herasoft, you were originally

Q .

3

compan ies , bu t a l so a t Heraso f t .

a b o u t s u b s i d i a r i e s .

4

5

t h e p r e s i d e n t ?6

7 A . Y e s .

O k a y. A n d y o u ' r e n o t r i g h t n o w ?8 Q .

9 N o .A .

o k a y , w i l l y o u p l e a s e b r i e fl y e x p l a i n t h e

di fference between apresident of acompany and achief

e x e c u t i v e o f fi c e r ? w h a t a r e t h e d i f f e r e n c e s i n w h a t a

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

president does and achief execut ive officer?

Ican on l y speak fo r ou r company.

He is the face of the company.

1 3

T h e C E O i s t h e1 4 A .

H e - - h ev i s i o n a r y ,

drives the company and helps the path of the company

expand or sh i f t when necessary.

1 5

1 6

1 7

So what does the president do?

In our company, the president was me, and Iworked

really hard to make sure that communication was as good as

Id id accompany my husband to conferences,

and Ididn' t l ike speaking on stage, but on occasion, I

I m a d e s u r e t h a t t h e t e a m h a d i n t e r a c t i o n w i t h e a c h

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0

i t c o u l d b e .2 1

2 2

d i d .2 3

Ijust made sure that things could go as smoothly.

And Ia lso managed the

o t h e r .2 4

commun ica t i on -w i se , as poss ib l e .2 5
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1 3 1

1 o l d c o u r t h o u s e .

2 Okay. So you're saying that —when you said

are you meaning communicat ion inside the

Q .

3 communicat ion,

company or outside the company?

ins ide the company.

A l l r i g h t .

I I I t

4

5 A .

6 So when we ' re ta lk ing about b ig

dec is ions made by HeraSof t because that 's who 's here.

Q .

7

U h - h u h .8 A .

A n d I d o n ' t w a n t y o u t o t h i n k t h a t I ' m b e l i t t l i n g

y o u a t a l 1 . I d o n ' t m e a n t h a t .

T h a t ' s o k a y.

Bu t when we ' re ta l k ing abou t l a rge co rpo ra te

decisions, who makes those decisions; the president or the

9 Q .

1 0

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3

CEO?1 4

The CEO.

SO when you're asked all of these questions of how

does this company work, how does HeraSoft work, how does

Anthem vault work. Anthem Gold work, how does all these

different companies work, when you're asked that question

and your answer is, Idon't know; you have to ask
e l s e w h e r e —

U h - h u h .

—are you saying that to be facetious?

I w a s n e v e r i n v o l v e d i n t h e l e g a l d e p a r t m e n t ,

the accounting department, the —I'm nervous, I 'm

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4 N O .A .

2 5
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1 3 2

blanking -- the development department. Iwas never

involved with those departments. Alot of those questions

had to do with those departments, and --

Al l r ight, so another question that you were asked

w a s a b o u t y o u r e a c h i n g o u t t o B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e

Depar tmen t and wan t ing to ge t Mr. Ne lson i n t roub le . And

seeing how that 's been asked, what other agencies have you

r e a c h e d o u t t o ?

1

2

3

4 Q .

5

6

7

8

T h e F B I .9 A .

Any o thers?

Wel l , the Santa Mon ica Po l ice Depar tment , years

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2 a g o .

And were you successful in getting the FBI to1 3 Q .

a s s i s t y o u ?1 4

1 5 Y e s .A .

And, MS. Blanchard, we have been

talking about aMichael Eric Nelson this morning and this

DO you see him in the courtroom today?

A l l r i g h t .1 6 Q .

1 7

a f t e r n o o n .

I d o .

could you please identify where he's sitt ing and

what he 's wear ing?

He 's s i t t ing d i rec t ly to your r igh t and he 's

wearing agray sports jacket and astriped —blue,

s t r i p e d t i e .

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

Thank you.2 5 Q .
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1 3 3

1 MS. GULLETT: Y o u r H o n o r , l * d a s k t h e r e c o r d t o

reflec t the iden t ifica t ion o f the de fendant , M ichae l Er ic

N e l s o n , b y t h i s w i t n e s s .

THE COURT: T h e r e c o r d w i l l r e fl e c t t h a t s h e h a s

2

3

4

i d e n t i fi e d t h e d e f e n d a n t i n t h i s c a s e .5

6 Y o u r H o n o r , w i t h t h a t , t h e s t a t eM S . G U L L E T T :

wou ld pass th i s w i tness .

THE COURT: R e c r o s s , M r . A d a m s ?

7

8

9 R E C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I Q N

1 0 B Y M R . A D A M S

MS. B lanchard , Iwant to make sure tha t nobody ge ts1 1 Q .

c o n f u s e d h e r e .1 2

T h eYou are telling us that you went to the FBI.

FBI has taken no action or anybody from the Federal

Government, against Mr. Nelson to your knowledge, have

they?

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

Ibel ieve they might have in 2019, but Ican ' t say

w i t h c o n v i c t i o n .

He 's never been arrested, never been charged, never

been nothing. The first time he was arrested is when he

was arrested because of your accusations; isn't that true?

THE COURT: If you know, ma'am. If you know the

answer to say tha t ques t ion .

I d o n ' t k n o w f o r s u r e i f h e ' s b e e n a r r e s t e d b e f o r e .

(By Mr. Adams) well, he worked for you for seven

1 7 A .

1 8

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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1 3 4

1 y e a r s , r i g h t ?

2 A . Y e s .

3 Used to be on your board of d i rectors?

For avery shor t pe r iod o f t ime . Ihad no th ing to

do w i th tha t , by the way.

MR. ADAMS: N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE COURT: Thank you, ma 'am. You may s tep

Q .

4 A .

5

6

7

d o w n .8

THE WITNESS: Thank you.9

Ms. Gul le t t , you may ca11 your next1 0 T H E C O U R T :

w i t n e s s .1 1

Yo u r H o n o r, a t t h i s t i m e t h e s t a t e1 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

w o u l d c a l l D e n i s e K r a m e r .1 3

M a ' a m , i f y o u ' d r a i s e y o u r r i g h t1 4 T H E C O U R T :

hand, p lease.1 5

S w e a r t o t e l l t h e t r u t h , t h e w h o l e t r u t h , a n d

nothing but the truth, so help me God?

THE WITNESS: I d o .

1 6

1 7

1 8

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you , ma 'am, i f you ' l l

h a v e a s e a t i n t h i s c h a i r .

1 9

2 0

THE WITNESS: Okay.2 1

Pul l that microphone up c lose enough

to your face so that you can speak directly into it.

Iwould just simply remind you also that the court

reporter has to take down everything that's being said, so

2 2 T H E C O U R T :

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 3 5

if you'll speak loudly enough and clearly enough so that

she can understand you, and allow Ms. Gullett or Mr. Adams

to ask you the question and finish it before you begin to

t a l k . O k a y ?

1

2

3

4

5 THE WITNESS: Y e s , Y o u r H o n o r .

Please state your name and spel l6 T H E C O U R T :

your las t name.7

THE WITNESS: D e n i s e K r a m e r , K - R - A - M - E - R .

THE court: m s . G u l l e t t , y o u m a y i n q u i r e .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

WHEREUPON, DENISE KRAMER, having been duly sworn to

tel l the truth, the whole t ruth, and nothing but the

truth, was examined and testified as fol lows:

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N

1 5 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :

MS. Kramer, how are employed?

Iam currently employed by the Oklahoma state

Bureau of investigation as acomputer forensic examiner in

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8

the Internet Cr imes Against Chi ldren's uni t .

And how long have you been employed with the

1 9

Okay.2 0 Q .

O S B I ?2 1

Ihave been employed with OSBI for 21 years, but in

the capaci ty of aforensic examiner for the past e ight

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4 y e a r s .

And the capacity as aforensic examiner, does that2 5 Q .
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1 3 6

1 mean with the computers and the phones and a11 that?
2 A . Y e s .

3 OKay. So that's been for eight years?Q .

4 A . Y e s .

And what kind of training and experience --

We11, what k ind o f t ra in ing do you have tha t

c e r t i fi e s y o u t o b e a b l e t o d o t h i s j o b ?

5 Q .

6

7

I a m a c e r t i fi e d f o r e n s i c c o m p u t e r e x a m i n e r w i t h

t h e I n t e r n a t i o n a l A s s o c i a t i o n o f C o m p u t e r i n v e s t i g a t o r

I a m a l s o a C e l l e b r i t e c e r t i fi e d l o g i c a l

8 A .

9

s p e d a l i s t s .

ope ra to r and aCe l l eb r i t e ce r t i fied phys i ca l ana l ys t .

And what kind of education do you have?

Ihave aBachelor 's degree f rom the Univers i ty of

1 0

1 1

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

Oklahoma in sociology and criminal knowledge.

A n d a s f a r a s — d o y o u g o t o , l i k e , y e a r l y

trainings or do you have to stay up to date on your

t ra in ing , o r any th ing l i ke tha t?

Ye s , w e d o . I h a v e a r e c e r t i fi c a t i o n e v e r y t h r e e

years to stay current on my certification, and Ihave

attended over 300 hours of computer and cel l phone

t r a i n i n g h o u r s .

And are you up to date on your certification?

1 4

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

1 8 A .

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3 Y e s .A .

A l l r i gh t . So you men t i oned a l o t o f d i f f e ren t

things, so I'm going to try to break it down in anutshell

2 4 Q .

2 5
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fo r t he j u r y and myse l f , wha t do you do?

I e x a m i n e d i g i t a l e v i d e n c e d e v i c e s . S o t h a t c a n b e

f rom ce l l phones to tab le ts to computers and the hard

d r i v e s t h a t a r e c o n t a i n e d w i t h i n t h o s e .

And how do you go about typ ica l l y ge t t ing these

h a r d d r i v e s t o t a k e a l o o k a t t h e m ?

So, on computers it will be submitted by a

requesting agency, and Iwill remove the hard drive and

then examine those us ing our fo rens ic so f tware and our

f o r e n s i c t o o l s .

A n d w h e n y o u t a l k a b o u t d i f f e r e n t d i g i t a l e v i d e n c e ,

have you had an opportunity to examine digital evidence

f rom ce l l phones?

Y e s .

And as far as acel l phone that we typical ly carry

in our pocket today, what type of technology is inside

that cell phone that you're able to look at?

Many cel l phones are —have internet capabi l i t ies,

s o w e ' r e a b l e t o l o o k a t e - m a i l s , b r o w s i n g h i s t o r y t h r o u g h

the internet, text messages, pictures, videos, any kind of

application that is downloaded on the phone.

A l l r i gh t . A re you fam i l i a r w i th rece i v ing i t ems

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h a M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ?

1

2 A .

3

4

5 Q .

6

7 A .

8

9

1 0

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

1 8 A .

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 Y e s .A .

And do you recall what types of items youOkay.2 5 Q .
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1 r e c e i v e d a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h a t n a m e ?

2 I r e c e i v e d t w o i P h o n e s .A .

3 Okay. And do you remember what version of iPhonesQ .

t h o s e w e r e ?4

There was one iPhone 7, Ibe l ieve, and an iPhone 85 A .

P l u s .6

Okay. And do you recall which agency submitted

t h o s e t o t h e O S B I ?

7 Q .

8

B a r t l e s v i l l e p d .9 A .

Okay. And d id you have an oppor tun i t y to take a

l o o k a t t h o s e i t e m s ?

1 0 Q .

1 1

I d i d .1 2 A .

A l l r i gh t . And Iapo log i ze , l * ve sk ipped ove r a

v e r y i m p o r t a n t p a r t ,

so we talked about you get the item, you look at

the hard drive, talked about cell phones, how do you take

alook at these items? what do you use to look at ahard

d r i v e o n a p h o n e ?

So for cel l phones, basical ly, when Iget them, I

remove the SIM card so that it prevents the cell phone

from reaching and —asignal so that they may not be

remote wiped or data be overwritten on the devices. I

will put the devices in what we call aFaraday Box, and

put them in airplane mode, turn wifi off, turn Bluetooth
o f f i f i t * s o n . A n d t h e n o n c e t h a t i s d o n e , I w i l l

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 c o n n e c t i t t o o u r f o r e n s i c m a c h i n e a n d I w i l l

f o rens i c so f twa re , wh i ch i n t h i s case wou ld be ou r

Cel lebr i te software to perform an extract ion of data off

o f t h e d e v i c e .

r u n o u r

2

3

4

Okay.5 And are you tra ined on how to use th isQ .

C e l l e b r i t e s o f t w a r e ?6

7 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u f o r t h a t . S o r r y f o r s k i p p i n g

o v e r t h a t i m p o r t a n t s t e p .

Okay, so back to these phones tha t you rece ived ,

were you able to take alook at them, hook them up to the

f o r e n s i c s o f t w a r e - - o r f o r e n s i c m a c h i n e , a n d p e r f o r m t h e

C e l l e b r i t e s o f t w a r e ?

8 Q .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 Y e s , I w a s .

Okay, starting with the iPhone 7, what did you do?

The - - Ihave my repor t . May I re fe r to tha t?

A b s o l u t e l y.

MS. GULLETT: May she, 3udge? Seeing how she's

an expert in this field, Iwould ask that she be able to

r e f e r t o h e r r e p o r t d u r i n g h e r t e s t i m o n y.

THE COURT: Mr. Adams, do you have any comment?

MR. ADAMS: I have no object ion to her referr ing

A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

t o i t .2 3

THE COURT: Okay. Yes , ma 'am, you may.2 4

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .2 5
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1 4 0

1 On the iPhone —it was actually an iPhone 7Plus.

Iwas ab le to pe r fo rm apar t i a l fi le sys tem ex t rac t i on

because the device was locked with afour-digit pin code.

Q . ( B y M S . G u l l e t t ) O k a y, s o w h e n y o u — s o r r y. I ' m

try ing to th ink of a l l the r ight ways to ask.

So when you say that i t was locked with a

four-digit pin code, were you able to unlock that phone?

I w a s n o t a b l e t o u n l o c k t h i s d e v i c e . I t w a s n o t

suppo r ted f o r ou r p i n code de te rm ina t i on .

Q . o k a y , w e r e y o u a b l e t o g e t s o m e i n f o r m a t i o n o f f o f

th i s phone?

A .

2

3

4

5

6

7

8 A .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2 Y e s , I w a s .

Al l r ight. How did you do that?

w h e n I c o n n e c t e d i t t o o u r f o r e n s i c s o f t w a r e , i t

was able to pull up asummary of the device. It was able

to tell me what type of iPhone it was, the version of the

operating system that the iPhone was running, and
i d e n t i fi e d s o m e e - m a i l a d d r e s s e s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e

A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

I t was supported for extract ion, so Iwas able to

perform apartial file system extraction on the device.
And what e-mai l addresses did you look at on

d e v i c e .1 9

2 0

Okay,

t h i s i P h o n e 7 P l u s ?

2 1 Q .

2 2

I t i d e n t i fi e d t w o e - m a i l a d d r e s s e s ;

michaeler icne lson@iCloud.com and ne lsonte lco®gmai1.com.

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u .

2 3 A .

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 And did you have an opportunity to examine the
App le iPhone 8P lus?

I d i d .

Al l r ight. And was that phone locked?

I t w a s .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

5 A .

6 Okay. And what did you end up doing with thatQ .

i P h o n e ?7

That particular iPhone was supported for our pin

c o d e d e t e r m i n a t i o n , s o I i n i t i a t e d t h a t , a n d i t w a s a b l e

to de termine the p in code,

per fo rm a fu l l fi le sys tem ex t rac t ion on tha t dev ice ,

having that known pin code.

And on this phone, did you locate any e-mail

a d d r e s s e s a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h i s i P h o n e 8 P l u s ?

8 A .

9

A t t h a t p o i n t , I w a s a b l e t o1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3 Q .

1 4

I d i d .1 5 A .

And what e-mai l addresses d id you locate on that1 6 Q .

phone?1 7

Mi chael eri cnel son@i Cl oud. com,

nelsontelco@gmail.com, and padrimiquel@iCloud.com.

I f you don' t mind, wi l l you spel l that last one for

t h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r .

P - A - D - R - I - M - I - Q - U - E - L .

Thank you, ma'am.

And so after you have performed these examinations

of the phone, the Cellebrite and such, what happens with

1 8 A .

1 9

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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1 a l l t h i s d a t a ?

2 I take the ex t rac t ions and Ipa rse i t us ing a

di fferent sof tware tool through Cel lebr i te, and l*m able

t o g e n e r a t e a r e p o r t w h i c h t h e n I c o p y o v e r t o a t h u m b

drive and give back to the requesting agency for further

r e v i e w .

A .

3

4

5

6

So did you at any t ime search through these phones

f o r a n y s p e c i fi c i n f o r m a t i o n ?

I d i d n o t .

D i d y o u — d o y o u w r i t e a r e p o r t w h i l e y o u ' r e d o i n g

7 Q .

8

9 A .

1 0 Q .

t h i s ?1 1

Y e s , I d o .

okay. And what did you do with those reports?

They are disseminated to the requesting agency,

okay. And in th is s i tuat ion, d id you wr i te one or

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

more repor ts?1 6

Iw ro te two repo r t s . The fi r s t r epo r t con ta i ned

the iPhone 7P lus and the 8P lus , be fo re the p in code was

determined, once the pin code was determined for the

iPhone 8Plus and Iperformed those addit ional

ex t rac t ions , I then genera ted asecond repor t fo r tha t

d e v i c e o n l y.

1 7 A .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

Yo u r H o n o r, i f I m a y a p p r o a c h ?2 3 M S . G U L L E T T :

2 4 THE COURT: Y e s .

(By MS. Gullett) Iam going to hand you what is2 5 Q .

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A



1 4 3

1 m a r k e d a s s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t N u m b e r 7 . Do you recognize that

d o c u m e n t ?2

3 Y e s , I d o .

A 11 r i g h t . A n d i s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e

d e p i c t i o n o f a d o c u m e n t y o u ' r e f a m i l i a r w i t h ?

Y e s , i t i s .

A l 1 r i g h t . C a n y o u t e 11 m e w h a t t h a t i s ?

T h i s i s m y f o r e n s i c e x a m i n a t i o n r e p o r t .

Okay. And wha t repo r t number i s t ha t?

Report Number 1.

A n d w h a t c a s e n u m b e r i s t h a t ?

A .

4 Q .

5

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q-

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

I t i s O S B I L a b N u m b e r 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 1 1 7 7 .

And who is it pertaining -- who's the subject?

The subject is Michael Eric Nelson.

And then who is the department you are reporting it

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 t o ?

I t ' s repor ted to Bar t lesv i l le Po l ice Depar tment .

Al l r ight . Thank you, ma'am.

MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , t h e s t a t e w o u l d m o v e

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9

t o a d m i t s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 7 .2 0

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE court: S t a t e ' s N u m b e r 7 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .

(By MS. Gullett) I'm going to hand you State's

Exhibit Number 8. And do you recognize that document?

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 4 4

1 I d o .A .

2 And is that atrue and accurate depict ion of a

documen t t ha t you a re f am i l i a r w i t h?

I t i s .

Q .

3

4 A .

A 11 r i g h t . Wo u l d y o u p l e a s e d e s c r i b e w h a t t h a t5 Q .

d o c u m e n t i s .6

T h i s i s m y f o r e n s i c e x a m i n a t i o n r e p o r t , R e p o r t7 A .

N u m b e r 2 .8

A n d w h a t ' s t h e O S B l c a s e fi l e n u m b e r o nA l l r i g h t .9 Q .

t h e r e ?1 0

I t i s O S B I L a b N u m b e r 2 0 2 2 - 0 0 11 7 7 .

And who is the subject?

M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n .

And who is the agency that you would be reporting

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

t h i s b a c k t o ?1 5

B a r t l e s v i l l e P o l i c e D e p a r t m e n t .

All right. And Iwould ask —so you said on —

MS. GULLETT: o h , s o r r y . Y o u r H o n o r , s t a t e

w o u l d m o v e t o a d m i t s t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 8 .

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s N u m b e r 8 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .

(By MS. Gullett) so you said that you were able to

perform afull extraction of the iPhone 8Plus?
Y e s .

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5 A .
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Okay. And t hen you c rea ted a thumb d r i ve?

T h a t i s c o r r e c t .

Did you label that thumb dr ive wi th aspecific

1 Q .

2 A .

3 Q .

l a b e l ?4

I d i d .5 A .

What d id you ca l l tha t thumb d r i ve?

T h a t p a r t i c u l a r t h u m b d r i v e w o u l d b e — t h e

packaging would be labeled with the lab number and the

item number, which was Item Number 4.

MR. ADAMS: Your Honor, can we approach?

(whereupon, abench conference was had

outs ide the hear ing o f the ju ry. Th is

bench conference was not arequested part of

t h i s t r a n s c r i p t . )

MS. GULLETT: M a y I a p p r o a c h . Yo u r H o n o r ?

THE COURT: Y e s .

MS. GULLETT: O k a y . T h a n k y o u .

(By MS. Gullett) I'm going to hand you what I've

marked as —it 's going to be Court 's Exhibit 1, so I 'm

going to hand you that.

Do you recognize the packaging and what I've handed

6 Q .

7 A .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0

2 1

you?2 2

I d o .2 3 A .

I f you ' l l l ook ins ide the packag ing , w i l l

you —do you recognize what's in there?

Okay.2 4 Q .

2 5
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This is the thumb dr ive that Iproduced that

contains my exhibi t report .

Okay.

Ye s , t h e r e i s .

A n d w h a t d o e s t h a t l a b e l e n t a i l ?

1 A .

2

3 O n t h e o u t s i d e o f t h a t , i s t h e r e a l a b e l ?Q .

4 A .

5 Q .

T h e l a b e l c o n t a i n s o u r l a b n u m b e r a n d t h e i t e m6 A .

number, and my in i t i a l s and da te .

S o t h e l a b n u m b e r o n t h e r e , j u s t f o r — t o

keep the record c lean, i s what?

7

Okay.8 Q .

9

2 0 2 2 - 0 0 1 1 7 7 .1 0 A .

O k a y . A n d t h e — s o r r y ,

w h a t w a s t h e o t h e r n u m b e r ? o h , t h e — y o u r

i n i t i a l s a r e o n t h e r e , w h a t w a s t h e o t h e r t h i n g t h a t w a s

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3

o n t h e r e ? S o r r y .

T h e i t e m n u m b e r .

Yes, what is the item number that's on there?

I t e m N u m b e r 4 .

okay. And then your initials. And what date is on

1 4

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

t h e r e ?1 9

M a r c h 3 0 t h o f 2 0 2 2 .

Okay. And why would you have dated it on that day?

That 's the date that Ip laced the thumb dr ive into

the package and which Isealed the package with my
i n i t i a l s a n d d a t e .

Al l r ight. Thank you very much.

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2 A .

2 3

2 4

2 5 Q .
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1 MS. GULLETT: A l l r i g h t . A n d , Y o u r H o n o r , w i t h

t h a t a n d t h e a d m i s s i o n — o r w i t h t h a t , t h e s t a t e w o u l d

p a s s t h i s w i t n e s s .

2

3

Mr. Adams, you may cross-examine the4 T H E C O U R T :

w i t n e s s .5

MR. ADAMS: A 1 1 r i g h t .6

7 CROSS-EXAMINATION

8 B Y M R . A D A M S :

T h i s r e p o r t t h a t y o u — t h a tA l l r i g h t , m a ' a m ,

you ' ve go t , i t ' s , l i ke , 96 ,000 pages , i sn ' t i t ?

9 Q .

1 0

I w o u l d e s t i m a t e t h a t t o b e c o r r e c t , y e s .

NOW, the iPhone 8ca r r i es amin imum g ig o f

64 gig; would you agree with that?

1 1 A .

o k a y.1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4 Y e s .A .

But on your jump drive that you got there,

Why,

Okay,

you only got, like, 10 other 12 gig, thereabouts,

when you do your phone report, is there so much less data

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7

t h a t ' s c o l l e c t e d t h a n w h a t ' s a c t u a l l y o n t h e p h o n e ?

It depends on how much data is actually on the
I t a l s o c o n d e n s e s t h e i n f o r m a t i o n , s o i t c o u l d b e

So if you have a

1 8

1 9 A .

phone,

possible that the phone was not full.

64-gig cell phone and there's only 12 gig of data on the

2 0

2 1

2 2

device, then, obviously, my report is not going to be

I t a lso condenses i t down by p roduc ing aPDF.

2 3

6 4 - g i g s .

And, in addi t ion to that , our Cel lebr i te sof tware, our

2 4

2 5
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forensic software, is only able to get what information

t h a t o u r f o r e n s i c s o f t w a r e h a s — i s a b l e t o g e t .

c a n ' t v e r i f y t h a t i t h a s e x t r a c t e d a l l d a t a o f f o f t h e

d e v i c e .

1

2 s o I

3

4

So i t ' s not an exact copy o f the phone?Okay.5 Q .

6 A . N O .

Okay. And o f ten t imes s tu f f i s le f t ou t?

I w o u l d s a y m o r e t h a n l i k e l y, y e s .

M o r e t h a n l i k e l y, o k a y.

IS i t acase where you ' re , l i ke , making adec is ion

o f o n t h i s c a s e I w a n t t h i s a n d o n t h i s c a s e I w a n t t h a t ,

or is it just, like, astandard protocol, we get what we

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0

1 1

1 2

get and this is what we get?

I t ' s as tandard procedure , we ge t i t —we ex t rac t

And that 's why you wi l l see on my

1 3

1 4 A .

a l l d a t a p o s s i b l e ,

report there are multiple extractions, so that ican
ensu re t ha t Iwas ab le ex t rac t t he mos t amoun t o f da ta

1 5

1 6

1 7

p o s s i b l e .1 8

So there may be things that are missing from

your extraction, things that were on the phone that didn't
make i t into your extract ion?

Okay.1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2 C o r r e c t .

But everything in your extraction came from the

A .

2 3 Q .

phone?2 4

2 5 Y e s .A .
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Now, you t a l ked abou t d i f f e ren t e -ma i l s on t he1 Q .

i P h o n e 8 ?2

3 A . Y e s .

Okay. Now, one of them was padr imigue!?

T h a t i s c o r r e c t .

O k a y. A n d i s i t — n o w, t h a t — d o y o u r e c o g n i z e

that to be Spanish?

I w o u l d a s s u m e s o , b u t I — I c a n ' t v e r i f y t h a t i t

4 Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

7

8 A .

i s i n S p a n i s h .9

DO you recognize that Miguel is also aSpanish

v e r s i o n f o r M i c h a e l ?

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 Y e s .

And when you're going through the phone, did you

see documents that led you to conclude that Mr. Nelson was

l i v i n g i n S p a i n ?

Idid not actually go through the data that was

Iperform the extract ion and generated a

report in which Icopied to the thumb drive for the

A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6 A .

e x t r a c t e d .1 7

1 8

requester to further go through.

S o i t w o u l d c o m e b a c k t o t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e —

1 9

o k a y.

T h a t i s c o r r e c t ,

were either of these devices that you had damaged?

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3 I — y e s .

w h i c h o n e ?

The 7Plus, the screen was cracked and —Ihad to

A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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r e f e r t o t h e o t h e r p o r t i o n o f t h e r e p o r t t o d e t e r m i n e ,

the 8Plus, there was no damage noted.

Now, there 's c racked and then there 's , you know,

I m e a n , w a s i t , l i k e , s h a t t e r e d ?

T y p i c a l l y , i f i t ' s s h a t t e r e d , I w i l l i n d i c a t e t h a t .

So just on the basis of my notes indicating that the

s c r e e n w a s c r a c k e d , l — I d o n ' t r e c a l l w i t h o u t s e e i n g t h e

d e v i c e , b u t I — I — I d o n ' t t h i n k i t w o u l d h a v e b e e n

s h a t t e r e d .

1 o n

2

3 Q .

c r a c k e d .4

5 A .

6

7

8

9

Okay. So is i t fair to say that, based on your

standard practice, you would have l isted if i t was

shattered, and since you didn' t l is t i t , you would th ink

that i t probably wasn' t shattered?

C o r r e c t .

But that because you listed that it was cracked,

that you know it had some damage?

T h a t ' s c o r r e c t .

MR. ADAMS: I f I c o u l d h a v e j u s t o n e m o m e n t ?

NO fu r t he r ques t i ons .

THE COURT: MS. Gu l le t t , do you have any

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8

1 9

2 0

r e d i r e c t ?2 1

MS. GULLETT: N O , t h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

THE COURT: Thank you, ma'am. You may step down

and you may be excused as well.

THE WITNESS: Thank you. Your Honor.

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 5 1
1 THE COURT: We're going to take ashort break.

Ladies and gentlemen, it's not quite aquarter to
three, so we'll take abreak until three o'clock.

Once again, I'm going to remind you not to discuss
the case amongst yourselves while you're here.

2

3

4

5
Y O U

6 certainly may walk outside if you choose to walk outside,
use the restrooms, whatever7

you want to do, but if you'll

be back in the jury room and ready to go by three o’clock.
9 T h a n k y o u .

8

1 0 Take ashort break.
1 1 (Whereupon, ashort recess was taken.

Thereafter, proceedings continued as follows:)
Okay.

1 2

1 3 T H E C O U R T:

a f t e r asho r t b reak .

E r i c N e l s o n ,

they are ready.

we are now back on the record

The state of Oklahoma versus Michael
Everybody is back and has announced that

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7 So, Madam Bailiff, would you please direct the
jurors to their place in the jury box.

The state may call its next witness.
M S . G U L L E T T:

1 8

1 9

2 0 Thank you. Judge.
At this time, the state would call2 1

Craig Piercy.

if you'd raise your right hand.
2 2 THE COURT: s i r .
2 3 p lease?

2 4 swear to tell the truth, the whole truth,
nothing but the truth, so help me God?

a n d
2 5
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1 5 2

1 THE WITNESS: Y e s .

THE COURT: O k a y . I f y o u ' l l h a v e a s e a t t h e r e

i n t h e w i t n e s s c h a i r . P u l l t h a t m i c r o p h o n e u p c l o s e

enough to you r mou th tha t you can speak d i rec t l y i n to i t .

I w o u l d j u s t a s k y o u t o r e m e m b e r t h a t t h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r

i s t r y i n g t o t a k e d o w n e v e r y t h i n g t h a t ' s b e i n g s a i d , s o i f

you ' l l speak loud ly enough and c lear ly enough tha t she can

hear you, she would much apprec ia te i t .

P l u s , i f y o u w o u l d w a i t u n t i l t h e s t a t e o r

Mr. Adams finishes their question before you begin to

a n s w e r s o y o u ' r e n o t t a l k i n g o v e r o n e a n o t h e r, w e k i n d o f

tend to do tha t somet imes , so —and Imay have to remind

y o u d u r i n g t h e c o u r s e o f y o u r t e s t i m o n y, b u t d o n ' t w o r r y,

I t h i n k I h a v e t o r e m i n d e v e r y b o d y.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE court: Thank you .

You may inquire.

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . J u d g e .

WHEREUPON, CRAIG PIERCY, having been duly sworn to

t e l l t h e t r u t h , t h e w h o l e t r u t h , a n d n o t h i n g b u t t h e

t r u t h , w a s e x a m i n e d a n d t e s t i fi e d a s f o l l o w s :

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2 DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 3 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :

Mr. P ie rcy, w i l l you p lease s ta te your name and

s p e l l y o u r l a s t n a m e f o r t h e r e c o r d .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 C r a i g P i e r c y.

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

Mr. Piercy, are you from Oklahoma?

A . P - I - E - R - C - Y .

2 Q .

3

4 A . N o .

Al l r ight , where do you reside at?

S a l i n a , K a n s a s .

T h a n k y o u , s i r .

And, Mr. Piercy, are you familiar with Cynthia and

A n t h e m B l a n c h a r d ?

5 Q .

6 A .

7 Q .

8

9

1 0 A . Y e s .

How are you fami l ia r w i th the B lanchards?

I i n v e s t e d i n o n e o f t h e i r c o m p a n i e s .

Okay. And which company is that?

H e r a S o f t .

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

I * m s o r r y, w h i c h o n e ?

H e r a S o f t .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

And how long ago d id you inves t w i th HeraSof t , i f1 7 Q .

you know?1 8

I d o n ' t k n o w . T h r e e - - t w o , t h r e e y e a r s a g o . I1 9 A .

d o n ' t k n o w .2 0

okay. And do you know aman named Michael Eric2 1 Q .

N e l s o n ?2 2

1 d o n ' t k n o w h i m p e r s o n a l l y.

Have you had any personal deal ings with Mr. Nelson?

3ust the phone call he made to me.

I ' v e - - h e c a l l e d m e .2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5 A .
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1 Okay. Have you had any business dealings withQ .

2 M r . N e l s o n ?

3 A . N o .

A l l r i g h t .4 Other than this phone call you've

mentioned, have you had any other contact with Mr. Nelson?

Q .

5

6 A . N o .

7 A l l r i g h t . when did you hear f rom Michael Er icQ .

N e l s o n ?8

9 S e p t e m b e r , I b e l i e v e i t w a s .

okay. You remember if it was at the beginning of

Sep tember? M idd le? End?

Probab ly beg inn ing .

Okay. DO you remember, bas ica l ly, what - - what was

around tha t phone ca l l?

THE COURT: M s . G u l l e t t , i f y o u w o u l d h a v e h i m

ident i fy the year that he's speaking of.

MS. GULLETT: I ' m s o r r y , l u d g e , t h a t ' s v e r y

t r u e . W e h a v e b e e n t a l k i n g a b o u t a l o t o f y e a r s . T h a n k

A .

1 0 Q .

1 1

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9 y o u .

(By Ms . Gu l l e t t ) wha t yea r d id you rece i ve t ha t

phone ca l l? You sa id the beg inn ing o f September?

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 2 0 2 2 .A .

2022 . Thank you .

A l l r i g h t , s o t h i s p h o n e c a l l t h a t y o u r e c e i v e d ,

d o y o u — I g u e s s , fi r s t o f a l l , t o w h i c h p h o n e w a s t h a t ?

2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5
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1 TO my cell phone.

And is that abusiness phone or apersonal

A .

2 Okay.Q .

phone?3

4 lt*s the only phone Ihave. it*s mainly business.

Okay. All right. And what was this phone call

A .

5 Q .

6 a b o u t ?

7 He just called and asked if iwas Craig Piercy and

if Melissa Piercy was my wife, and Isaid yes. And I

s a i d , w h o a r e y o u ? A n d h e i n t r o d u c e d h i m s e l f . A n d i —

h e w a s g e t t i n g i n t o s o m e s t u f f , a n d I w a s — I h a d a

meet ing —ithink my boy had tennis lessons Ihad to get

h i m t o , s o I t o l d h i m , y o u k n o w, c o u l d y o u j u s t c a l l m e

the nex t day abou t n ine o ' c lock in the morn ing .

O k a y. S o y o u c u t t h a t p h o n e c a l l s h o r t ?

A .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 Q .

1 5 Y e s .A .

A l l r i g h t . D i d h e c a l l y o u t h e n e x t d a y ?1 6 Q .

1 7 A . Y e s .

So what 's the nex t day 's phone ca l l about?

H e c a l l e d m e a n d h e w a s — l e t ' s s e e — a s k e d m e

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

a b o u t i f I b e l i e v e d I i n v e s t e d i n H e r a S o f t a n d t h a t t h e r e2 0

w a s — l i k e . A n t h e m G o l d a n d R e d n e c k Ya c h t C l u b , a n d a l l

t h i s o t h e r s t u f f , a n d I s a i d , I b e l i e v e I j u s t i n v e s t e d i n

And he sa id , We l1 , d id you know tha t i t ' s a

P o n z i s c h e m e , t h a t t h e y ' r e j u s t t r y i n g t o g e t m o n e y.

And he goes, wel l .

2 1

2 2

H e r a S o f t .2 3

A n d2 4

I ' m , l i k e , n o , l d i d n ' t k n o w t h a t .2 5
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t h e r e ' s m u l t i p l e l a w s u i t s .1 A n d I s a i d , W e l l , i f y o u h a v e

all these information, could you e-mail i t to me, and I2

3 gave him my e-mail address and —

o k a y.

— I n e v e r d i d r e c e i v e a n y t h i n g .

H e a s k e d m e a b o u t a f r i e n d o f m i n e t h a t ' s a l s o

i n v e s t e d i n i t .

4 Q .

5 A .

6

7

8 A n d w h o w a s t h a t ?Q .

9 Kel ly Dunn.

Okay.

A .

1 0 Q .

And Ijust —he asked me if chad got him into

HeraSoft and Isaid. No, Kel ly Dunn's a long f r iend of

We ' re ac tua l l y bo th home bu i l de rs and compet i to rs ,

but we're st i l l f r iends and partners in other businesses.

A n d I s a i d , I g o t h i m i n t h e r e , I i n t r o d u c e d h i m t o A n t h e m

and Cynth ia .

Okay.

1 1 A .

1 2

mi ne.1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7 Let 's break down what you said,

that Mr. Nelson asked you if chad got Kelly into HeraSoft,

r i g h t ?

Y o u s a i dQ .

1 8

1 9

2 0 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t . Who is Chad tha t you ' re ta lk ing about?2 1 Q .

2 2 C h a d K o e h n .A .

Okay. Do you know Chad?

Y e s , I d o .

A l l r i gh t . How do you know h im?

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



1 5 7

1 W e ' r e f r i e n d s a n d I h a v e s o m e i n v e s t m e n t s w i t h h i m .

Okay. And you said Ke11y Dunn is another

ind iv idua l you know?

A .

2 Q .

3

4 A . Y e s .

A n d t h i s w a s a n a m e t h a t M r . N e l s o n n a m e d ?5 Q .

6 A . Y e s .

Okay. And as far as you ' re aware, Mr. Dunn, does

he have deal ings wi th the B lanchards?

Jus t i nves ted i n t he i r company.

S o r r y , i h e a r d y o u s a y t h a t . I t w e n t r i g h t i n o n e

7 Q -

8

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1 e a r

He asked about Mark R i t te r, too .1 2 A .

Okay. And who i s Mark R i t t e r?1 3 Q .

H e ' s a b u s i n e s s m a n i n S a l i n a . I d o n ' t - - I ' m n o t1 4 A .

f r i e n d s w i t h h i m o r a n y t h i n g l i k e t h a t ,

b e c a u s e h e o w n e d t h e c o o r s ' d i s t r i b u t o r s h i p i n s a l i n a , s o

I k n o w .

I k n o w w h o h e i s1 5

1 6

1 7

And as fa r as you ' re aware , does Mr. R i t te r a l so

k n o w t h e B l a n c h a r d s ?

1 8 Q .

1 9

I w o u l d a s s u m e s o . I a s s u m e t h e y ' r e i n v e s t e d i n t o2 0 A .

H e r a s o f t .2 1

So you said that you provided Mr. Nelson

wi th your e -mai l address a f te r he ment ioned someth ing

about Ponzi schemes, and you said you never received any

i n f o r m a t i o n ?

Okay.2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5

D I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P T



1 5 8

1 A . N O .

2 Are you aware of any issues as far as HeraSoft goes
as you as an investor?

Q .

3

4 A . N o .

5 What did this —it*s kind of an awkward question.

But what did this phone call feel like to you, to get

called by someone you didn't know, to tell you this

information about acompany that you've put money into?

Ididn't know what was going on.

believe Iasked him if he was an investor, too, and he

told me his fami ly bought in for mi l l ions of dol lars,

h e - - I d o n ' t k n o w .

Q .

6

7

8

9 A . I t w a s l i k e — i

1 0

1 1 A n d

1 2 I ' m , l i k e , w e l l , i f y o u ' r e t r y i n g t o

downgrade this company and you're invested in it, why1 3

would you do that because you want them to succeed.

Did Mr. Nelson explain to you how he got your phone

1 4

1 5 Q .

n u m b e r ?1 6

1 7 Iasked him how he got my name and number, heA . Y e s .

said through SEC filings.

N o w, j u s t t o b e c l e a r, f o r t h e r e c o r d , h a v e e v e r,

a t any t ime , p rov ided your phone number to aMichae l E r i c

N e l s o n ?

1 8

1 9 Q .

2 0

2 1

2 2 A . N O .

2 3 MS. GULLETT: N O f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s . J u d g e .

Thank you.2 4

Mr. Adams, you may cross-examine the2 5 T H E C O U R T :
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w i t n e s s .1

2 £RQSS,-EXAMINATION

3 B Y M R . A D A M S

NOW, sir, did you meet Cynthia and Anthem Blanchard

through Chad Koehn?

Imet them through ameeting in Salina, Kansas, and

they gave us bi l l , you know, trying to get investors in

t h e i r c o m p a n i e s , a n d i d e c i d e d t o i n v e s t .

Okay, was Koehn there?

H e w a s a t t h e fi r s t i n t r o d u c t i o n .

Yeah . So , and he ac tua l l y i n t roduced you to them?

4 Q .

5

6 A .

7

8

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 A . Y e s .

Okay,

i n t h e a u d i e n c e , i s n ' t h e ?

YOU are looking at Mr. Koehn, he's sitting1 3 Q .

1 4

Y e a h .1 5 A .

H e ' s a f r i e n d o f y o u r s ?

Of course , he i s .

And you've invested money with him?

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

Y e a h .1 8 Q .

w i t h C h a d ?1 9 A .

2 0 Q . Y e s .

My 401(k ) , my re t i rement p lan 's w i th Chad.

Ye a h , w h a t d i d y o u — w h a t — w h a t p o s i t i o n d i d h e

occupy when you invested tha t money? what was h is t i t le

and wha t wou ld you cons ide r h im , l i ke , ab roke r o r

s o m e t h i n g l i k e t h a t , o r i n v e s t m e n t a d v i s o r ?

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

2 5
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W h e n I i n v e s t e d m o n e y , I i n v e s t e d i n a l o t o f

d i f f e r e n t c o m p a n i e s , i m e a n —

1 A .

2

3 Q . I m e a n

— t h a t ' s w h a t I d o .4 A .

I ' m t a l k i n g s p e c i fi c a l l y w i t h C h a d ?

W i t h C h a d ?

5 Q .

6 A .

Y e a h .7 Q .

Ig ive h im my money once ayear for my s imple IRA

through my companies, and he invests i t .

He's been suspend.

8 A .

9

1 0 He doesn' t that anymore, doesQ .

h e ?1 1

I d o n ' t k n o w . H e ' s s t i l l g o t a b u s i n e s s .

You ' re no t aware o f h im su r rende r i ng h i s l i cense?

I h e a r d a b o u t h i m s u r r e n d e r i n g h i s l i c e n s e , b u t

h e ' s s t i l l g o t a b u s i n e s s . S o m e b o d y e l s e i n h i s

c o r p o r a t i o n h a s a l i c e n s e .

Yeah. And are you aware tha t he sur rendered h is

l i c e n s e b e c a u s e o f h i s i n v o l v e m e n t w i t h H e r a S o f t a n d

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 A .

1 5

1 6

1 7 Q .

1 8

Blanchards and the way that he ra ised the money v io lated

t h e e t h i c s o f h i s l i c e n s e ?

1 9

2 0

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r -2 1

2 2 A . I

2 3 THE COURT: l u s t a m o m e n t .

MS. GULLETT: F a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e . I t ' s n o t2 4

b e e n t e s t i fi e d t o .2 5
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1 I ' m a s k i n g i f h e ' s a w a r e o f i t .

That assumes fac ts no t in ev idence.

M R . A D A M S :

2 T H E C O U R T:

3 S u s t a i n e d .

4 (By Mr. Adams) Are you aware of the reason that he

—his license was suspended?

Q .

5

6 A . N O .

7 Are you alittle bit curious about, Hey, why did

the guy, who Itrust to invest my money, lose his license?

THE COURT: How i s t ha t r e l evan t , M r. Adams?

MR. ADAMS: I t g o e s t o h i s c r e d i b i l i t y , i t g o e s

to his bias with his friendship towards Mr. Koehn.

THE COURT: I t — w h e t h e r o r n o t h e ' s c u r i o u s

a b o u t i t i s n o t r e l e v a n t t o t h i s c a s e .

(By Mr. Adams) Did you take any actions to find out

why Mr. Koehn might have lost h is l icense?

Q .

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 Q .

1 5

1 6 A . N O .

1 7 Mr. Nelson was talking with you about you —taking

your deposition for alawsuit that he had that was ongoing

wi th Mr. Koehn, wasn ' t he?

Idon ' t know anyth ing about a lawsui t go ing

Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0 A . N o .

2 1 o n .

Y o u d o n ' t k n o w t h a t M r . K o e h n a n d M r . N e l s o n a r e2 2 Q .

2 3 i n v o l v e d i n a l a w s u i t ?

2 4 A . N O .

HOW good of friends are you with Mr. Koehn?2 5 Q .
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1 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ;

2 a rgumen ta t i ve .

3 THE COURT: A r g u m e n t a t i v e a n d i r r e l e v a n t .

(By Mr. Adams) And how did Mr. Koehn find out —

find out about th is te lephone cal l?

I c a l l e d a n d t o l d h i m .

4 Q .

5

6 A .

Okay. Do you know how the State of Oklahoma found7 Q .

o u t a b o u t i t ?8

9 MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r , n o t

r e l e v a n t .1 0

A g a i n , n o t r e l e v a n t , s o s u s t a i n e d .

(By Mr. Adams) would you want to know if you had

invested some money into aPonzi scheme?

I d o n ' t b e l i e v e i t ' s a P o n z i s c h e m e .

1 1 T H E C O U R T :

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4 A .

Are you aware that one of the former board members

a s s o c i a t e d w i t h t h e B l a n c h a r d s w a s i n d i c t e d f o r a f e d e r a l

1 5 Q .

1 6

P o n z i s c h e m e ?1 7

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Yo u r H o n o r ; a s s u m e s

f a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e .

1 8

1 9

THE COURT: s u s t a i n e d .2 0

(By Mr. Adams) Have you done anything to see if you

might have heard the t ru th f rom Mr. Nelson?

H o w ' s t h a t r e l e v a n t t o w h a t w e ' r e

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 T H E C O U R T :

here for, Mr. Adams?2 4

I ' l l a s k a d i f f e r e n t q u e s t i o n .2 5 M R . A D A M S :
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1 THE COURT: T h a n k y o u .

(By Mr. Adams) Are you so much friends with Mr.

Koehn that no matter what somebody told you, that you

wouldn't investigate? is your friendship that strong?

2 Q .

3

4

5 A . N O .

6 A r e y o u s o t i g h t w i t h t h e B l a n c h a r d s t h a t i f

somebody tried to give you awarning, that you wouldn't

i n v e s t i g a t e ?

Q .

7

8

I d o n ' t k n o w .9 Imean , t hey ' r e no t t he on l y company

I've invested in many companies, so you

A .

I ' v e i n v e s t e d i n .1 0

k n o w, i t ' s m y r i s k .1 1

1 2 MR. ADAMS: N O f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE COURT: R e d i r e c t , M s . G u l l e t t ?

MS. GULLETT: 3 u s t b r i e fl y , l u d g e .

1 3

1 4

1 5 R E D I R E C T E X A M I N A T I O N

1 6 B Y M S . G U L L E T T:

Mr. P ie r cy, t he money t ha t you ' ve i nves ted w i t h t he

B l a n c h a r d s , w i t h H e r a s o f t , w i t h t h i s c o m p a n y, w i t h M r.

Koehn, is any amount o f f r iendship more impor tant to you

than your own personal funds?

No, my money is more important to me.

T h a n k y o u , s i r.

MS. GULLETT: N O f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

THE COURT: M r . A d a m s ?

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4

MR. ADAMS: N o q u e s t i o n s .2 5
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1 THE COURT; Thank you, sir. You may step down
and you may be excused as awitness in this case.

S t a t e m a y c a l l i t s n e x t w i t n e s s .

2

3

4 M S . G U L L E T T : Yo u r H o n o r, a t t h i s t i m e , t h e

5 S t a t e w o u l d c a l l E l a i n e B a n e s .

6 Ma'am, if you would raise your rightT H E C O U R T:

hand, please.7

8 Swear to tel l the truth, the whole truth, and

nothing but the truth, so help me God?

THE WITNESS: Y e s , m a ' a m .

THE COURT: o k a y , i f y o u ' l l h a v e a s e a t i n t h a t

witness chair, please. Pull that microphone up close

enough to your mouth that you can speak directly into it.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: speak clearly and loudly enough that

the court reporter can hear you. And also, if you would

allow MS. Gullett or Mr. Adams to complete their question

before you begin to answer, and then they'll let you

answer fully before they begin to speak, so that we're not

t a l k i ng ove r one ano the r. I t makes i t r ea l l y d i f fi cu l t

f o r t h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r ,

so if you'd please state your full name and

spe l l you r l as t name , p l ease .

THE WITNESS: E l a i n e B a n e s . B - A - N - E - S .

THE COURT: Yo u m a y i n q u i r e .

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , J u d g e .

WHEREUPON, ELAINE BANES, having been duly sworn to

tel l the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the

t r u t h , w a s e x a m i n e d a n d t e s t i fi e d a s f o l l o w s :

2

3

4

5 D IRECT EXAMINAT ION

6 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :

Ms. Banes, how are you employed?

I *m an emp loyee o f t he C i t y o f Ba r t l esv i l l e as an

e x e c u t i v e a s s i s t a n t t o t h e c i t y m a n a g e r.

And how long have you worked for the City of

7 Q .

8 A .

9

Okay.1 0 Q .

B a r t l e s v i l l e ?1 1

1 2 T W e n t y - t w o y e a r s .

How long have you worked for the ci ty manager 's

A .

1 3 Q .

o f fi c e ?1 4

Tw e n t y - o n e a n d a h a l f .

And who is the current c i ty manager?

M i k e B a i l e y.

And as par t o f your job , do you rece ive e -ma i ls?

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A . Y e s .

Do you have an e-mail address?2 0 Q .

2 1 A . Y e s .

i s i t a w o r k e - m a i l a d d r e s s ?2 2 Q .

I t i s .2 3 A .

A n d f o r t h e r e c o r d , w h a t i s t h a t e - m a i lA l l r i g h t .2 4 Q .

a d d r e s s ?2 5
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1 R-E-B-A-N-E-s, @ci tyofbart lesvi11e.org.

And have you ever heard the name Michael Eric

A .

2 Q .

N e l s o n ?3

4 A . Y e s .

5 And do you recall on what day you first heard thatQ .

6 n a m e ?

7 Augus t 25 th o f ' 21 .

Okay.

A .

8 And i s i t poss ib le tha t cou ld have beenQ .

August 26th?9

1 0 Y e s . I t w a s o n e o f t h o s e .A .

Okay. And do you recall why you would have heard

t h e n a m e M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ?

Ireceived an e-mail from him requesting

1 1 Q .

1 2

1 3 A .

i n f o r m a t i o n .1 4

Al l r ight . And do you recal l what type of

information that e-mail was requesting?

He wanted to know how to reach the city attorney.

And for the record, who is the city attorney?

l e s s K a n e .

And was Mr. Kane the attorney in August of 2021?

Ye s , m a ' a m .

A l l r i g h t . A n d w h e n y o u s a w t h i s e - m a i l , d i d i t

concern you a t a l l ?

1 5 Q .

1 6

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2 Q .

2 3

2 4 A . N o .

A l l r i g h t .2 5 Was there —what type o f language wasQ .
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1 in this e-mail that you saw?

If Iremember correctly, it was pretty
s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d ,

to contact the c i ty a t torney.

What did you end up doing with this e-mail?

Iforwarded it to the city attorney.

Yo u r H o n o r, i f i m a y a p p r o a c h .

2 A .

3 l*d l ike to get the information on how
4

5 Q .

6 A .

7 M S . G U L L E T T :

8 THE COURT: Y e s .

9 (By MS. Gullett) l*m going to hand you what's

m a r k e d a s S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 9 .

Q .

1 0 Ms. Banes, do you recognize

1 1 t h a t d o c u m e n t ?

1 2 A . Y e s .

A l l r i g h t . A n d i s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e

represen ta t ion o f adocument tha t you have seen be fo re?

1 3 Q .

1 4

1 5 Y e s .A .

A l l r i g h t . A n d w h a t i s t h a t d o c u m e n t I ' v e h a n d e d1 6 Q .

1 7 y o u ?

I t i s a n e - m a i l a s k i n g f o r t h e C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e

a t t o r n e y c o n t a c t i n f o r m a t i o n .

A n d w h o i s t h e e - m a i l f r o m ?

1 8 A .

1 9

Okay.2 0 Q .

M i c h a e l N e l s o n .2 1 A .

A l l r i g h t . A n d w h a t ' s t h e e - m a i l a d d r e s s t h a t i t ' s2 2 Q .

f r o m ?2 3

M i c h a e l e r i c n e l s o n d i c l o u d . c o m .2 4 A .

A n d w h o ' s t h e e - m a i l t o ?Okay.2 5 Q .
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1 To m e , E l a i n e B a n e s .

And what ' s the e -ma i l address tha t i t comes to?

Rebanes@ci tyof bar t lesv i l le .org.

Thank you.

A n d w h a t d a t e w a s — i s o n t h i s e - m a i l ?

A .

2 Q .

3 A .

4 Q .

5

6 August 26 th .

And what year?

A .

7 Q .

8 2 0 2 1 .A .

A n d w h a t t i m e ?9 Q .

7 : 2 8 a . m .1 0 A .

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u , m a ' a m .

MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , I m o v e t o a d m i t

1 1 Q .

1 2

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 9 .1 3

MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE COURT: s t a t e ' s N u m b e r 9 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .

1 4

1 5

And w i t h t ha t , Judge , t he S ta te1 6 M S . G U L L E T T :

has no f u r t he r ques t i ons .1 7

Mr. Adams, you may cross-examine the1 8 T H E C O U R T :

w i t n e s s .1 9

2 0 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

2 1 B Y M R . A D A M S

Ma'am, i f somebody had wanted to report something

that they thought was inappropriate going on with the City

o f B a r t l e s v i l l e , t h e c i t y a t t o r n e y w o u l d b e s o m e b o d y t h a t

t h e y c o u l d d o t h a t t o ; i s i t n o t ?

2 2 Q -

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 Ye s , s i r .

And have you got other e-mails in the past

requesting to, you know, get the city attorney's e-mail
f o r o n e r e a s o n o r a n o t h e r ?

Ye s , s i r .

And did you feel threatened by the e-mail?

N o , s i r .

D id you fee l harassed by the e-mai l?

I d i d n o t .

A .

2 Q .

3

4

5 A .

6 Q .

7 A .

8 Q .

9 A .

And d id i t make you fee l uncomfor tab le o r unsafe in1 0 Q .

1 1 any way?

N O , s i r .

MR. ADAMS: N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

MS. GULLETT: N O , t h a n k y o u , J u d g e .

THE COURT: okay. Ma'am, you may step down and

you may be excused as awi tness in th is case.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: T h a n k y o u .

The S ta te may ca l l i t s nex t w i t ness .

MS. GULLETT: Y o u r H o n o r , a t t h i s t i m e , t h e

S t a t e w o u l d c a l l M i k e B a i l e y.

1 2 A .

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

S i r , i f y o u ' d r a i s e y o u r r i g h t h a n d .2 2 T H E C O U R T:

pi ease.2 3

swear t he t es t imony you ' re abou t t o g i ve i s t he

t r u t h , t h e w h o l e t r u t h , a n d n o t h i n g b u t t h e t r u t h , s o h e l p

2 4

2 5
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1 7 0

1 me God?

2 THE WITNESS: I d o .

3 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you , s i r.

I f you ' l l have aseat in the wi tness cha i r there.4

5 THE WITNESS: S u r e .

6 When you get seated, pull thatT H E C O U R T:

microphone up close enough to your face that you can speak

d i r e c t l y i n t o i t .

7

8 And then Iwould just ask that you

speak clearly and loudly enough that the court reporter9

can hear you.1 0

1 1 THE witness: o k a y .

THE COURT: I f y o u w o u l d a l l o w h e r t o fi n i s h h e r

question before you begin to answer, and then she will do

the same, she' l l let you finish before she begins again

so t ha t we ' r e no t t a l k i ng ove r one ano the r.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t —

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u , J u d g e .

THE COURT: — y o u m a y i n q u i r e .

MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u .

WHEREUPON, MICHAEL LEE BAILEY, having been duly sworn

t o t e l l t h e t r u t h , t h e w h o l e t r u t h , a n d n o t h i n g b u t

t h e t r u t h , w a s e x a m i n e d a n d t e s t i fi e d a s f o l l o w s :

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4 DIRECT EXAMINATION

2 5 B Y M S . G U L L E T T :
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1 7 1

1 Mr. Bailey, will you please state your full name

for the record and spell your last name.

Michael Lee Bailey.

Okay.

B - A - I - L - E - Y .

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u , s i r .

And, Mr. Bailey, how are you employed?

I w o r k f o r t h e c i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e ,

o k a y. A n d d o y o u h a v e a t i t l e ?

I d o . I ' m t h e c i t y m a n a g e r .

A l l r i g h t . A n d h o w l o n g h a v e y o u b e e n t h e c i t y

Q .

2

3 A .

4 Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

7

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 manager?

O f fi c i a l l y , a b o u t fi v e y e a r s n o w , I b e l i e v e .

Okay. And where do you work at?

s o I w o r k a t c i t y h a l l , j u s t a c r o s s t h e s t r e e t .

A l l r igh t . And do you know an E la ine Banes?

I d o . S h e i s m y e x e c u t i v e a s s i s t a n t .

And how long has Elaine worked for you?

S h e ' s w o r k e d f o r m e e v e r s i n c e I ' v e b e e n t h e r e , i n

f a c t , s h e ' s b e e n a t t h e c i t y l o n g e r t h a n I h a v e i n t h a t

p o s i t i o n , s o —

Al l r i gh t . So , Mr. Ba i ley, a re you fami l i a r w i th a

M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ?

1 3 A .

1 4 Q .

1 5 A .

1 6 Q .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3

A l i t t l e b i t , y e s .

A l l r i g h t .

2 4 A .

And why are you fami l ia r w i th2 5 Q .
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1 M r . N e l s o n ?

2 Mr. Nelson had sent an e-mail to the City of
B a r t l e s v i l l e , a n d — i t ' s b e e n a w h i l e b a c k — b u t t h a t ' s

my —extent of my experience with him.

Okay. And do you recall approximately what month,

what year, he would have sent an e-mail to the City of
B a r t l e s v i l l e ?

A .

3

4

5 Q .

6

7

I d o n ' t r e c a l l e x a c t l y ,

right after we had made an announcement about an economic

d e v e l o p m e n t a s s i s t a n c e t o H e r a s o f t , b u t I c a n ' t r e c a l l t h e

d a t e .

8 I d o k n o w t h a t i t w a sA .

9

1 0

1 1

O k a y. I f I w e r e t o s a y A u g u s t o f 2 0 2 1 , d o e s t h a t

sound about r igh t?

Ye s , m a ' a m , o k a y , s o r r y .

I t ' s v e r y —

I t h o u g h t i t w a s w o r k i n g .

I t ' s v e r y fi n i c k y , i f y o u g e t a l i t t l e b i t t o o f a r

a w a y f r o m i t , i t d o e s n ' t w o r k .

Okay. So when you said an e-mai l was sent to the

C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e , w h a t d o e s t h a t m e a n ?

I t w a s s e n t t o m e . A n d i n t h e e - m a i l t h e r e w e r e

1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4 A .

1 5 Q .

1 6 A .

1 7 Q .

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 A .

some i nd i ca t i ons t ha t M r. Ne l son was i nd i ca t i ng t ha t t he2 2

principals in Herasoft had been involved in some —some

I a c t u a l l y w a s o u t o f

2 3

p o o r b u s i n e s s p r a c t i c e s , I s u p p o s e ,

t o w n a n d d i d n ' t — d i d n ' t p a y m u c h a t t e n t i o n t o t h e e - m a i l

2 4

2 5
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1 a t t h e t i m e .

2 Okay.

I d o .

And so you have acity e-mail address?Q .

3 A .

4 A l l r i g h t . A n d i s t h a t f o r w o r k ?

Ye s , m a ' a m .

And fo r t he reco rd , wha t i s t ha t e -ma i l add ress?

I t ' s m l b a i 1 e y @ c i t y o f b a r t l e s v i l l e . o r g .

A l l r igh t . And as far as th is e-mai l that you

rece i ved , d i d i t come t o t ha t e -ma i l add ress?

Ye s , m a ' a m , i t d i d .

Okay. And are you aware of i f Ms. Banes rece ived

Q .

5 A .

6 Q .

7 A .

8 Q .

9

1 0 A .

1 1 Q .

a n e - m a i l ?1 2

Ye s , I b e l i e v e s h e d i d .1 3 Iwas ou t o f t own , and so

w h e n I d i d n ' t r e s p o n d , t h e y f o r w a r d e d i t t o h e r i n s t e a d .

A .

1 4

Okay. Are you fami l ia r w i th Cynth ia and Anthem1 5 Q .

B l a n c h a r d ?1 6

1 7 A . I a m .

A l l r i g h t . A n d h o w - - w h a t ' s y o u r f a m i l i a r i t y w i t h

them? what do you know about them?

Iknow that they own HeraSof t and have purchased

t h e o l d c o u n t y c o u r t h o u s e h e r e i n B a r t l e s v i l l e .

I S t h a t o f f o f F r a n k P h i l l i p s ?

Ye s , m a ' a m .

Okay. And as far as the Blanchards go, when they

came to Bar t l esv i l l e , were you —you sa id the re were some

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 incentives or something about businesses coming here?
Ye s , m a ' a m .

Are you aware of them being part of that?

Yes, they were. The Bartlesville Development

Authority extended an incentive to them for locating in
B a r t l e s v i l l e .

Okay. And as the city manager, can you explain

briefly kind of what the purpose of that extension would

2 A .

3 Q .

4 A .

5

6

7 Q-

8

b e ?9

1 0 S u r e , w e d o h a v e a p r o g r a m , i n f a c t , t h e r e ' s a

qua r t e r cen t econom ic deve lopmen t sa l e ' s t ax t ha t ' s

d e d i c a t e d f o r e c o n o m i c d e v e l o p m e n t . T h e B a r t l e s v i l l e

Deve lopment Author i ty uses those funds to conv ince

bus inesses to come to Bar t lesv i l le tha t may have went

e l s e w h e r e . S o i t ' s p r i m a r i l y j o b c r e a t i o n .

Okay. So there's been some testimony about some

al legat ions of nefar ious deal ings by the Blanchards. Are

you aware of any concerns that you have with the

B l a n c h a r d s ?

A .

1 1

12

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9

No, ma'am,

okay. Are you aware of any concerns that you have

as the city manager with the company Herasoft?

No, ma'am.

A l l r i g h t .

MS. GULLETT: Yo u r H o n o r , i f i m a y a p p r o a c h ?

2 0 A .

2 1 Q .

2 2

2 3 A .

2 4 Q .

2 5
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1 THE COURT: Y e s .

(By Ms. GuHett) l*m going to hand you what i*ve
marked as S ta te ' s Exh ib i t 10 .

Okay.

I f y o u ' l l t a k e a l o o k a t t h a t .

Thank you.

Do you recognize what I've handed you?

Yes, ma'am.

A l l r i g h t . A n d i s t h a t a t r u e a n d a c c u r a t e

represen ta t ion o f adocument tha t you have seen be fo re?

Y e s , I b e l i e v e i t i s .

O k a y. A n d w h a t i s i t t h a t I h a v e h a n d e d y o u ?

Y o u h a v e h a n d e d m e a n e - m a i l f r o m M r . N e l s o n t o

2 Q .

3

4 A .

5 Q .

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

m y s e l f .1 4

O k a y. A n d c a n y o u t e l l t h e c o u r t r e p o r t e r w h a t

e - m a i l a d d r e s s M r . N e l s o n e - m a i l e d f r o m ?

1 5 Q .

1 6

H e e - m a i l e d f r o m m i c h a e l e r i c n e l s o n @ i c l o u d . c o m .1 7 A .

And to your - - wh ich e -ma i l o f yours i s on there?

I k n o w y o u r n a m e ' s j u s t o n t h e r e .

Right, but this would have been my work e-mail

a d d r e s s . S o m l b a i 1 e y @ c i t y o f b a r t l e s v i l l e . o r g .

O k a y. A n d d o e s i t h a v e a d a t e o n i t ?

I t d o e s . A n d y o u ' r e c o r r e c t , i t ' s A u g u s t 2 5 t h o f

1 8 Q .

1 9

2 0 A .

2 1

2 2 Q .

2 3 A .

2 0 2 1 .2 4

A l l r i g h t . T h a n k y o u , s i r .2 5 Q-
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1 A n d d o — d o e s i t h a v e a t i m e o n i t ?

I t d o e s , a c t u a l l y .2 A . I t was rece ived a t 5 :21 p .m.

3 t h a t d a y.

Okay. Thank you very much.

MS. GULLETT: T h e S t a t e w o u l d m o v e t o a d m i t

4 Q .

5

S t a t e ' s E x h i b i t 1 0 .6

7 MR. ADAMS: N O o b j e c t i o n .

THE court: s t a t e ' s N u m b e r 1 0 s h a l l b e a d m i t t e d .8

9 MS. GULLETT: T h a n k y o u . A n d w i t h t h a t , t h e

S ta te has no fu r the r ques t i ons , Judge .1 0

Mr. Adams, you my cross-examine the1 1 T H E C O U R T :

w i t n e s s .1 2

1 3 C R O S S - E X A M I N A T I O N

1 4 B Y M R . A D A M S :

N o w, s i r , y o u s a i d t h e r e ' s a q u a r t e r - c e n t s a l e s1 5 Q .

1 6 t a x .

Y e s , s i r .

So tha t ' s tax-payer money?

Ye s , s i r .

A n d s o y o u — t h e C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e i s g i v i n g

tax -payer money to cer ta in bus inesses?

Ye s , s i r .

1 7 A .

1 8 Q .

1 9 A .

2 0 Q .

2 1

2 2 A .

And in hopes that those bus inesses wi l l come

t o t h e C i t y o f B a r t l e s v i l l e a n d c r e a t e j o b s f o r t h e

c i t i z e n s o f B a r t l e s v i l l e ?

Okay.2 3 Q .

2 4

2 5

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A
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1 Y e s , s i r .

You're the city manager?

Y e s , s i r .

I s tha t l i ke amayor?

I t ' s — I ' m a c t u a l l y — i c a l l — I j u s t c a l l

myself the operations director because we have amayor as
w e l l .

A .

2 Q .

3 A .

4 Q .

5 A .

6

7

8 Oh. Okay. But you —you have responsibility to
t h e c i t i z e n s o f B a r t l e s v i l l e —

Q .

9

1 0 Y e s , s i r .

—to spend their money in aeffect ive way?

Y e s , s i r , I d o .

N o t t o w a s t e i t ?

A .

1 1 Q .

1 2 A .

1 3 Q .

1 4 S u r e .A .

Okay. A n d y o u ' r e — a r e y o u f r i e n d s w i t h t h e1 5 Q .

B l a n c h a r d s ?1 6

N o . N o . I ' m f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e m , b u t n o t f r i e n d s1 7 A .

w i t h t h e m .1 8

Been to any events with them?

A c t u a l l y , o n — w e l l , t h e y w e r e a t a

Ba r t l esv i l l e mon th l y even t two weeks ago tha t I saw them

B u t , n o , I ' v e n e v e r a t t e n d e d a n y t h i n g p u r p o s e f u l l y

1 9 Q .

N O , s i r .2 0 A .

2 1

t h e r e .2 2

t o b e w i t h t h e m .2 3

Do you guys run in the same circles?

o c c a s i o n a l l y , I w o u l d s a y .

2 4 Q .

B u t I t h i n k t h a t ' s t h e2 5 A .
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1 only time Ican think of that we ended up at the same
p1ace.2

3 Okay. Now, if somebody wanted to report something

that they thought was nefarious, you might be one of the

people that they do i t to, r ight?

Ye s , s i r .

And you would want to know, right —

S u r e .

—if you were giving tax-payer funds to people

tha t maybe you shou ldn ' t be g i v ing tax -payer funds to?

S u r e .

Q .

4

5

6 A .

7 Q .

8 A .

9 Q .

1 0

1 1 A .

A n d s o — b u t y o u a r e — y o u ' r e — d i d y o u

d o a n y t h i n g t o i n v e s t i g a t e t h e s e — t h e s e — t h e s e

a l l e g a t i o n s ?

Okay.1 2 Q .

1 3

1 4

S o t h e e - m a i l w a s f o r w a r d e d t o t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e1 5 A .

c i t y a t t o r n e y f o r h i s a t t e n t i o n .

Development Author i ty would have performed the due

di l igence on the company before the ass is tance was

p r o v i d e d .

A n d t h e B a r t l e s v i l l e1 6

1 7

1 8

1 9

O k a y, s o j u s t w a s n ' t y o u r a r e a ?

N o . u l t i m a t e l y , i t ' s m y a r e a , b u t o t h e r e x p e r t s

wou ld have ca r r i ed ou t t he ac tua l ope ra t i on .

The ac tua l ope ra t i on?

Of invest igat ing Mr. Nelson 's c la ims, yes, s i r.

some o f these c la ims tha t he pu t in there cou ld

2 0 Q .

2 1 A .

2 2

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5 Q .
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have been investigated through aGoogle search, right?
I s u p p o s e .

Imean, he to ld you —he to ld you about a lawsui t

where these people were getting sued down in Texas?
T h e r e w e r e a l o t o f c l a i m s i n t h e r e , i d o n ' t

reca l l wha t t hey were .

S o y o u t o o k n o a c t i o n t o s e e i f t h a t w a s t r u e ?

P e r s o n a l l y, n o .

MS. GULLETT: O b j e c t i o n , Y o u r H o n o r .

1

2 A .

3 Q .

4

5 A .

6

7 Q .

8 A .

9

1 0 THE WITNESS: O h .

1 1 THE COURT: G O a h e a d , M s . G u l l e t t .

MS. GULLETT: H e a n s w e r e d t h a t h e d i d t a k e1 2

a c t i o n a n d t h a t h e s e n t i t t o t h e c i t y a t t o r n e y.

THE court: s u s t a i n e d , i t ' s b e e n a s k e d a n d

1 3

1 4

a n s w e r e d .1 5

(By Mr. Adams) You personal ly took no act ion?

MS. GULLETT. Object ion. Again, Judge, i t 's

f a c t s n o t i n e v i d e n c e .

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

THE COURT: w e l l1 9

H e ' s m i s s t a t i n g t h e t e s t i m o n y o f2 0 M S . G U L L E T T :

t h i s w i t n e s s .2 1

THE COURT: H e s t a t e d t h a t h e f o r w a r d e d i t t o2 2

the au tho r i t i es he though t was p roper, so he d id take

a c t i o n .

2 3

2 4

(By Mr. Adams) Af te r you fo rwarded th is to the2 5 Q .
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1 people to look into this, did you follow back up with them

later to see if they had done their job or done anything?
Again, the Bartlesville Development Authority did.

2

3 A .

4 y e s .

5 The Bartlesville Development Authority? Are they
h i red by the c i ty o f Bar t lesv i l le?

They ' re ac tua l ly an author i ty o f the c i ty.

Are they e lec ted or what?

N o , s i r . A p p o i n t e d .

They ' re appo in ted?

U h - h u h .

And who appoints them?

T h e y a r e — t h e i n i t i a l b o a r d i s a p p o i n t e d b y t h e

counse l and t hen t hey appo in t t he i r own members . I t ' s a

fi v e - m e m b e r b o a r d .

Now, wou ld i t be embar rass ing t o t he —these

gove rnmen t o f fic ia l s i f t hey had ag reed to g i ve money t o

peop le t ha t we re no t us i ng i t i n —or t ha t maybe we re no t

d e s e r v i n g o f t h e t a x - p a y e r f u n d s ? w o u l d t h a t b e k i n d o f

embarrassing to you guys?

I w o u l d n ' t w a n t t o s p e a k f o r a n y b o d y o t h e r t h a n

Q -

6

7 A .

8 Q .

9 A .

1 0 Q .

1 1 A .

1 2 Q .

1 3 A .

1 4

1 5

1 6 Q .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1 A .

m y s e l f .2 2

wel l , would you be embarrassed?

I w o u l d n o t w a n t t o d o t h a t , y o u ' r e c o r r e c t .

MR. ADAMS: N o f u r t h e r q u e s t i o n s .

2 3 Q .

2 4 A .

2 5
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1 THE COURT: M S . G u l l e t t .

2 MS. GULLETT: NO, thank you, ludge.

THE COURT:Thank you, Mr. Ba11ey. You may step3

d o w n .4

5 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

6 And you are excused as awi tness inT H E C O U R T:

t h i s c a s e .7

8 MS. Gu l l e t t , you may ca l l you r nex t w i tness .

So, Judge, th is wou ld be the

w i tness tha t I have on the compu te r, and so i f we cou ld

t a k e a b r e a k s o I c o u l d g e t h i m a 11 s i t u a t e d .

HOW long do you think his test imony

9 M S . G U L L E T T :

1 0

1 1

1 2 T H E C O U R T :

w i l l b e ?1 3

MS. GULLETT: N o t t o o l o n g .1 4

THE COURT: o k a y .1 5

MS. GULLETT: A t l e a s t n o t f o r m e .1 6

THE COURT: O k a y. A l l r i g h t . L e t ' s g o a h e a d

then and take, what , ten minutes?

1 7

1 8

1 9 MS. GULLETT: Y e s .

THE COURT: F i f t e e n ?2 0

I s h o u l d b e a b l e t o g e t i t —2 1 M S . G U L L E T T :

THE COURT: T e n m i n u t e s ?2 2

MS. GULLETT: T e n t o 1 5 m i n u t e s a t t h e m o s t . I f2 3

n o t , I c a n h a v e t h i s —2 4

S o i t ' s a b o u t 2 0 m i n u t e s — 2 22 5 T H E C O U R T :

O F F I C I A L T R A N S C R I P TD I S T R I C T C O U R T O F O K L A H O M A
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1 m i n u t e s u n t i l f o u r . L e t ' s t a k e a b r e a k u n t i l t e n t i l l

She's going to set up a2 four, and then we ' l l come back .

3 v i d e o c o n f e r e n c e .

4 (Whereupon , ab r i e f recess was taken .

Thereafter, proceedings resumed as follows:)
w e a r e n o w b a c k o n t h e r e c o r d i n

S t a t e o f O k l a h o m a v e r s u s M i c h a e l E r i c N e l s o n ,

has not been seated back in the courtroom yet.

exp lana t ion fo r the reco rd , Ibe l i eve —and , Ms . Gu l le t t ,

you can correct me if I'm wrong, but your next witness,

Mr. Mark Ri t ter, is not ava i lab le to tes t i fy in person,

and your plan was to have him testify over video

Due to the unexpected death of h is son, he

A p p a r e n t l y, w e c a n ' t

H e ' s i n a p l a c e w h e r e h e c a n ' t

5

6 T H E C O U R T :

7 T h e j u r y

8 B u t a s a n

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

c o n f e r e n c e .1 3

c a n ' t b e h e r e . H e ' s i n C o l o r a d o .1 4

get him hooked up today.1 5

1 6 g e t o n .

I t ' s a l r e a d y a f t e r f o u r o ' c l o c k , s o m y i n t e n t w o u l d

be t o b r i ng t he j u ro r s back i n , d i sm iss t hem fo r t he day,

a n d t h e n a t t e m p t t o r e a c h h i m t o m o r r o w m o r n i n g , i b e l i e v e

your ass is tan t has ta lked to h im and he wou ld be ava i lab le

9 : 3 0 o u r t i m e , 8 : 3 0 h i s t i m e .

1 7

1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

Ye s , m a ' a m , t h a t i s c o r r e c t .

Judge , I don ' t know how l ong t he

next w i tness is , bu t we were hop ing to c lose tomorrow,

i t p o s s i b l e f o r t h e m t o p u t t h e i r i n v e s t i g a t o r u p a n d

2 2 M S . G U L L E T T :

2 3 M R . A D A M S :

2 4 I S

2 5
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1 maybe we stop it even if we're not done —and idon't

w a n t t o w a s t e a n h o u r .2 I m e a n , I d o n ' t k n o w .

I — i t ' s p o s s i b l e , b u t t h a t ' s n o t3 T H E C O U R T:

the way I'm going to do it this evening,

think it's —the jurors have heard an awful lot today, a
l o t o f i n f o r m a t i o n ,

o ' c l o c k .

4 I w o u l d — I

5

6 L i k e I s a i d , i t ' s a l r e a d y a f t e r f o u r

B y t h e t i m e w e g e t a l l t h a t d o n e , i t w o n ' t — i t7

would just almost be counterproductive to get started on

the investigator and then stop in the middle of i t .

So, Madam Bailiff, would you please direct the

j u r o r s t o t h e i r p l a c e i n t h e j u r y b o x .

(whereupon , the ju ry en te red the cour t room.

T h e r e a f t e r, p r o c e e d i n g s r e s u m e d a s f o l l o w s : )

Lad ies and gent lemen, techno logy is

g r e a t w h e n i t ' s g r e a t a n d i t ' s t e r r i b l e w h e n i t ' s n o t .

we ' re no t ab le to ge t the nex t w i tness on .

a f t e r f ou r o ' c l ock , so I 'm go ing to go ahead and d i sm iss

you rather than have you wai t to see i f we could get h im

I'm going to go ahead and dismiss

I w o u l d r e m i n d y o u a g a i n n o t t o t a l k

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4 T H E C O U R T :

1 5 S O

I t ' s a l r e a d y1 6

1 7

1 8

o n v i d e o c o n f e r e n c e .1 9

you fo r t he even ing ,

about th is case w i th anyone, no t amongst yourse lves or

a l low anyone to ta lk to you about the case or in your

p r e s e n c e e i t h e r,

we ' l l t a ke up t h i s case t omor row.

State's going to work on getting their witness here by

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

I k n o w t h e2 4

2 5
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1 video conference this evening, make sure it all works, and
then, hopefully, tomorrow morning we can get started,

we're going to star t —if you' l l be here at 9:15 tomorrow

morning in the jury room.

2

3

4 Then as soon as we get

everything set up, we'll call you and, hopefully, by 9:15,5

6 9:30, we'l l have everything ready to go.

Anything further for the record today, Ms. Gul let t?

MS. gullett: N o , J u d g e . T h a n k y o u .

THE court: M r . A d a m s ?

7

8

9

1 0 MR. ADAMS: NO, Judge.

THE COURT: T h a n k y o u .

We w i l l r ecess , t hen , f o r t he day, and we w i l l see

everybody back here a t 9 :15 tomorrow morn ing. Jus t be

1 1

1 2

1 3

sure and leave your notepads and everyth ing.

You don ' t need to do any th ing w i th

T h e b a i l i f f1 4

w i l l p i c k t h e m u p .

t h o s e .

1 5

1 6

( T h e r e u p o n , c o u r t s t o o d i n r e c e s s u n t i l1 7

F e b r u a r y 8 2 0 2 3 . )1 8

1 9

2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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1 C E R T I F I C A T E

2

3 )S TAT E O F O K L A H O M A

4 ) S S .

5 )C O U N T Y O F T U L S A

6

7 I , D e e D e e Ta n n e r , a C e r t i fi e d S h o r t h a n d

Reporter in and for the State of Oklahoma, do hereby

cer t i fy that the forego ing t ranscr ip t in the above-s ty led

case is atrue, correct and complete transcript of my

shorthand notes of the proceedings in said cause.

Dated th is 16th day of May, 2023.

8

9

1 0

1 1

1 2

1 3

1 4

1 5

1 6 Dee Dee Tanner, CSR, No. 01590

1 7

1 8 Sharon D. Tanne^
Srare of Oklahoma

reified Shorthand Reporter1 9
e

CSR# 1590,
ivly Certificate Expires ^2 0

2 1

2 2

2 3

2 4

2 5
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